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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 37™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF
“KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED” WILL BE HELD ON FRIDAY, 30t SEPTEMBER 2022 AT
11.00 A.M. AT 121/C, MITTAL TOWER, NARIMAN POINT MUMBAI- 400021 TO TRANSACT THE
FOLLOWING BUSINESS:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider, approve and adopt

a. the Audited standalone financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 315t
March 2022, together with the reports of Board of Directors and Auditor’s thereon; and

b. the Audited consolidated financial statements of the company for the financial year ended
31st March 2022, together with the reports of Board of Directors and Auditor’s thereon.

2. To appointa director in place of Mrs. Liza Kothari (DIN No. 01273272) who retires by rotation and
being eligible offers herself for reappointment.

By and on behalf of Board of Directors
For KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED

Place: Mumbai Sd/-
Date: 1st September,2022 NITESH P KOTHARI
DIRECTOR

DIN: 00024195
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NOTES:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend
and vote instead of himself/herself and such proxy need not be a member of the company.

A person can act as proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty (50) in number and holding in
the aggregate not more than ten percent (10%) of the total share capital of the Company carrying
voting rights. A Member holding more than ten percent (10%) of the total share capital of the
Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person cannot act as
a proxy for any other person or Shareholder.

Proxies, in order to be effective, should be deposited at the registered office of the company duly
completed and signed, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. Proxies
submitted on behalf of the Companies, Societies etc. must be supported by an appropriate
resolution/authority, as applicable. A Proxy Form for the AGM is annexed. During the period
beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the AGM and until the conclusion
of the meeting, a member would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged during the business hours
of the Company, provided that not less than three days of notice in writing is given to the Company.

2. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives, are required to send a
certified true copy of the Board Resolution together with the respective specimen signatures of those
representatives pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, authorizing their
representatives to attend and vote on their behalf at the Annual General Meeting.

3. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter
referred to as the “Act”), in respect of special business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting
(hereinafter referred to as “AGM") is annexed thereto.

4. Members, Proxies and Authorized Representatives are requested to bring to the Meeting, the
attendance slip enclosed herewith, duly completed and signed mentioning therein details of their
Name, address, DP ID and Client ID/ Folio No., etc

5. In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of
names will be entitled to vote.

6. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under
Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which
directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Act, will be available for inspection by
the members at the AGM.

7. As per RBI notification, with effect from October 1, 2009, the remittance of money through ECS is
replaced by National Electronic Clearing Services (NECS) and banks have been instructed to move to
the NECS platform. This is in addition to the existing facility of ECS in other locations, NECS essentially
operates on the new and unique bank account number, allotted by banks pursuant to implementation
of Core Banking Solutions (CBS) for centralized processing of inward instructions and efficiency in
handling bulk transaction. In this regard, shareholders holding shares in electronic form are
requested to furnish the new 9-digit Bank Account Number allotted to them by your bank, (after
implementation of CBS), along with photocopy of a cheque pertaining to the concerned account, to

Annual Report 2021-2022 Page - 5



KOTHARIL WORLD
KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED G Ulass, Budlding s

your Depository Participant (DP). Please send these details to the Company/Registrars, if the shares
are held in physical form, immediately.

8. Members who hold shares in the dematerialized form and want to change /correct the bank account
details should send the same immediately to their concerned Depository Participant and not to the
Company. Members are also requested to give the MICR Code of their bank to their Depository
Participants. The Company will not entertain any direct request from such members for change of
address, transposition of names, deletion of name of deceased joint holder and change in the bank
account details.

9. Members who are holding physical shares in identical order of names in more than one folio are
requested to send to the Company or Company's Share Transfer Agent the details of such folios
together with the share certificates for consolidating their holding in one folio. The share
certificates will be returned to the members after making requisite changes, thereon. Members are
requested to use the new share transfer form SH-4.

10. Members are requested to quote their Registered Folio Number or Demat Account Number &
Depository Participant (D.P.) ID number on all correspondence with the Company.

11. Members/Proxy holders are requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report with them to the
Annual General Meeting, as extra copies will not be provided.

Members holding shares in single name and physical form are advised to make nomination in
respect of their shareholding in the Company. The Nomination Form SH-13 prescribed by the
Government can be obtained from the Registrar and Transfer Agent.

13. Members are requested to send to the Company their queries, if any, on accounts and operations of
the Company at least ten days before the meeting so that the same could be suitably answered at
the meeting.

14. Pursuant to Section 101 and Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant Companies
(Management and Administration Rules), 2014, companies can serve Annual Reports and other
communications through electronic mode to those Members who have registered their e-mail
address either with the Company or with the Depository.

15. Shareholders holding shares in physical mode and who have not updated their email addresses
with the Company are requested to update their email addresses by sending a duly signed request
letter to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company, Link Intime India Private Limited
(LIIPL) by providing Folio No. and Name of shareholder(s). Shareholders holding shares in
dematerialized mode are requested to register/update their email addresses with the relevant
Depository Participants.

16.

a. Shareholders holding Shares in Physical Mode: Shareholders holding shares in physical
mode and who have not updated their email address are requested to update their email
address by writing to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company, viz., Link Intime
India Pvt Ltd, C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400 083 or by sending
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email to rnthelpdesk@linkintime.co.in along with the copy of the signed request letter
mentioning the name and address of the Shareholder, Folio Number, scanned copy of the Share
Certificate (front and back]), self-attested copy of the PAN Card, and self-attested copy of Aadhar
Card and self-attested copy of any document (Driving License, Election Identity Card, Passport,
Utility Bill) in support of the address of the Shareholder.

b. Shareholders holding Shares in Dematerialized Mode: Shareholders are requested to
register their e-mail ID with the relevant Depository Participant(s). In case of any queries /
difficulties in registering the e-mail address, Shareholders may write to Link Intime India Pvt.
Ltd. at rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

We urge members to support our commitment to environmental protection by choosing to
receive the Company’s communication through email. You can do this by updating your email
addresses with your depository participants.

17. Members may also note that the Annual Report for the 37™ AGM for the year 2021-22 will be
available on the Company’s website. (www.kothariworld.com)

18. All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice shall be open for inspection at the
Registered Office of the Company during business hours between 11.00 am to 1.00 pm except on
holidays, up to and including the date of the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

19. Attendance slip along with proxy form and route map is annexed thereto.
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KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED

DIRECTOR'’S REPORT

To,
The Members,
KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED

1. INTRODUCTION:

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their 37 Annual report on the business and operations of the
company and the accounts for the financial year ended March 31st, 2022.

2. FINANCIAL RESULTS:

The financial results for the period are summarized below:
(Amount in Rs.)

2021-2022 2020-2021 2021-22 2020-21

Total Income 4,67,77,937 6,19,75,062 4,67,77,937 6,19,75,062

Expenditure 1,56,20,360 1,79,23,645 1,56,20,360 1,79,23,645

Profit before Tax 3,11,57,576 4,40,51,417 3,11,57,576 4,40,51,417

Provision for

Taxation

(1) Current Tax 58,08,100 56,14,400 58,08,100 56,14,400

Less: MAT credit - - = N

(2) Earlier years Tax 3,94,908 - 3,94,908 -

(3) Deferred Tax 18,963 35,23,047 18,963 35,23,047

Profit after Tax 2,49,35,606 | 3,49,13,970 2,49,35,606 3,49,13,970

Share‘ in Profit of - — 59.66,313 2278173

Associates

Total

Comprehensive 2,49,35,606 3,49,13,970 3,09,01,919 3,71,92,143

Income for the year

Earning Per Equity

Share:

(1)Basic 335 4.69 4,15 5.00

(2) Diluted 3.35 4,69 4.15 5.00
Annual Report 2021-2022 Page - 8
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3. RESERVES:

Your Company does not propose to transfer any amount to the general reserves. An amount of profit of
Rs. 2,49,35,606/- is proposed to be retained in the statement of profit and loss account.

4. DIVIDEND:

The Directors of the company have decided to conserve the resources and no dividend is being
recommended.

5. REVIEW OF OPERATION:

On Standalone basis, sales from operations for FY 2021-22 stood at Rs.4,67,09,732 as compared to
Rs.6,10,54,336 in FY 2020-21.

On Consolidated basis sales from operations for FY 2021-22 stood at Rs.4,67,09,732 as compared to
Rs.6,10,54,336 in FY 2020-21.

6. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY:

There is no change in the nature of Business of the Company during the year.

IATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION O H |
COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE
COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT:

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company have occurred
between the end of the financial year of the company to which the financial statement relate and the
date of the report.

8. STATE OF THE COMPANY'’S AFFAIRS:

During the year under review, your Company enjoyed cordial relationship with employees at all levels.

DETAILS Of
TRIBUNAL:

There are no significant and material orders issued against the Company by any regulating authority or
court or tribunal affecting the going concern status and Company’s operation in future.
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ETAI N PE F _FRAUDS R RTED BY T R SUB-SE N (12
SECTION 143 OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT:

There were no frauds reported by the Auditors under section 143(12) during the Financial Year under
review.

11. COMPLIANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

Your Board informs you that during the Financial year under review, the Company has complied with
the provisions of the Board Meetings and the General Meetings as stated in Secretarial Standard-1 (SS-
1) and Secretarial Standard- 2 (S8S-2) respectively, issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India (ICSI), constituted under Section 3 of Company Secretaries Act, 1980.

12. HOLDING, SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:
. There is no subsidiary company of Kathari World Finance Limited.
© Your Company has the following Company as its Associate Company at the year end. Statement

containing salient features of the financial statement of the following Associate Company are
made in Form AOC-1 as (Part “B": associates) and attached to this report as “Annexure - [I]

International Health Care Products Limited (IHCPL) Associate

. Your Company does not have any Joint Venture Company at the year end.

13. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Annual Consolidated Financial Statements together with the Report of the Auditors’ thereon forms
part of this Annual Report.

14. DEPOSITS:

Your Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposit within the meaning of Section 73 and
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the necessary rules made thereunder
during the year ended 315t March 2022.
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15. STATUTORY AUDITORS:

As per the provisions of sections 139, 142 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) at the 35t
Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September 30, 2020, the members of the company had
appointed M/S. V. K Beswal & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Firm Registration No.
101083W), as the statutory auditors of the company to hold the office for a term of 5 (five) years from
the conclusion of 35th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 40th Annual General Meeting to
be held in the year 2025.

The Statutory Auditors’ report on the Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2022
does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark and is self-explanatory and
unmodified and thus does not require any further clarifications /comments.

The Auditors’ Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 on the financial statements of the
Company is a part of this Annual Report.

16. SHARE CAPITAL:

During the year there is no changes in Authorised and Paid-up capital of the Company. Company has not
issued any shares during the year.

b. Provision of money by company for purchase of its own shares by emplovees or by trustees for
the benefit of emplovees

The company has not made any provision of money for purchase of its own shares by employees or by
trustees for the benefit of employees as per Rule 16(4) of Companies (share capital and debentures)
Rules, 2014.

c. Issue of Sweat Equi hares:

The Company has not issued any sweat equity share during the financial year in accordance with the
provisions of Section 54 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Share Capital and
Debentures) Rules, 2014.

d. ui r ith Differential Rights:

The Company has not issued any Equity Shares with differential voting rights during the financial year
as per Rule 4(4) of Companies (Share capital and debentures) Rules, 2014.
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e. Issue of Employee Stock Option:

The company has not issued any employee stock option during the financial year as per Rule 12 of
Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014.

f. Issue of Equity Shares Without Differential Rights:

The Company has not issued any equity shares with differential voting rights during the financial year
as per Rule 4(4) of Companies (Share capital and debentures) Rules, 2014.

17. ANNUAL RETURN:

As per section 92(3) read with section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant rules, as
amended from time to time, every company is required to place a copy of the annual return on the
website of the Company, if any, and the web-link of such annual return shall be disclosed in the Board's
report. Therefore, Annual return in MGT-7 form will be placed at the Company’s website on the link
http://www.kothariworld.com /invester relations.html.

The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings
and outgo as required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are:

a) Conservation of Energy Technology absorption:

As there had been no manufacturing activities, your Directors have nothing to report under
Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013.

The management keeps itself abreast of the technological advancements in the industry and has
adopted the state-of-the-art transaction, billing and accounting systems and risk management
solutions.

b) Foreign Exchange Earni nd ing -NIL

Expenditure in foreign currency: NIL
Earnings in foreign exchange: Nil

19. DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS CORPORATE
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES:

The Company has not developed and implemented any Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives as the
said provisions are not applicable to the Company.
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20. BOARD EVALUATION:

The provisions relating to evaluation of performance of the Board and Individual Directors pursuant to
provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 is no more applicable to the Company as the
Company has been delisted from BSE Limited and the Paid-up Share Capital of the Company does not
exceed 25 crores.

During the year under review, following changes took place in the Composition of Board:

e The appointment of Mr. Manohar Mhatre (DIN: 00024326) as the Director of the company was
regularized at the Annual general meeting held on 28t September, 2021.

The Board comprises of the following Directors as on the year end:

Sr. Name Designation DIN

No.

1. Mr. Nitesh P Kothari Director 00024195

P Mrs. Liza Kothari Managing Director 01273272

3 Mr. Manohar Mhatre Director 00024326
Independent Director:

Pursuant to the delisting of the Company from BSE Limited, the only stock exchange where Company’s
equity shares were listed, the provisions for appointment of ‘Independent Director’ are no more
applicable to the Company under the Companies Act, 2013 and the necessary rules made thereunder.

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP):

Pursuant to the delisting of the Company from BSE Limited, the only stock exchange where Company’s
equity shares were listed, the provisions for appointment of ‘'Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)’ are no
more applicable to the Company under the Companies Act, 2013 and the necessary rules made
thereunder.

22. DIRECTOR LIABLE TO RETIRE BY ROTATION:

In accordance with the provision of Section 152(6)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of
Association of the Company, Mrs. Liza Kothari, Managing Director (DIN: 01273272), of the Company
retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers herself for re-
appointment.

Your Board recommends her re-appointment.
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Your Board of Directors has duly met six (6) times during the financial year under review and in respect
of which proper notices were given and the proceedings were properly recorded and signed in the
Minute Book maintained for the purpose.

The dates of Board meetings and attendance of directors is as follows:

Sr. Dates of Board Meetings No. of Directors associated | No. of Directors
No. with the company as on date | Attended

1 25/06/2021 3 3

2 23/07/2021 3 3

3 23/08/2021 3 3

4 18/11/2021 3 3

5 02/02/2022 3 3

6 04/02/2022 3 3

The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings. The maximum interval between any two
meetings did not exceed 120 days.

24, AUDIT COMMITTEE, NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND STAKEHOLDER
RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

Pursuant to the delisting of the company from BSE Limited the only Stock Exchange where Company’s
Equity shares were listed the provision for constituting Audit Committee, Stakeholder Relation
Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee is no more applicable to the company under
Companies Act 2013 and Rules made thereunder.

25. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE
COMPANY ACT, 2013

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investment covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules framed thereunder as amended, are given in the notes to the
Financial Statements.

26. VIGIL MECHANISM /WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

As such, the provision for constituting a Vigil Mechanism for Directors and employees to report genuine
concerns is no more applicable to the Company under the Companies Act, 2013.

27. ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Company is conscious of the importance of environmentally clean and safe operations. The
Company’s policy requires conduct of operations in such a manner so as to ensure safety of all
concerned, compliances of environmental regulations and preservation of natural resources.
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28. PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT (POSH) AT WORKPLACE:

The Company has formulated a Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace for prevention,
prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in accordance with the Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as
“Prevention of Sexual Harassment Act”). As the Company have less than 10 nos. of employees, the
company is not required to constitute Internal Complaints Committee (ICC).

During the year under review, no complaints were reported to the Board. This Policy considered and
approved by the Board has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.kothariworld.com
under investor relations/policies/prevention of Sexual Harassment at workplace.

30. ATEM S CONCERNIN MEN

MANAGEMENT POLICY OF THE COMPANY':

The Company has an effective risk management policy which is capable of identifying various types of
risks associated with the business, its assessment, risk handling, monitoring and reporting. At present
the company has not identified any element of risk which may threaten the existence of the company.

34.

AINTANANCE OF COST RECORDSAS SPECIFIED B b LENIRAL G
SECTION (1) OF SECTION 148 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, IF ANY,

As such, the provision for maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the company.

32. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board hereby
submit that:

a. Inthe preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along
with proper explanation relating to material departures,

b. The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the company at the end of financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period,

c. The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of this act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities,
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d. The Directors had prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis,

e. The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

33. ACKNOWLEDGMENT:

Your directors would like to express their grateful appreciation for the assistance and co-operation
received from the Company’s Bankers and thanks its shareholders for their continued support.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF
KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED

Sd/- Sd/-
Nitesh Kothari Liza Kothari
Director Managing Director
(DIN: 00024195) (DIN: 01273272)

PLACE: Mumbai
DATE: 15t September,2022
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ANNEXURE -1TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Form AOC-I
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate
companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries : Not Applicable
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)
Not Applicable
Sr. No -
Name of the Subsidiary -
The date since when subsidiary was acquired -
Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from -
the holding company’s reporting period
Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the -
relevant Financial year in the case of foreign Subsidiaries.
Share Capital -
Reserves & surplus -
Total assets -
Total Liabilities -
Investments -
Turnover -
Profit before taxation -
Provision for taxation -
Profit after Taxation -
Proposed Dividend -
Extent of Shareholder (in percentage) -

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: None
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: None

Annual Report 2021-2022 Page - 17



KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED

KOTHART WORLD

Cohaneing Cales. /uilaling Trusd.

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate
Companies and Joint Ventures

Name of Associates / Joint Venture

International Health Care Products Limited

1.Latest Audited Balance Sheet Date

31st March 2022

2. Date on which the Associates or Joint Venture
was associated or acquired.

10th May, 2010

3.Shares of Associate / Joint Ventures held by the
Company on the year end

consolidated

No of Shares 7050

Amount of Investment in Associates / Joint 7,05,000/-

Venture

Extent of Holding in % 26.11%

4.Description of how there is significant influence Common Directors & Shareholding
5.Reason why the associate / Joint venture is not NA

6.Networth attributable to Shareholding as per
latest audited Balance Sheet

Rs. 1,84,77,475/-

7. Profit / Loss for the year
i. Considered in Consolidation
ii. Not Considered in Consolidation

Rs. 14,32,020/-

Note: This Form is to be certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is to be certified.
Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations. None
Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year. None

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF
KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED

Sd/-
Nitesh Kothari
Director
(DIN: 00024195)

PLACE: Mumbai
DATE: 15t September,2022

Sd/-
Liza Kothari
Managing Director
(DIN: 01273272)
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INDPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To The Members of
Kothari World Finance Limited

Report on the Audit of the IND AS Standalone Financial Statements

1. Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Kothari
World Finance Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31
March 2022, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the statement of Cash Flows and the statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statement including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after
referred to as “standalone Ind AS financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation
given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS standalone financial statements give the information
required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the
Ind AS, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and its financial
performance including comprehensive income, its cash flows and the change in equity
for the year ended on that.

2. Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

3. Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. There
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
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4. Other Information
The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditors’
report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so. consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

5. Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these
standalone Ind AS financial statements, that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind As)
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act; for safeguarding the assets of the Company; for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.
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6. Auditors Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

] Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditors” report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

7. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™) issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section 11 of section 143 of the
Companies Act 2013, we give in the Annexure I a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order to the extent applicable.

A. Asrequired by Section143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b.  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c¢.  The Standalone IND AS Balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and
loss including other comprehensive income, the statement of cash flow and the
statement of changes in equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with
the books of account.

d.  In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply
with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind As) specified under Section 133 of
the Act, read with relevant rule issued thereunder.

e.  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31
March, 2022 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

i We have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting
(IFCoFR) of the Company as on 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit
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of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date and our report as per Annexure Il expressed.

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which may impact its
standalone Ind AS financial statements;

ii. The company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or
entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the Ilike on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (i1) of Rule 11 (e), as
provided under (a) and (h) above, contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section
197(16) of the Act: In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not paid any remuneration to its directors during the
current year in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. Hence, in the
absent of payment of the remuneration to any director the compliance of the limit laid
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down under Section 197 of the Act are not applicable. The Ministry of Corporate
Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are required to
be commented upon by us.

For V K Beswal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No 101083 W

Sd/-

CA Nishit S, Agrawal

Partner

M No-159882

UDIN No. : 22159882AQRDZU5694

Place: Mumbai
Date: 01/09/2022
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Annexure [ to the Standalone IND AS Independent Auditor’s Report

With reference to the Annexure I referred to in the Independent Auditors’ Report to the
members of the Company on the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended
315 March 2022, we report the following:

i. In respect of Property, Plant & Equipment:
a) A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment

B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

b) During the year, the Property, Plant & Equipment of the Company have been
physically verified by the management and as informed, no material discrepancies have
been noticed on such verification. In our opinion, this frequency of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets.

¢) The title deeds in respect of all immovable properties (Other than immovable
properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed
in favour of the Company) are held in the name of the company.

d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible
assets during the year.

e¢)  No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company
as at March 31st, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

ii. In respect of Inventories:

a) The Company does not hold any securities in physical form. The securities held as
stock-in-trade have been confirmed by the Management with the statement of holdings
provided by the custodian at regular intervals. No material discrepancies were noticed
on comparing the statement received from custodian with book records of books of
account.

b)  The principal business of the Company is to give loans and hence reporting under
clause (iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable, further the Company has not provided any
guarantee or security or granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties
during the year, and hence sub-clauses iii (¢), (d), (e), (f) under clause (iii) of the Order
are not applicable.

¢)  The investments made, during the year and outstanding at the yearend are, prima facie,
not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.
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iv. Based on our scrutiny of the company’s books of accounts and other records and according to
the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that the company has
complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect
of Loans, Investments, Guarantees and security given.

V. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits, hence the directives issued by the
Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Companies Act. Further, according to the information and explanations
given to us, no order has been passed by the Company Law Board or the National Company
Law Tribunal or the Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal.

vi.  To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section
148(1) of the Act. in respect of the business activities carried on by the company.
Accordingly, the provisions of the clause 3 (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

vil.  Inrespect of Statutory Dues:

a)  According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account. and records, the Company has been generally
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues Including Goods & Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty
of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with
the appropriate authorities.

b)  According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues referred to
in sub-clause (a) outstanding on account of any dispute.

viii. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961. (43 of 1961).

ix. a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest to any lender during the year.

b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Willful Defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

¢) In our opinion, term loans availed and outstanding in the books of the Company, were
applied by the Company for the purposes for which the loans were obtained.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures
performed by us, and on an overall examination of the standalone financial statements
of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for
long-term purposes by the Company.
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e)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries.

f)  According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed
by us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of
securities held in its subsidiaries.

X. a)  According to information and explanations given to us, the company has not raised
moneys during the year by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments), Accordingly, provisions of the clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section
(12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government.

¢)  According to information and explanations given to us, the company have not received
any whistle blower complaints during the year (and upto the date of this report), neither
any reported to auditor for consideration.

xii.  In our opinion and according to Information and explanations provided to us, the Company is
not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of the clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable, for
all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

xiv. a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with
the size and the nature of its business.
b)  In our opinion, looking at the size and nature of the Company, the Requirement to
Appoint Internal Auditor as per section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule
13 of the Company (Accounts) Rules 2014, is not applicable to the Company.

xv.  Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with Directors
or persons connected with him under section 192 of the Companies Act. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. a) The Company is required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 and it has obtained the registration.
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b)  The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial without obtaining a valid
certificate of registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934, The company has not conducted any housing finance
activities during the year and therefore it is not required to obtain a registration for the
same.

¢)  The Company is not a Core Investment Company (“CIC”) as defined in the regulations
made by Reserve Bank of India. Therefore, comments under this clause are not
applicable,

d) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in
the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and
the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on
our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

xx.  The provision for contribution towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) u/s 135, of the
Companies Act are not applicable to the company, hence the provisions of clause 3 (xx) (a)
to (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For V K Beswal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No 101083W

Sd/-

CA Nishit S. Agrawal

Partner

M No-159882

UDIN No. : 22159882AQRDZU5694
Place: Mumbai

Date: 01/09/2022
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Annexure I to the Standalone IND AS Independent Auditor’s Report

1. Independent Auditor’s report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to
financial statements and its operative effectiveness under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

In conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of Kothari
World Finance Limited (“the Company™) as of and for the year ended 31 March, 2022, we
have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the company
of as of that date.

2. Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the criteria being specified by management. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements, that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of the company’s business, including adherence to company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

3. Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's IFCoFR based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of IFCoFR, and the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) issued by the
ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate IFCoFR were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
IFCoFR and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR included obtaining an
understanding of IFCoFR, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s IFCoFR.
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4. Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles including the
Accounting Standards. A company's IFCoFR includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles including Accounting
Standards, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

5. Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future
periods are subject to the risk that [FCoFR may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

6. Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31% March, 2021, based on the criteria being specified by
management.

For V K Beswal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No 101083W

Sd/-

CA Nishit S. Agrawal

Partner

M No-159882

UDIN No. : 22159882AQRDZU5694

Place: Mumbai
Date: 01/09/2022
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KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED
CIN : UsS993M H1985PLCO3S005

Standalone Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2022
(Currency: Amount in Rupees)

Note As at Asat
Nos. 31-03-2022 31-03-2021
ASSETS
I Financial Assets

(a} Cash and cash eguivalenis 2 37334 26,874,007
(b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 3 85,381,752 64,602,530
(c) Receivables 4

Trade receivahles 6ibd 134 2578211

Other receivables 11,214,096 10,008, 168
(d) Inventary 5 5,152,057 2465690
(&) Loans 6 30,7089 027 046,559
() Investments 7 3,915,100 3415100
(g) Other financial assels & T.425,643 6,412,710

Total financial assets 144,499,148 117302976

1 Non-Financial Assets

(a) Cuorrent tax asscts (Net) 9 1,962,224 2,286,788
(b) Deferred tax assets (Net) 10 - -
{c) Investment Property 11 04,422 549 96,754,309
(d) Property, plant and equipment 12 4685429 4,040,707
(€) Other inanmble assets 12 16,634 31,602
(f) Other non-financial assets 13 57,487,599 57,304,473

Total non-financial assets 158,574,436 160,417,879

TOTAL ASSETS 303,073,583 2177.720.855

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

3 Financial Liabilities
(a) Payables 14

1) Trade Payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises - -
and small enterprises
il

Other payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises /91,051 228,955
and small enterprises
(b} Borrowings (Other than Debt Sceuriries) 15 3.223.002 3724109
(e} Other financial liabilines 16 6,671,563 6,472,876
Total financial liablities 10,785,616 10,425,939

4 Non-Financial Liabilities

(1) Current tax liabilities { net) 17 - -
(by Deferred tax liabilities il 33,730 14,767
(¢) Provisions 18 1,870,312 1831831
(d) Other non-financial liabilities 1 - -
Total non-financial liablities 1.904,042 1.846.598
5 Equity
(a) Equity share capital 20 74,375,000 T4,375.000
(b} Other equity 21 216,008,925 191,073,318
Taotal equity 290,383,925 265,448,318
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 303.073.583 277.720.855
Significant accounting policies 1
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 2404

As per our attached repont of even date

For V K Beswal & Associates For and on Behalfl of Board of Dircetors
Chartered Accountants
TCAI Firm Registration No,: 10J083W

Sdf-
Sd/- Sdr-
CA Nishit 8 Agrawal Liza Kothari Nitesh Kothari
Partner Managing Director Director
Menibership No : 159882 DIN No.: 01273272 DIN Now 00024 195

Place : Mumbai
Date. ;01/09/2022
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KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED

CIN : US993MH 1985PLCO35005

Statement of Standalone Profit and Loss for vear ended March 31, 2022
(Currency: Amount in Rupees)

e 2021-22 2020-21
Nos.
Revenuoe from operations
Interest income 2 5,476,990 5,056,125
Rental income 23 37,409,799 35,883,908
Net gain on fair value changes 24 249,265 13,858,423
Sale of shares 25 3,538,610 6,234,842
Trading in Future & Options (net Gain/Loss) 26 - -
Dividend Income 27 35,067 21,038
Total revenue from operations 46,709,732 61,054,336
Other income 28 68,205 920,727
Total income 46,777,937 61,975,062
Expenses
Purchase of stock in trade 29 6,219,633 887.905
Changes in inventories of stock in trade 30 (2.686,367) 226.623
Trading in Future & Options (net) 26 2,302,419 6,942,427
Employee benefits expenses 31 2,572,062 2,487,030
Depreciation and amortization expenses 32 3,193,629 3,013,677
Finance Costs 33 B18,540 553.092
Changes in Fair value on Loans, advances & receivables - -
Other expenses 34 3,200,445 3,812,892
Total expenses 15,620,360 17,923,645
Profit before tax 31,157.576 44,051,417
Tax expense:
Current tax 5,808,100 5,614,400
Deferred tax (credit)/charge 18,963 3,523.048
Income tax for earlier year 394,908 -
Total tax expense 6,221,971 9,137.448
Profit for the year 24,935,606 34,913,969
Other comprehensive income (OCT)
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Remeasurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans
Tax impact on above » =
Ttems that will be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Changes in fair value of fair value through OCI (FVOCI) debt securities
Tax impact on above
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 24,935,606 34,913,969
Earnings Per Share (Basic and Diluted) (in Rs.) 33 3.35 4.69
Significant accounting policies A
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 2-b4

As per our attached report of even date

For V K Beswal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101083W

Sdi-

Sdy/-
CA Nishit S Agrawal Liza Kothari
Partner Managing Director
Membership No : 159882 DIN No.: 01273272

Place : Mumbai
Date. :01/09/2022

For and on Behalf of Board of Directors

Nitesh Kothari
Director
DIN No.: 00024195
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KOTHART WORLD

Cudaneing Uadusr. Muclaling Trusl.

KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED

CIN ¢ U65993IMH1985PLCO3S005

Stundalone Cash Flow Statement For The Year Ended March 31, 2022
{Currency: Amount in Rupees)

2021-22 1020-21
Ao Cash Now from operating sctivities:
Net Profit before Tax J1157,576 44,051,417
Adjustments: for:
Depreciation 3193620 3.013.677
Provision for ECL & Fair Value Changes (249.365) {13.858.423)
Interest om Income Tax Refund (68,205) s
Profit on sike of Investment « (920,727)
Finance Costs H18,540 RRENELA
Conringent Provisions against Standard Asscis (74.407) =
Contingent Provisions against sub-Standard Assels - -
Provision for Expected eredi loss - 320251
Price Period Income - 4,122.801
Divdend [ncorme on lovestmenls (35.067] (21.038)
Operating profit before working capital changes 34,742,801 37,201,050
Adjusiments for:
Increase{ Decrease) in payables 662,006 274.120)
Increase/{ Decnease) i long-term provasions - -
Increase/{ Decrease) in other financial labilites 195,687 flR.a14
Increase/(Decrease) in other non-financial habilitses - {51 1.000)
{Increase )/ Decrease in inveniories (2.686,367) 226,623
{Increase VDecrease i other financul assets (1.012,932) (3,523.402)
(Increase )V Decrease in other non-financial asscts (183,126) (132.074)
(Inerease PDecrense in ans (29,762 468) 213,069
(Inercase)Deerease in other bank balances 120,779.220) {26,921.271)
{Tnerease PDiecrease in recevibles 7018, 149 (6,406 T36)
Cash generated from operations (18.112,383) 460,553
Direct taxes refind /| (paid) {Net) (6,022,835) (6,889_154)
Net cash Generated from operating setivities (24.135.318) (6.428.601)
H. Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchuse of Property, Plant & Equipments (1.183,172) (4,270.329)
Purchiase of Property Tnvestments [308,452) (83182
Proceeds from sale of fied ussets - -
Proceeds/{ Purchases) from sale of Investment (500,000} #3000
Interest on [ncome Tax Refind 68,205 -
Non current investments - -
Drividend meome [Tom investiment 35,067 21,038
Net cash generated from (used inj investing activities {1.888,352) 4,027,527
€. Cash Now from Financing activities:
Procecds (Repayment) of unsecured loans from bormowings (Net) (500, 1060) 3724109
Finance Cost (311,894) (144,084)
Equity Shares issued - -
Share Premium
Share moncy received ™ %
Dhividend including dividend distribution tax - -
Net eash inflow [ (outflow) from financing sctivities (13,0041 3,580,025
0. Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (26.836.669) 1,178,951
E. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 26,874,007 25,695,055
F. Cash and cash equivalents af the end of the vear 37.338 Zb.s’ﬂ.L
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Asal Asat
Particulars 31-03-2022 31-03-2021
Balance with Banks
- in Current Accounis 28.958 364,725
- inn Fixed Deposits (with original maturity pedod not mare than 3 monthsy - 26,507 438
Cash on hand 8,380 1,844
Total cush and cash equivalents at the end of the year 37338 26,874,007

Motes:

.  Statement of cash flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out i the Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows” as

specified m the Companies | Indinn Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
b Previous years figures are regrouped | recasted wherever necessary.

Significant accounting policies
See nccompanying notes forring part of the financial statements

As per our attached report of even date
For V K Beswal & Associates

Chartered Accountants
ICAIL Firm Registration No.: 101083W

Sd/- Sd/-
CA Nishit 5 Agrawal Liza Kothari
Purinier Munagine Mrector

Membership Mo : [ 59882

Place : Mumbai
Date. :01/0%2022

DIN No.: 01273272

For and on Behall of Board of Directors

Sd/-

Nitesh Kothari
Director
DIN N D024 195
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KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED

KOTHART WORLD
Cnhaneing Undusr. Builaing Trusd.

WOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITEDR
CIN 1 UeS9UINTH | 85 PLCRISS

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity as on March 31, 2002
Warreney: Aminmi i Rupeesh

NogeNe. | Number Amwuni

Halamce av at Apeil 1, 2028
[(Changes in Equity Share Capilal daring the year
Balamer as at 31 March 2021
Changes in Equity Share Capital daring the year
Bulamce ay at 31 Murch 2022

20 TART 500 74,475,140

:3,315.1;91
74.1;5{;'!

ther eogulty
Far the year ended March 31, 2021

Reserves onad surplos

Tiiher
Comprehensive
lmcaim

Emplayee
stock
i
wilsiamiling
accoant

Securiiles
[iFwT i A

Stututory
Feserve

Fanid

General reserve

Retained
earnlings-
wilier thas
FEEasurEment
of post
el i
benedit

Retnined
earmings-
remeasurement
of post
Ejlay R
benefit
whligativms

Other
cnmigrehensdie
ivconiie i
delnt seeurities

Total other equity

alamee as at April 1, 2020
Profit for the year
(Okher Comprehensive Inctnne

AT 345,000

¥3265.924 1 [ 000

92,342 954
34,918 969

. 1RO TR
34,917,969

Totsl Comprehensive Income far the vear 37,545,000
Transfer 10 reserve fumd LS 4510 (1) OF Reserwe
Hank O India Act, 1934

Frior Period Renwls & Inierest Income -
Tax Expenscs related to Prior Perod Renmlbs &
Inlered Income

Fremburm on issoe of shases =
Share based paymem
Dividends

Dividend Distribution Tax

23,265,924 11H1000)

TSP B89

127.276.923

(750,389

1107 A28)

IRT.ORT.RAT

L]
4,1 22801

(1087 32%)

HBalsmce av ot March 31, 2021 A7, 848 000 -

M MBS R 2 1M1, )

122,762,507

140,073,320

Balamer ax af April 1, w2 37545 000
Proiit for the e

(Orher Comprehansive lecome

ELTE TS T L)

RARART

161,071,320
24,935 1

Total Comprehensive Income for the year ITAES.000 =
Transfer 1o reserve fund U/S 4510 (1)-OF Reservel
Bank OF India Act, 1934 - -
Frior Peried Rentals & Intorest Iscume

Tax Bxpenses reluicd o Prioe Period Remals &
Inleres Income

Premiur on (s e of sl

[Share based paymem . .
Dievidenids - -

Dyvidend Dhitribution Tax

MIAES BT 11wl e

AYRTIATI -

[ELCITNTE]

H9R7,121)

216,008,926

Batlamee as i Mareh 31, i032 AT 345000 -

35 451.933

142,710,993

216,008 036

“The aecompanying nobes are an integral part of the financial stategments
s pot dur aniached repon of oven daie

For ¥V K Boswal & Asyociates
Chariered Accountumts
WAL Fiim Registrition Noc: 10 HETW

Sd/- Sa/-
O A Ninhit 5 Agrawal Lira Kothari
Panner Mnmnging Director
Menhership Mo ;| 55882 NN Mo, 01273272

PMace  Mumndba|
hate A1} O HREE

For and an Behalf of Board of Directary

Sd/-
Nitesh Kothard
Enrecior
DN No,, 000347195
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KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED

CIN : U65993MH1985PLC035005

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity as on March 31, 2022
{Currency: Amount in Rupees)

Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements

Brief Profile
Kathari World Finance Limited (‘the Company) i1s a Public Company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 on January 5, 1985

and registered as a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, The Company is engaged in
the business of Lending & Investment Activities.

1 Significant Accounting Policies :

1.

Statement of compliance:
The financial staiements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Indian Accounting

Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) issued by
Ministry of Corporate Affairs in exercise of the powers conferred by section 133 read with sub-section (1) of section 210A of the
Companies Act, 2013, In addition, the guidance notes/announcements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT) are

also applied along with compliance with other statutory promulgations require a different treatment.

1.2 Basis of preparation:
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

i Lewvel | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company can access al reporting
date

1. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for the asset or hability, either directly or
indirectly: and

ili. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets or liabilities

1.3 Presentation of financial statements:
The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format preseribed in the Division 111 to
Schedule M1 1o the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”) applicable for Non-Banking Finance Companies (“NBFC”). The Statement of Cash
Flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 *Statement of Cash Flows™, The disclosure requirements with
respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule 11 to the Act, are presented by way
of notes forming part of the financial statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified accounting
Standards and the SEBI ( Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 20135
Use of Estimates:
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make estimates, judgments and
assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the period. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the Management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the
estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their
effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19:
The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the amounts of revenue,
investment in subsidiaries & Investment in Financial Assets. In developing the assumptions relating to the impact of possible future
uncertainties in global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval of these financial results
has used internal and external sources of information including cconomic forecasts. The Company has also assessed the impact of this
whole situation on its capital and financial resources, profitability, liquidity position, internal financial controls etc. and is of the view that
based on its present assessment this situation does not materially impact this financial result. However, the impact assessment of COVID-
19 15 a continuing process, given the uncertamtics associated with its nature & duration. The company will continue to monitor any
material changes (o future cconomic condition,
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1.4 Revenue recognition:
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably

measured and there exists reasonable certainty of its recovery. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or

receivable as reduced for estimated customer credits and other similar allowances,

i. Interest and dividend income:
Interest income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and for all financial instruments except for those classified as held for
trading or those measured or designated as at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) is measured using the effective interest method
(EIR).
The calculation of the EIR includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are incremental and directly
attributable to the specific lending arrangement, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. For financial assets at FVTPL
transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss at initial recognition.
The interest income is caleulated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of non-credit impaired financial assets (i.e. at the
amortised cost of the financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance). For credit-impaired financial assets the
interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the amortised cost of the credit-impaired financial assets (i.¢, the gross carrying
amount less the allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs)). For financial assets originated or purchased credit-impaired (POCI) the EIR
reflects the ECLs in determining the future cash Nows expected to be received from the financial asset.
Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive dividend is established by the reporting date and no significant
uncertainty as to collectability exists,

ii. Fee and commission income:
Fee and commission income and expense include fees other than those that are an integral part of EIR. The fees included in the Company
statement of profit and loss include among other things fees charged for servicing a loan, non-utilisation fees relating to loan
commitments when it is unlikely that these will result in a specific lending arrangement and loan advisory fees.
Fee and commission expenses with regards to services are accounted for as the services are received,

iii. Rental Income :
Income from operating leases is recognised in the Statement of profit and less as per contractual rentals unless another systematic basis is
mare representative of the time pattern in which benefit derived from the leased asset is diminished.

iv. Net gain or fair value change:
Any differences between the fair valugs of the financial assets classified as fair value through the profit or loss, held by the Company on
the balance sheet date is recognised as an unrealised gain/loss in the statement of profit and loss. In cases there is a net gain n aggregate,
the same is recognised in “Net gains or fair value changes” under revenue from operations and if there is a net loss the same is disclosed
“Expenses”, in the statement of profit and loss.

v. Income from financial instruments at FVTPL:
Income from financial instruments at FVTPL includes all gains and losses from changes in the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities at FVTPL except those that are held for trading,

vi. Other operational revenue:
Other operational revenue represents income earned from the activities incidental to the business and 18 recognised when the right to
receive the income is established as per the terms of the contract.

L5 Property, plant and equipment (PPE):

i PPE is recognised when it 1s probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. PPE is stated at original cost net of lax/duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated depreciation and
cumulative impairment, if any. Cost includes all direct cost related to the acquisition of PPE and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Company's accounting policy.

. For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to adopt as deemed cost, the carrying value of PPE measured as per Previous GAAP

less accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment on the transition date of April 1, 2017. In respect of revalued assets, the value

as determined by valuers as reduced by accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment is taken as cost on transition date,
il Land and buildings held for use are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

iv. PPE not ready [or the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed as “capital workin-progress”.

v. Depreciation is recognised using straight line method so as to write off the cost of the assets (other than frechold land)) less their residual
values over their useful lives specified in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013, or in case of assets where the useful life was
determined by technical evaluation, over the useful life so determined. Depreciation method is reviewed at each financial year end to
reflect expected pattern of censumption of the future economie benefits embodied in the asset. The estimated useful life and residual
values are also reviewed at each Ninancial year end with the effect of any change in the estimates of useful life/ residual value is accounted
on prospective basis.

vi. Depreciation for additions to/deductions from, owned assets is calculated pro rata to the period of use, Depreciation charge for impaired
assets is adjusted in future periods in such a manner that the revised carrying amount of the asset is allocated over its remaining useful
life.
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vii.  Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of lease term and their useful life on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there 1 no reasonable certainty that the Company shall obtain ownership of the assets at the end of the lease term, such
assets are depreciated based on the useful hife prescribed under Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013 or based on the useful life adopted
by the Company for similar assets,

viii. An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment 1s
recognised in profit or loss.

1.6 Intangible assets:

i.  Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are atiributable to the asset will Mow to the
enterprise and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible asscts are stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits availed, if
any, less accumulated amortisation and cumulative impairment. Direct expenses and administrative and other general averhead expenses
that are specifically attributable to acquisition of intangible assets are allocated and capitalised as a part of the cost of the intangible
assels,

i, Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Intangible assets under development™.

iii. Intangible assets are amortised on straight line basis over the estimated useful life. The method of amortisation and useful life are

reviewed at the end of each accounting year with the effect of any changes in the estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
iv. An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

L.7 Investment property:

I Investment properties are properties (including those under construction) held to earn rentals and/ or capital appreciation are classified as
investment property and are measured and reported at cost, including transaction costs.

ii.  For transition to Ind AS, the group has clected to adopt as deemed cost, the carrying value of investment property as per Previous GAAP

less accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment on the transition date of April 01, 2018, In respect of revalued assets, the value

as determined by valuers as reduced by accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment is taken as cost on transition date.

iii. Depreciation is recognised using straight line method so as to write off the cost of the investment property less their residual values over
their useful lives specified in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013, or in the case of assets where the useful life was determined by
technieal evaluation, over the useful life so determined.

iv. Depreciation method is reviewed at each financial year end 1o reflect the expected pattern of consumption of the future benefits embodied
in the investment propenty, The esumated useful Tife and residual values are also reviewed at cach financial year end and the effect of any
change in the estimates of useful life/ residual value 1s accounted on prospective basis. Frechold land and properties under construction
are not depreciated

v. An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property i1s permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of property is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the same period.

L8 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill
i.  As at the end of each accounting year, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its PPE and intangible assets to determine whether

there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If such indication exists, the PPE, investment property and
intangible assets are tested for impairment so as to determine the impairment loss, if any. Goodwill and the intangible assets with
indefinite life are tested for impairment each year.

. Impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an assel exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount 1s determined:

in the case of an individual asset, at the higher of the net selling price and the value in use; and

b, in the case of a cash generating unit (the smallest identifiable Company of assets that generates independent cash flows), at the higher of
the cash generating unit’s net selling price and the value in use.

iii. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pretax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted

v, If recoverable amount of an assel (or cash generaling unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, such deficil 1s recognised
immediately in the Statement of Profil and Loss as impairment loss and the carrying amount of the asset (or cash gencrating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For this purpose, the impairment loss recognised in respect of a cash gencrating unit is allocated first to
reduce the carrving amount of any goodwill allocated to such cash generating unit and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets of the cash generating unit on a pro-rata basis.

v.  When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit), except for allocated goodwill,

15 increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying

amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss is recognised for the asset (or cash generating unit) in prior years. A

reversal of an impairment loss (other than impairment loss allocated 1o goodwill) 1s recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and

Loss.
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1.9 Employee benefits:

i. Short term employee benefits:

a) Employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term employee benefits and are
expensed in the period in which the employee renders the related service. Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits
are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expeeted to be paid in exchange for the related service.

ii. Post-employment benefits:

a) Defined contribution plans: The Company's superannuation scheme, state governed provident fund scheme, employee state insurance
scheme and employee pension scheme are defined contribution plans. The contribution paid’ payable under the schemes is recognised
during the period in which the employee renders the related service

b) Defined benefit plans: The employees’ gratuity fund schemes and employee provident fund schemes managed by board of trustees
established by the Company, the post-retirement medical care plan and the Parent Company pension plan represent defined benefit plans.
The present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Umit Credit
Method.

¢)  The obligation 1s measured al the present value of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate based on the market yield on
government securities of a matunty period equivalent to the weighted average maturity profile of the defined benefit obligations at the
Balance Sheet date.

d) Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses. the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability or asset) and any change in the effect of asset ceiling (if applicable) is recognised in other comprehensive income
and s reflected in retained carnings and the same is not cligible to be reclassified to profit or loss,

¢) Defined benefit costs comprising current service cost, past service cost and gains or losses on settlements are recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss as employee benefit expenses. Interest cost implicit in defined benefit employee cost is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss under finance cost. Gains or losses on settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognised when the seltlement occurs,
Past service cost is recognised as expense at the carlier of the plan amendment or curtailment and when the Company recognises related
restructuring costs or termination benefits.

f) In case of funded plans, the fair value of the plan assets is reduced from the gross obligation under the defined benefit plans to recognise
the obligation on a net basis.

iii. Long term employee benefits:

a) The obligation recognised in respect of long term benefits such as long term compensated absences is measured at present value of
estimated future cash flows expected to be made by the Company and is recognised in a similar manner as in the case of defined benefit
plans vide (i1) (b} above.

iv. Termination benefits:

a) Termination benefits such as compensation under employee separation schemes are recognised as expense when the Company’s offer of
the termination benefit is accepied or when the Company recognises the related restructuring costs whichever is earlier,

110 Leases:
The Company determines whether an arrangement contains a lease by assessing whether the fulfilment of a transaction is dependent on
the use of a specific asset and whether the transaction conveys the right to control the use of that asset to the Company in return for
payment.

i.  The Company as lessee
The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from nonlease components of the contract and
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components. The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right 1o use
the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception comprses

of the amount of initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date.
Certain lease arrangements include options to extend er terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. The right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities nclude these options when 1t is reasonably certain that such options would be exercised.

The right-ol-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and
adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from

the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use assetAssets given under a finance lease are recognised
as 4 receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. Lease income is recognised over the period of the lease so as to yield
a constant rate of returmn on the net investment in the lease.

Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there 15 any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Lease hability is measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease
payments are discounted vsing the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying
amount to reflect interest on the lease hability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications. The Company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease
liability as an adjustment 1o the right-of-use asset. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a
further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in
statement of profit and loss,

Variable lcase payments not included in the measurement of the lease Habilitics are expensed to the statement of profit and loss in the
period in which the events or conditions which trigger those payments oceur.

In a sale and lease back transaction, the Company measures right-of-use asset ansing from the leaseback as the proportion of the previous

carrying amount of the asset that relates to the right-of-use retained. The gain or loss that the company recognises in the statement of

profit and loss is limited to the proportion of the total gain or loss that relates to the rights transferred to the buyer.
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Operating lease - Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a straight- line basis over the
term of the relevant lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset is diminished. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying value of
the teased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Finance lease —When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value of minimum lease payments is recognised as a
receivable. The difference between the gross receivable and the present value of receivable is recognised as uncamed finance income.
Lease income is recognised over the term of the lease using the net investment method before tax, which reflects a constant periodic rate
of return.

Financial instruments:

Financial assets and financial labilities are recognised in the Company's balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the mstrument.

Recognised financial assets and financial labilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction cosis that are directly atiributable to

the acquusition or 1ssue of Nnancial assels and financial Labilities (other than financial assets and financial habilities at FVTPL) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs

directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and presented on net basis in the balance sheet when there is a current legally
enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and it is intended to either settle on net basis or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously,

Financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) if these financial assets are held within
a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash Aows that give rise on specified dates to sole payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding and by selling financial assets.

Debt instruments at amortised cost or at FVTOCT

The Company assesses the classification and measurement of a financial asset based on the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
asset and the Company's business model for managing the asset.

For an asset to be classified and measured al amortised cost. i1s contractual terms should give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the prineipal outstanding (SPPI).

For an asset to be classified and measured at FVTOCI, the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash Mlows and selling financial assets; and the contractual terms of instrument give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The Company has more than one business mode! for managing its financial instruments which reflect how the Company manages its
financial assets in order 10 generate cash flows. The Company’s business models determine whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling financial assets or both.

The Company considers all relevant information available when making the business model assessment. However this assessment is not
performed on the basis of scenarios that the Company does not reasonably expect to occur, such as so-called ‘worst case” or *stress case’
scenarios, The Company takes into account all relevant evidence available such as:

how the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated and reported (o the
entity’s key management personnel;

the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and, in particular, the
way in which those risks are managed; and

how managers of the business are compensated (e.g. whether the compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or on the
contractual cash flows collected).

The Company reassess its business models each reporting period to determine whether the business models have changed since the
preceding period. For the current and prior reporting period the Company has not identified a change in its business models.

When a debt instrument measured at FVTOCI is derecognised, the cumulative gain/loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss. In contrast, for an equity investment designated as measured at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain/loss previously
recognised in OCT is not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss but transferred within equity.

Debt instruments that are subsequently measured at amaortised cost or at FVTOCT are subject to impairment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs direetly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and habilities
at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in profit or loss.

De-recognition

A lmancial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar linancial assets) is primarily de-
recognised when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash Mows from the asset or has assumed an obligation 1o pay the received cash flows in
full without material delay to a third party under a *pass-through® arrangement; and
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iit.  either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the nsks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset,
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has
retained.

Il. Financial liabilities

a. Fimancial habilities, including denvatives, which are designated for measurement al FVTPL are subsequently measured al fuir value.
Financial guaraniee contracts are subsequently measured ai the amount of impairment loss allowance or the amount recognised at
inception net of cumulative amortisation, whichever is higher.
All other financial liabilities including loans and borrowings are measured at amortised cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method.

b. A financial liability is derecognised when the related obligation expires or is discharged or cancelled.

1.12 Write off:
Loans and debt securities are written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering the financial asset (either in its
entirety or a portion of it), This is the case when the Company determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. A write-off constimutes a derecognition event. The
Company may apply enforcement activities to financial assets written off. Recoveries resulting from the Company’s enforcement

activities will result in impairment gains.

113 Impairment:
The Company recognises loss allowances for ECLs on the following financial instruments that are not measured at FVTPL:

i, Loans and advances to customers;

i Debt investment securities;

i1, Trade and other receivable;

. Lease receivables:

v. lrevocable loan commitments issued: and

i. Financial puarantee contracts issued.

Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash Nows of the
financial asset have occurred. Credit-impaired financial assets are referred to as Stage 3 assets. Evidence of ereditimpairment includes

observable data about the following events:

i sigmificant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

il a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

il the lender of the borrower, for ¢conomic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted 1o the
borrower a concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

v, the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties; or

v.  the purchase of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.
It may not be possible to identify a single discrete event—instead, the combined effect of several events may have caused financial assets
to become credit-impaired. The Company assesses whether debt instruments that are financial assets measured at amortised cost or
FVTOCI are credit-impaired at each reporting date. To assess il corporate debr instruments are eredit impaired, the Company considers
factors such as bond yields, credit ratings and the ability of the borrower to raise funding.
A loan is considered credit-impaired when a concession is granted to the borrower due to a deterioration in the borrower’s financial
condition, unless there is evidence that as a result of granting the concession the risk of not receiving the contractual cash flows has
reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment. For financial assets where concessions are contemplated but not
granted the asset 15 deemed credil impaired when there is observable evidence of credit-impairment including mesting the definition of
default. The definition of default (see below) includes unlikeliness to pay indicators and a back-stop if amounts are overdue for 0 days or
more,
Significant increase in credit risk
The Company monitors all financial assets and financial guarantee contracts that are subject to the impairment requirements Lo assess
whether there has been a significant inerease i eredit risk since initial recogmition. If there has been a significant increase in credit risk
the Company will measure the loss allowance based on lifetime rather than | 2-month ECL.
In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting date based on the remaining maturity of the instrument with the
risk of a default occurring that was anticipated for the remaining maturity at the current reporting date when the financial instrument was
first recognised. In making this assessment, the Company considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort, based on the
Company’s historical experience and expert credit assessment.
Given that a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition 15 a relative measure, a given change, in absalute terms, in the
Probability of Default will be mare significant for a financial instrument with a lower initial PD than compared to a financial instrument
with a higher PD.
As a back-stop when loan asset not being a corporate loans becomes 30 days past due, the Company considers that a significant increase
in eredit risk has oceurred and the asset is in stage 2 of the impairment model, r.e. the loss allowance 1s measured as the lifetime ECL in
respect of all retail assets, In respect of the corporate loan assets, shifting 1o Stage 2 has been rebutied using historical evidence from own
portfolio to a threshold of 60 days past due, which is reviewed annually,
Purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets
POCT financial assets are treated differemtly because the asset is credit-impaired at initial recognition. For these assets, the Company
recognises all changes in lifetime ECL since initial recognition as a loss allowance with any changes recognised in profit or loss. A
favourable change for such assets creates an impairment gain,
Definition of default
Critical 1o the determination of ECL 1s the definition of default. The definition of default s used in measuring the amount of ECL and in

the determination of whether the loss allowance is based on 12-month or lifetime ECL, as default is a component of the probubility of
default (PD) which affects both the measurement of ECLs and the identification of a significant increase in credit risk.

Annual Report 2021-2022 Page - 40



KOTHART WORLD
KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED Coamatng Cidss, ISouctaliny T

The Company considers the following as constituting an event of default:

i.  the borrower is past due more than 90 days on any malerial credit obligation Lo the Company: or

ii.  the borrower is unlikely to pay its ¢redit obligations to the Company in full.
The definition of default is appropriately tailored to reflect different characteristics of different types of assets.
When assessing if the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligation, the Company takes into account both qualitative and quantitative
indicators. The information assessed depends on the type of the asset, for example in corporate lending a qualitative indicator used is the
admittance of bankruptey petition by National Company Law Tribunal. which 1s not relevant for remail lending. Quantitative indicators,
such as overdue status and non-payment on another obligation of the same counterparty are key inputs in this analysis. The Company uses
a variety of sources of information 1o assess default which are either developed imternally or obtained from external sources. The
definiton of default is applied consistently o all financial instruments unless informaiion becomes available thar demonstrates that
another defaull definition is more appropriate for a particular financial mstrument.
With the exception of POCI financial assets (which are considered separately below), ECLs are required to be measured through a loss
allowance at an amount equal to:

i.  12-month ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that result from those default events on the financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date, (referred 1o as Stage 1); or

il full lifetime ECL, i.c. lifetime ECL that result from all possible default events over the life of the financial instrument, (referred to as
Stage 2 and Stage 3),
A loss allowance for full lifetime ECL is required for a financial instrument if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since mitial recognition (and consequently to credit impaired financial assets). For all other financial instruments, ECLs are
meastred at an amount equal to the | 2-month ECL.
ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of the present value of credit losses. These are measured as the present value of the difference
between the cash flows duc to the Company under the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive arising from the
weighting of multiple future economic scenarios, discounted at the asset’™s EIR.

i for financial guarantce contracts, the ECL is the difference between the expected payments to reimburse the holder of the guaranteed debt
instrument less any amounts that the Company expects to receive from the holder, the debtor or any other party.
The Company measures ECL on an individual basis, or on a collective basis for portfolios of loans that share similar economic risk

characteristics.

1.14  Modification and derecognition of financial assets
A modification of a financial asset ocours when the contractual terms governing the cash flows of a financial asset are renegotinted or
otherwise modified between initial recognition and maturity of the financial asset. A modification affects the amount and/or timing of the
contractual cash flows either immediately or at a future date. In addition, the introduction or adjustment of existing covenants of an
existing loan may constitute a modification even if these new or adjusted covenants do not yet affect the cash Nows immediately but may
affect the cash flows depending on whether the covenant is or is not met (c.g. a change to the increase in the interest rate that arises when
covenants are breached).

The Company renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulty o maximise collection and minimise the risk of default. A loan
forbearance is granted in cases where although the borrower made all reasonable efforts to pay under the original contractual terms, there
15 @ high risk of default or default has nlready happened and the borrower is expected to be able to meet the revised terms. The revised
terms in most of the cases include an extension of the maturity of the loan, changes to the timing of the cash flows of the loan (principal
and interest repayment), reduction in the amount of cash flows due (principal and interest forgiveness) and amendments to covenants.
When a financial asset 1s modified the Company assesses whether this modification results i derecognition. In accordance with the
Company’s policy a modification results in derecognition when it gives rise to substantially different terms, To determine if the modified
terms are substantially different from the original contractual terms the Company considers the following:

i.  Qualitative factors, such as contractual cash flows after modification are no longer SPPL

i, Change in currency or change of counterparty,

1. The extent of change in interest rales, maturity, covenants,

If these do not clearly indicate a substantial modification, then;

a.  In the case where the financial asset is derecognised the loss allowance for ECL is remeasured at the date of derecognition o determine
the net carrving amount of the asset a1 that date. The difference between this revised carrving amount and the fair value of the new
financial asset with the new terms will lead to a gain or loss on derecognition. The new financial asset will have a loss allowance
measured based on 12-month ECL éxcept in the rare occasions where the new loan is considered to be originated-credit impaired. This
applies only in the case where the fair value of the new loan is recognised at a significant discount to its revised par amount because there
remains a high risk of default which has nol been reduced by the modification. The Company monitors eredit risk of modified finaneial
assets by evaluating qualiative and quantitative information, such as if the borrower 1s in past due status under the new terms.

b, When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified and the modification does not result in derecognition, the Company
determines if the financial asset’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition by comparing:

i.  the remaining lifetime PD estimated based on data at initial recognition and the original contractual terms; with

i, the remaining lifetime PD at the reporting date based on the modified terms,

For financial assets modified, where modification did not result in derecognition, the estimate of PD reflects the Company’s ability 1o
collect the modified cash flows taking into account the Company’s previous experience of similar forbearance action, as well as various
behavioural indicators, mcluding the borrower’s payment performance against the modified contractual terms. If the credit risk remaimns
significantly higher than what was expected at initinl recognition the loss allowance will continue 10 be measured ot an amount equal o
lifetime ECL. The loss allowance on forborne loans will gencrally only be measured based on 12-month ECL when there is evidence of
the borrower™s improved repayment behaviour following modification leading 1o a reversal of the previous significant increase in credit
risk.
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Where a modification does not lead to derecognition the Company calculates the modification gain/loss comparing the gross carrying
amount before and after the modification (excluding the ECL allowance). Then the Company measures ECL for the modified asset, where
the expected cash flows arising from the modified financial asset are included in caleulating the expected cash shortfalls from the original
asset.

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the asset’s cash flows expire (including expiry arising
from a modification with substantially different terms), or when the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset are transferred (0 another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associaled
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the finuncial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and veceivable and the cumulative gain/loss that had been recognised in OCT and accumulated in equity is recognised in profil or
loss, with the exception of equity investment designated as measured at FVTOCL where the cumulative gain/loss previously recognised in
0OCT is not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in ils entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred
asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under
continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the
transfer. The difference between the camrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain/loss allocated to it that had been recognised in OCI is recognised in
profit or loss. A cumulative gain/loss that had been recognised in OCT is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the
part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts, This does not apply for equity investments
designated as measured at FVTOCI, as the cumulative gain/loss previously recognised in OCI is not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss.

1.15 Presentation of allowance for ECL in the Balance Sheet
Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

i. for financial assets measured at amortised cost: the financial assets are shown at full value in the respective notes and provision are
separatly shown under Note : 17 Provisions;

il for debt instruments measured at FVTOCT: no loss allowance is recognised in Balance Sheet as the carrying amount is at fair value.

1.16 Cash and bank balances:
Cash and bank balances also include fixed deposits, margin money deposits, earmarked balances with banks and other bank balances
which have restrictions on repatriation, Short term and liquid investments being subject to more than nsignificant risk of change i value,
are not included as part of cash and cash equivalents.

1.17 Securities premium account:

i.  Securities premium includes:

a.  The difference between the face value of the equity shares and the consideration received in respect of shares issued pursuant to Stock
Option Scheme,

b, The fair value of the stock options which are treated as expense, if any, in respect of shares allotied pursuant to Stock Options Scheme.

ii.  The issue expenses of securities which qualify as equity instruments are written off against securities premium account.

1.18 Borrowing costs:

Borrowing costs include interest expense calculated using the effective interest method, finance charges in respect of assets acquired on
finance lease and cxchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings, to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment
interest costs.

Borrowing cosis net of any investment income from the temporary imvestment of related borrowings, that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of cost of such asset nll such time the asset is ready for
its intended use or sale. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

1.19 Share-based payment arrangements:
The stock options granted to employees pursuant to the Company’s Stock Options Schemes, are measured at the fair value of the options
at the grant date. The fair value of the options is treated as discount and accounted as employee compensation cost over the vesting period
on a straight-line basis. The amount recognised as expense in each year 15 arrived at based on the number of grants expected 1o vest. If a
erant lapses after the vesting period, the cumulative discount recognised as expense in respect of such grant is transferred to the general
reserve within equity.

1.20 Accounting and reporting of information for Operating Segments:
Operating segments are those components of the business whose aperating results are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision
making body in the Company 1o make decisions for performance assessment and resource allocation. The reporting of segment
information is the same as provided to the management for the purpose of the performance assessment and resource allocation to the
segments. Segment accounting policies are in line with the accounting policies of the Company.
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1.21 Foreign currencies:
i, The functional currency and presentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupee. Functional currency of the Company and foreign

operations has been determined based on the primary economic environment in which the Company and its foreign operations operate
considering the currency in which funds are generated, spent and retained.

il.  Transactions in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency are recorded on initial recognition using the exchange rate at the
transaction date. Al each Balance Sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are reported at the prevailing elosing spol rate. Non-
monetary ilems that are measured in terms of hustorical cost in foreign currency are not retranslated,

Exchange differcnces that arise on settlement of monelary items or on reporting of monetary items at each Balance Sheet date at the

closing spot rate are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the peried in which they arise.
iit,  Financial statements of foreign operations whose functional currency is different than Indian Rupees are translated into Indian Rupees as

follows:
a. assets and liabilities for each Balance Sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that Balance Sheet;
b, income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates; and

¢, all resulting exchange differences are recogmised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as foreign currency
translation reserve for subsequent reclassification to profit or loss on disposal of such foreign operations,

1.22 Taxation:
Current Tax:
Tax on income for the current period is determined on the basis of taxable income (or on the basis of book profits wherever minimum
alternate tax is applicable) and tax credits computed in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and based on the
expected outcome of assessments/appeals.
Deferred Tax:
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Company’s financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in computation of taxable profit and quantified using the tax rates and laws enacted or
substantively enacted as on the Balance Sheet date.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences to the extent that is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be availabie to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets relating to unabsorbed depreciation/business losses/losses under the head “capital gains” are recognised and carried

forward to the extent of available taxable temporary differences or where there is convinecing other evidence that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. Deferred tax assets in respect of unutilised tax credits

which mainly relate to minimum alternate tax are recognised to the extent it is pruhuhlc of such unutilised tax credits will get realised.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the end of reporting period, 1o recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities,

Transaction or event which is recognised outside profit or loss, cither in other comprehensive income or in equity, is recorded along with
the tax as applicable.

1.23 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets:
Provisions are recognised only when:

i.  an Company entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event; and

ii. it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation: and

iii.  a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the abligation
Provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation and when the effect of time value of money is
material, the carrying amount of the provision is the present value of those cash flows. Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure
required to settle a provision is recognised only when it 15 virtually certain that the reimbursement will be received.
Contingent liability is disclosed in case of:

1. & present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required 1o settle the obligation;
and

il. a present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible.
Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. Provisions, contingent liabilitics and contingent asscls
are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.
Where the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under
such contract, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and measured as a provision,

1.24 Commitment:
Commitments are future liahi
estimated amount of contracts remaining (o be executed on capital account and not provided for;

uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid;

funding related commitment to associate companies; and

other non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the extent they are considered material and relevant in the opinion of management.
Other commitments related to sales/procurements made in the normal course of business are not disclosed to avoid excessive details,

s for contractual expenditure, classified and disclosed as follows:

peoR
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1.25 Statement of cash Mlows:
Statement of cash flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing and financing activities.cash flow lrom operating
activities is reported using indirect method adjusting the net profit for the effects of:

i changes (luring the pcn'od n opcmling receivables and pﬂynblcs transactions of a non-cash nature;

i non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, deferred taxes, unrealised gains and losses: and

iti. all other items for which the cash effects arc investing and financing cash flows.
Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Statement of Cash Flows exclude items which are not available for
‘general use as on the date of Balance Sheet.

1.26 Earnings per share:
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share data for its ordinary shares. Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing

the profit or loss atiributable to ordinary sharcholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the vear. Diluted earnings per share is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.

1.27 Key source of estimation:
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires that the management of the Company makes estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of income and expenses of the period, the reported balances of assets and liabilities and the
disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial statements. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates include useful lives of property, plant and equipment & intangible assets,
expected credit loss on loan books, future obligations in respect of retirement benefit plans, fair value measurement ete, Difference, il any,
between the actual results and estimates is recognised in the period in which the results are known,

1.28 Operating cycle for current and non-current classification:
Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company entities and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their realisation

in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating evele as 12 months for the pumpose of classification of its assets and

liabilities as current and non-current.

1.29 Statutory Reserve
In accordance with Section 43 - IC of the Reserve Bank of India (Amendment) Aet 1997, Twenty percent of the profit after taxation has
been transferred to Statutory Reserve,

1.30 Security of Loans Given
Housing Loans/ Loans against property are granted are secured by equitable registered mortgage of property and I or undertaking to create
a security. Other Secured Loans are secured against hypothecation of respective assets.
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Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statcments for the vear ended 35t March, 2022
1Currency:. Amount in Rupees)
Noke 2: Cash and cosh equivilents
Asut Asat
ooty ILe3-2022 31-03-2021
Cash o hand B30 1,544
Balansces with hanks i curmen) accounts 28,958 Jod, 725
Term deposits with origmal maturity upte 3 numihs = 26,507 438
Total n3|  rexam
Note 3 : Baiik bubinces other than cash and eash equlvalents
Asat Asal
Enrshotins 31033022 31032011
Balances with Banks :
Dreposits with Banks maturity over more than 3 Months and less than 12 months 594,332 10,856,113
Deeposits with Banks misturity over more thun 12 Months B4, 3R 420 53,746,417
Total 85,281,752 4,002,530
# Details of 1erm deposits - under lien
Motes 1 1) Halunce includes R Wil iprevioos yvear Bs, S.03 2340 ) which was kepl as depesit with bank lor issaing of hank guaraniee foc Thee DNH Power Corporation Lid.
Note 4 @ B L
Particulars Agat Azt
31-03-2022 3-03-2021
I Trade reccivables
a)  Trade seectvahles considered good - Secured
by Trade receivables considered good - Un-Securad fed 1M 2578.211
) Trade receivables doubifial - .
Less  Prowision for doubtfsll debts
d) Trade Receivables which bave Low eredit risk = *
€] Trade Receivables which have significant bserease in Credic Risk: aid
N Trade Receivables wiich hve crodit mmpased - =
A f6d, 134 LETHIIN
I Oher Receivables
Unseeured, Considered Good
Cash Segment 11,204, (MM 10,0608, 1 6%
B 11,214,006 100, 168
Total 11.875.231 fﬂj'ﬂ

No trade or other receivable are due fron director or other officers of the Cempany either severmily or jointly with any otber person, o from. finns or private Companies respectively in which any director s o

partier. & director or a member

Nutee 4.1 ¢ For trade receivables outstanding, following sgeing sehedulbe shall be given:
Trade Recelvibles agelng schedule due for pay ment

a} For the Year ended Narch 31, 2022

Outstunding for following periods from due deteol payment
Particuls
et B months-1 vear 1-2 vears 2-3 years “n::_:::' 3 Total
i Undisputed Tradercesrvables - considered good - % = 11L.ETR.231
il Undisputed TradeReccivables - considered doubtful - - -
i Dispated TradeReceivables considerad good - - -
iv Disputed Trudel bles considereddoubelil ”
) For the Yeur ended March 31, 2021
Quistanding for following perivds from due dateol payment
Particubars Lews than & Muore than 3
& months-1 vear 1-2 years 2-3 years ’ Toaul
manths NEArs
i Undisputed Tradereceivables - consadercd good 12,586,380 - - - - 12586380
i Undisputed TradeReceivahles - consdered doubtful . = = ¥
i Disputed TrudeReesivables considercd good - - - . -
\iv Dispured TradeReceivables considercddoubefiil - - - - - -
Note 8¢ Inventory
As at Asnt
Fareies 31-03-2022 31-03-2021
Shiares ond debentures (held as stock in trada) (Refer Note 41 5.152.057 TAGSH90
Total 5,152,057 2465690
Node -
I The Cest of the stock ang in the imventory is 9.9748,642 6,753,937
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KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED

Nutes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements Tor the year ended 315t March, 1022

(Currency: Amoant m Rupees)

Nole 6 @ |awns
pariioutasi Asal Asal
31-83-2022 Ji-03-2021
Laans & Advances in India-at amortised cost
- puiblic sectar - -
- other Loans
securod {secured by tangible asscis) 709,027 946,559
unseeured 30000, () -
LI 30,709,027 946,553

Credit quality of assets

The tabhe below shivws the credit quality and the maximum expesure 1o crodit risk basce o yoar--emd stige clissification. The amounts presenbed pre gross inpirment loss allowunce.

As ut Asat

kil Stuge 31-03-2022 31-03-2021
Term boans in India-ut amartiscd cost
= puhbic sector St -
- others
secured (secured by mngible psses) Stape-2 9027 946,559
unsecured Sigpe-3 30.(MX), 000 =
30,709,027 46,559
Note 8 : Othier (inancial assels
As at Asai
Pty 31032022 31032011
Unsecuredd, Considered Good wnless othernise siaied
Interest accrued on bank deposits 4,664,640 1,658,891
Interest acorued an Capetal Advamces 2,749,753 2,749,753
Interest accrued others = 4.066
Loan 1o Stwfl - -
Thivadend Reveivable 11,250

Tistal 7,425 64 6,412,710

Note 9 : Current tay assets (Nef)

Asal Asal
Partbculurs
31-03-2022 31-03-2021
Current tax asets
- Advance 1ax and my disducted 5 source (ng of provision for ) 1,062,274 286 TEY
Total 1,962,224 2,286,788
Note 10z Deferred tay assets (Net)
As ot Asst
(bl 31032022 31032011
Dreferved tay Habilities
Depreciation and ansorization 53,052 15343
Deferred tax asset
Dreprecianion and snwortizution -
Contmgent Provision for siandord & Sub-standard asscts 19322 39
Movesment in el deliered tan during the year Total 3,730 (14,767)
Mote 13 : Other non-financial asses
Asat Asn
‘rticular
gl i 10322 032021
Pecwred, Comsidored Crood sdess otherwise snaned
Capiwl advances 55,703,219 55.703.219
Balamoes with Sutwtory/Government Authorilies
- GST Balances 4,083 148712
Prepad Expenses 140911 66,753
Security Deposits
Unsecured 130,467 317,789
Considered Doubeful 1200, 00 1,200,000
Advamice 1o Creditors Mg 919 -
Total ETFIII? S 57, 473
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KOTHART WORLD
Cubaneing Ualuor, /Builaing Tuust.

KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED

Noies Torming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the vear ended 3151 March, 2022

(Currency: Armomt in Rispess)

Naote 14 - Payabbes

Partieitard As al Asal
31-03-2022 Ji-03-2021
Trade pavibles
Total outstangding dues of micne enterprises and small enterprises - -
Total outstanding dues of credsvors ether than micro enterprises and small enterprises - "
Oher payables
Townl outstanding dues of micro enterpriszes and small enterprises - -
Total ourstanding dues of erodivors other than micre enterprises and small crterprises BOL051 228,955
ROL,051 1IR955
Total FI_II.MI 128,955

Nite 14, ] - Trade Payables includes Bs. Nel (Previous Yenrs: R, Nil) payable to =Suppliers™ regwtered whder the Micro, Seiall and Medhisim Enlerpeaes Developient Act, 2006 Na interest hins heen paid s

piyubile by the Conpany during the year to “Supplers”

Note 14.2 = The following ageing schedule shall be given for Trade payables due for payment:-

a) For ihe Year ended March 31, 2022

sterod under this set. The sbove (s bused on the information available with the Company which has boen relied upon by the awditors,

Drurstanding for following perinds from due date of pavment
SN, |Particulars 23 More than 3
Less than 1 vear| 1-2 yeurs P Total
years VALY
i MEME - - - = -
] Oliery -
i Disputed ducs — MSME - - - - -
iv Disputeddues — Others = = s =
b) For the Year ended March 31, 2021
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
SN. | Particulars 2-3 More than 3
Less than | year| 1-2 years ur_E Total
years years
i MEME - - -
i (ihers = = = -
i Disputed dues — MSME - = i
iv Disputeddues — Others. - - - -
Note |5 1 Borrawl hiher thim Debt Securities)
Asar Asat
Particul
s 31032022 31032001
At Amiertized st
Seeured, Term Loan
Froam Financial Instinution (Vehicle Loan) 3,223,002 3,724 10G
Total SIZZ.‘ 3,724,000
Note 15,1 = Term Loan s secured against the velicle,
Note 16 : Oiher financial liabilites
Particalars Asal Asul
31-03-2072 31-h3-2021
Depossits {not as defined o section 2 (31} of Companies Agt, 2013) 5467710 4,973,411
Statutory Payables 205,337 36484
Payubles To Employees 1K, 752
Unher Ligbilitics A70, 75K
Tutal 5,671,563

*Includes amounts pertmning 1o reloed parties Rs. Nil- (previous vear Rs, Nal-)
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KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Standalenc Financial Statements for the year ended 3151 March, 2022
(Currency: Amount in Rupees)

Note 17 : Current fax Habilities (net)

Asat Asal
Particul;
ars 31-03-2022 31-03-2021
Provisiom for s (net of advance Gy) .
Total -
Nate |8 : Provisions
& As ar Asar
Tarticul
e a2 31-03-2021
Provision Tor impairment loss allowanes
Contingent Provisions against Standurd Assets (loan) 6,773 2,366
Contngent Provisions agoinst Sub-Sundard Assets (logn) - -
Expectid eredit lins allowance (receivables ) 503,530 629465
Dosibtfiil loas allowance {depesit) 1, 200, () 1203, 000}
Total 1.E70,312 1,431,831
Nate 19 : Other non-financial Uahitlties
Particalnrs As al Asut
31-03-2022 31-03-2021
Advance fooeepts froun customers - -
hers
Total -
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KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED
CIN : UsS993MILIVESPLOBIS005

Nedes ing part of Standalone Fi e
(Currency: Amount in Rupees)

nts for the year ended 315t March, 2022

Mote 20 : Equity share capital
Particulars 2%l Ak
J1-03-2022 31-03-2021
Authorizned Sharcs
2,50,00,000 (2,50,4,000) Equity Shures of Rs, 10/ each 250, 0040, Wy 250, N0, HHI
Issued, Subscribed and Tully Paid Up
74,37.500 (74,37,500) Equity Shares of Rs, 100- each 4375, (M0 74,375,006
Total 74,375 000 TAITS000 |
mber of equity shares ouistanding ai the ning and at the end of the year.
As at 31-03-2022 Asat 31-03-2021
Number Amount Number Amount
Equity sharcs of Rs.10 fully paid up
Shares outstanding at the begmning of the year T437,500 4,375,000 T.437,500 T4,375, 000
Issucd during the year - & - -
Shares ouistanding ai the end of the TA37, 500 74,375,000 7437500 1'4._.!?5.[!!(}
20.2  Detadls of sharcholders holding more than 5% of shares in the Company.
Name of Shareholder As at 31-03-2022 As at 31-03-2021
No. of shares %o of Holding o, of Shares Yo of Holding
Lizn Nitesh Kothar 660,275 B.88% 600,275 B
Nitesh Pratsprai Kothari 1,195,253 16.07% TOR, 950 14.34%
[ Dahvabhai And Co Private Limited 967,500 13.01% 967,500 13.01%
Gioldeoin Engineers Privare Limined 724,120 9.74% T24,120 0.74%
Ramesh U Ramchandani 1,347,597 18, 12% 1,347,597 1H.12%
203 Details of Promoters holding in the Company.
Nume of Sharcholder As ar 31-03-2022 As at 31-03-2021 % Change during
Mo of shares %o of Holding No. of Shares o of Holding the vear
Prataprai Nandial Kothari Huf 132,500 1.78%: 132,500 1. 78% 0%
Nitesh Prutsprai kothan Huf . 312,500 4. 200 312,500 4, 20| 0%
Nitesh Protuprai Kothari 1,195,253 16.07% 786,056 140.57% | 6%
Liza Nmesh Kothan H60.275 B.BR% 660,275 B .EB%, | 0%
[ Dahyabhoi & Compamy Pyt Lid 907,500 13.01% 967,500 13.00% 0%
Paras Silk Mills Private Limsted 237,450 319% 237,450 3 10% | 0%
Goldeom Engmeers Private Limited 724,120 9.74% 724,120 974% | 0%
Kaikhusroo Manekji Mehta Stone And Engineering 70,500 0.95% 70,500 10.95% | 0%
Kaumidi Prajaprai Kothari 169, 5041 4.97% 360, 500 4075 | 0%
Spectrum Capial Private Lanited 250,004 3.536% 250,000 3.36% | 0%
Steady Mercantile Company Pyt Lud 140,000 1.88% 140,000 1 58% (0%
Internationn] Health Care Products 1id 281,750 1.TR% 281,250 3.78% D%

204 This disclosure in on the basis of legal ownership except where information regarding beneficinl ownership is available from the records of the

Company or from the depositories,

208 The company have one ¢lass of equity shares having par value of R 106- each. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per shure held. In the cvem
of liquidation of the company, holder of equity shares will be entitled fo receie remaming assets of the company. The distribution will be in the

proporion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders,

Note:21 Other equity

. As at As at

Partienlary 31-03-2022 31-03-2021

a) Securitics Premium Account

Balanee as of the begmnmg of the year 37,345 00 37,345,000

Add: Premium on shares ssued during the year = =

Bulinee as at the end of the year A7, 345,00 37,345,000

by Statutory Reserve Fund (Refer note 20,2)

Balance as at the begmming of the year 30,865,812 23,265,924

Add: Transter from Surplus in the Statement of Profit & Loss (Refer note 3.1) 4.987.121 7.599.889

Balance as at the end of the vear 35852.933 3,865,812

) General Reserve

Balunce as at the beginning of the year 1 030, O O, 000

Add: Transter from Surplus in the Statement of Profit & Loss - -

Balance as at the end of the vear 100,000 1040, 004D

) Surplus in the Statement of Profli & Loss

Balunce s at the beginning of the year 122,762,507 52,362,954

Add: Profit for the year 24,935 606 34,913,969

Lass: Transfer to Reserve Fund (Refer footnote 1) 4,987,111 7,399,489

Add: Fafr Value measurement through FVTPL - .

Li xpecied Credit Loss on Loans, Advances, Deposas & Recevables - -

Add : Prior Period Rentuls & Interest Income - £.122800

Less - Tux Expenses related to Prior Period Rentals & Imerest Income - 1,037.328

Balance as ot the end of the year 142,710,952 122,762,507

Totul Reserve & Sorplus (a+h+c-+d) 216,008,925 191,073,319
Notes:-

The amounts appropriated out of the surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss ase as under:
1. Reserve Fund in terms of section 45-1C01) of the Reserve Hank of India Act, 1934

2. Transfer to Specinl Reserve Rs.40.87,121 (Previous Year: Rs.75,99,889) u5 prescribed by section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of [ndia Aet, 1934, being

204 of the profit after tax for the vear,
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KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED
CIN : U65993MHI1985PLCO35005

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

(Currency: Amount in Rupees)

Note 22 : Interest income

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Interest Income on financial assets measured at amortised costs:
- Loans 331.893 129,507
= Fixed Deposits 5.144.508 4922221
- Other 590 4,396
On financial assets measured at FVTPL:
“- Interest income from investments - -
Total 5.476,990 5,056,125
Note 23 ; Renial income
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
License Fees (Net of GST) 37.409,799 35,883,908
Total 37.409,799 35,883,908
Note 24 : Net gain on fair value changes
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
a) Net gain/loss on financial instruments at FVTPL
i) On trading portfolio
- Investments - -
ii) On financial instruments designated at FVTPL - -
b) Others - -
- mutual fund units
- On financial instruments designated at FVTPL (deposits from customer's) 213,340 (6R,010)
¢) Changes in Fair value on Loans, advances & receivables
- Provision for Fair value, measurement 35,925
- Contingency Provisions on Sub-Standard Assets - 13,925,900
- Contingency Provisions on Standard Assets - 533
249,265 13,858,423
Total net gain/(loss) on financial instruments at FVTPL
Fair value chanes:
- realized = :
- unrealized 249,265 13,858,423
Total 249,265 13,858,423
Note 25 : Sale of shares
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Sale of shares 3.538,610 6,234,842
Total 3.538,610 6,234,842
Note 26 : Trading in Future & Options (net Gain/Loss)
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Net Gain/{Loss) in Future & Options 2.302.419) (6,942,427)
Total (2.302,419) (6,942,427)
Note 27 : Dividend Income
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Dividend - Equity Shares held in Stock-in-Trade 35,067 21,038
Total 35,067 21,038
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KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED
CIN : U65993MHI985PLCO3S005

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 3 1st March, 2022

Note 28 : Other income

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Contingency Provisions on Standard Assels - -
Interest on income tax refund 68,205 -
Profit on sale of Fixed Asset - 920,727
Total 68,205 920,727
Note 29 : Purchase of stock in trade
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Equity Shares of Stock-in-Trade 6,219,633 8R7.905
Total 6,219,633 887,905
Note 30 : Changes in inventories of stock in trade
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Opening Inventory 2,465,690 2,692,314
Less ; Closing Inventory 5,152,057 2,465,690
Changes in Inventory (2.686,367) 226,623
Note 31 : Employee benefits expenses
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 2,451,923 2,246,908
Directors Remuneration - 200,000
Stafl welfare Expenses 120,139 40,122
Total 2.572,062 2,487,030
Naote 32 : Depreciation and amortization expenses
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Depreciation on Tangible assets (Also, refer note 12) 531,669 243,695
Depreciation on Intangible assets (Also, refer note 12) 21,748 37,025
Amortization on Investment properties (Also, refer note 11) 2,640,212 2,732,957
Total 3,193,629 3,013,677
Note 33 : Finance Costs
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
On financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
On Security Deposits - INDAS 506,646 409,008
Interest Expenses
- Term Loan 311,804 144,084
- Others
Total 818,540 553,092
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Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 34 : Other expenses

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Advertisement Charges = 34,851
Electricity Charges 45,350 530,708
Repairs others 51,573 70,431
Directors Sitting Fees - 1,200
Listing Fee - 300,000
Changes in Fair value on Loans, advances & receivables

Provision for Fair value, measurement 320,251

Contingency Provisions on Sub-Standard Assets - -

Contingency Provisions on Standard Assets 74.407 -
Lepal and Professional Fees 1,215,314 1.017,935
Auditors Remuneration (Refer Note No. 34.1) 90,000 110,000
Travelling and Conveyance 591,971 207,024
Office Rent 110,940 110,940
Printing and Stationery 26,631 18,555
Property Tax and Maintenance Charges 660,585 605,748
Rates & Taxes 197,336 412,533
Miscellaneous Expenses 136,338 F72:T15

Total 3.200 445 3,812,892
Note 34.1: Auditors Remuneration
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
As Auditor:

Audit Fee 90,000 490,000

Tax Audit Fee - -

Others - 20,000

Total 90,000 110,000

33 *“Earnings per Share™:

Note 35 : Basic and Diluted Earnings per share [EPS] computed in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)

Pactirainty 2021-22 2020-21
Net Profit After Tax available for Equity Shareholders - (Rs.) 24,935,606 34,913,969
Weighted average number of Equity Shares for Basic EPS 7.437,500 7,437,500
Weighted average number of Equity Shares for Diluted EPS 7,437,500 7,437,500
Nominal Value of Ordinary Shares 10 10
Basic & Diluted Earnings per Equity Share 3.35 4.69
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KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED

CIN : UbS993MH 1985 PLCIAS005

Notes forming part of Standalone Fi fal Stat for the year ended 3 st March, 2022
(Currency; Amount 1 Rupees)

Note 38 : Disclosure pertaining to corporate social responsibility expenses
The bt et licable provision of Sev. 135 of the Compamies Act, 20013 viz. Comporate Svenal Respons ibility,

Note 39 ; Disclosure purspant to Ind AS 116 “Leases™
Operating lesses:
i, The Company has paid rent for the premsises originally mken on lease basis with o Tenancy Right. The Company has filed suit in the Session Court for claiming the tenancy right. In
light of claim for tenancy right, n the opinion of manigment lod-AS 116 is nol applicable to the Company. Gross renta) expenses of Rs |, 100840/ (Previous Year Bs, 110,940}
recaognised m the Sutement of Profic and Loss,
il The company has scquired property under lease rights from DIC which ore subsequent given for sub-lease, the compony has not recognized leased assets in the balancesheet a5 the sub-
lease charges are paid in form of tax as per agreement, hence in view of lease hold rights in the opimion of managment Tad-AS 116 is not applicable 1o the Company
iii. Contingent vent recognisced in the Statement of Profit and Loss: R Nil (previous year: R Nil)
iv, Lease rentals recerved for the assets let oul on operating lease art For which are

L

by cither party by providing aotice as mentioned in the agreement. Lease rental

woone | License fees of Rs, 37400799/ (Y. Rs. 3,58.83, 908/ jare recognised as meome m the statement of Profit and Loss under the head 'Revenus from operations’,

v, The fuse ounimum lease rental oo n ble under kbl oy @ lenses i the aggregate and for gach of the following penods:
Farticulars w11-12 2020-21
Wiihin | year of the balance sheet date 2237192 L2583

Due 2 pericd between | year aod 5 year 1,541,665 3604, 500
Ducafier § years » =

Note 40 : Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 107 “Financial Instruments; Dis - il risk

The Company bemg a Core Investment Company as per the Core Investment Companies (REI) Darections, 2006 is required 1o mvest or lend magority of it's Tund to subsidiaries. The
Company’s. principal financinl linbilities comprise borrowings and trade and other paynblas. The main purpose of these financinl linbilities i to finance and support Company's
operations, The Company”s prineipal financial assels include inter corporate deposites, loans, cash and cash equivalents and other receivables

The Company is exposed (o murket risk, credn risk, lguidity msk and operational and business risk. The Company’s munagement oversees the manugement of these risks. The
Company's seniat management Is supported by o Risk Managomsent Comanittee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial sk govermanee framework for the
Company. The Risk Committee provides assurance to the Conpany’s sendor management the Company's financial risk activities are governed hy appropriate policies and procedures
and that financinl risks are identified, measured and managed in accosdance with Company’s policies and risk objectives. The major risks are summarised below:

Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial i u will i bbecause of changes in market prices. In the case of the Company, murket risk
primarily impacts financiel mstruments measured af faic voloe theough profit or loss
Tneercst vate risk s the nisk that the fair value or futore cash flows of @ financial mstrument will fluctuate becanse of changes in market inferest rates. The Company doss not have
exposure to the risk of changes in market interost rate as it has debt obligations with fixed interest rates which are measured at amorised cost.

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will net meet its obligations under o financial instrumem or & customer contract, leading to o financial loss. The Company is exposed to
credit eisk from its financing activities towards mier corparate deposits to subsidianes, where no sipmificant impact on cedil nsk has been dentified.

Equity price risk
The Company's investment in non-listed equity securitics are accounted at cost i i et oF iy The expected cash flow from these entities are regularly
monitored 1o identify impainment indicators.

Liguidity risk
Liquidity risk is defined as the nisk that the Company will not be able to settle or mest its obligations on time or at a reasonable price. The Company's corporate treasury department is

responsihle for hgudity, funding as well as settlement 1 In addition, § 5 and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior z The Company

its liguackity roquircment by analysing the maturity pattern of the Company’s cash flow of financial assets and financial babilities . The Company’s objcetive is to maintaim & balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through ssuance of equity shares, commercial paper ete, The Company invests its surplus funds in debt schemes of mutual funds, which
carey low mark to market risks.”
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KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED

CIN : U6S9930MH 1985 PLCO3S005

Nobes forming part of Standalone Financial Stat for the year ended 31st March, 2022
(Currency: Amount in Rupees)

Note 41 : Other dischosure purssant o Tnd AS 107 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures™:

a.  Category-wise clissification for apphcable financial assets and financial labilies:

A As at March 31, 2021 Axat March 31, 2021
ki FYTPL Amartiaed Cost FVTPL Amortized Cost
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equialents - 37338 - 26,874,047
Hank halances other than above - 45.381,752 - i 62540
Receivables - 11,878,231 - 12,586,379
Imventary 5.152.057 - 2465690 -
Loans - 30,709,027 - 940,559
Trvestments - 3.913,100 - 3415100
Onher finaneial assets - 7,425 643 - 6412710
Total finaneial assets 5,152,087 139,347,090 2,465,600 114,837,286
Financial Liabilities
Payables - B91.051 - 228,855
Borrowmgs { Other than Debt Securaties ) = 3.213.002 - 3724, 109
Ohther financial Rablities 5467716 1.203 847 4.974.411 1 498465
Total financial liablities 2467716 53 lT.ﬂ 4.974.411 545 I.!-i

Note:

I Mo financial asscts and lobilities has been mersured m fuir value through other comprehensive income.

i Carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents. trade recervables, other payables as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 approxunate the far value because of ther shorl term
nature. The carrying amounts of loans given and borrowings taken for short term are considered 1o be close to the fair vahie.

iii. In the ahsence of nnobservable market for these boan assets, the fair valoe have been determined from the perspective of the Company®s asset considering the changes in performance
and risk indicators (including delingquencies and mierest rre),

b. Expected eredii loss - loans

Loss allowance measured at 12 month-expected credit losses:
Fiuncial assets Tor which credit risk has not increased significantly since inital recognition

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 Asat March 31, 2011
Estimated gross carryving amotnt at default A0, 700027 046,559

Expected Credit Loss %7 2366

Carrywg amount net of impairment provisian N),632,254 944,193

. Expecied oredit loss - receivables
Loss allowance measured a1 |2 month expected credit losses
Financial assers for which credit risk has not meressed significantly since initial recognition

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Estimated gross carrving amowit af default 11,878,231 12,586,379

Expected Credn Liss 593,539 729,465

Carrying amount niet of impairment provision 11,284,691 11,956,915
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Maotes forming part of Standalone Financlal Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
(Currency: Amount in Rupees)

a.

V.

Accouniing for open positions

Position lefi apen on the balunce sheet date must be aceounted for. Debiveredit balance in the “mark-to-market margin -Egquity index futures aceount™, mainained on global hasis,

represents the net amoum paidireceived on the basis of movenent in the prices of index futures Gl the balance sheet dine. Keeping in view “prudence’ as o consideration for preparation

of financial statements, provision for anticipated loss, which may be equivalont to the net payment made to the hroker (represented by the debit badance in the “mark-to-market margin -
Equity index futures account”™) should be created by debiting the profit and loss account. Net amount received (represented by eredit balance m the “mark-tomarket margm -Equity
index futures account’) bemp anticipated profit shisuld be ignored and o credit for the same should be taken in the profit and loss account. The debit balance in the said “mark-to-
rnarket margin -Equity mdex futures account™, ie., ne payment made to the broker, disclose under the head * Other Receivables™ in the balance sheat and the provision ereated there
pgainst should be shown as a deduction therefrom. Om the other hand, the cradit balance in the said account, i.c. the net amount reeeived from the broker, should be shown as 8 currem
liability under the head * Other Current Laabilities” and provisions in the balance sheet™.

Pirticukirs
As at March 31, 2022
Nifiy Fulre & Ontions

MUDX Commodity - Godd Sepment

As ai March 31, 2021
Nifty Future & Options

Movement in Mark-to-Market
Furticutars
At the Beginning of the Year

. Loss Recopnreed during the Yiar
fii.

Mark-to-Market Profit climinated

Mark-to-Market Loss accounted and Classified into

Profit & Loss

v, Al the end of the Year

Oy, Ned Profiti(Loss)
2,900 303,916
-6410 -257.543
4 175,842
-2 -54 426
1,800 H47,777
- 58,088

2021-22 2020-21

87777 -
2302419 6,506,048
470,758 494 467
-312,368 -38, 088
3.317.585 6.942,427

Line Trem in Balanee sheetStatement of Prafit & Loss

Tem thar will be classified as hability in Balnoe sheet
ftem Charged to Profit & Loss
Hem thar will be classified as hability in Baline sheet
Item Charged 1o Profit & Loss

Ttem that will be classified as lisbility n Balance shect
em Charged w Profit & Loss

MNote 42 : Groap-wise Classification of all lnventories beld as Stock-in-Trade in shares and securities (hoth quoted and wnguoted):

Seript Traded

The Indian Hotels Company Lid
King Fisher Awrlines Ll

Nipe Lid

Prime Property Development Corporation
Sical Logisties Led

Solid Stone Company Lid
Ufjivan Financial Services Lud
Warun Industiries Lid

Sygnene Intermational Lid

Jsw 1spat Spe Pro Lud

One 97 Communicabions: Lid
Wodafone Idea Limited

Yea Bank Limited

Steel Autharity OF [ndia

Cujarat Alkealies & Chemical Lid
Mhpe L

Sasken Technologies Lid
National Alumimium Co Lid
Amara Rijs Bomeries Lid
NTPCL 8.49 25032025

Seript Traded
Cibel Limited

Kmgfisher Airlines Lmited

Nipe Limited

Mipe Limited

Prire Property Development Uorporation
Sical Logistics Limited

Solid Stone Company Limited
Tejns Networks Limited

Indinn Hoels Company Limited
Triwam India Limited

Ujjnvan Fmancial Services Limtod
Warun Industrics Limited

Nipel 849 25032025

Equity Shares - As at March 31, 2022

Debemtures - As at March 31, 2022

Quantiry Book Value Market Value Cuantity Book Value Market Value
& 622 1,192 = - .
4000 T0064 3440 - =
LIL] 99,827 R0,970 - - -
3000 128,741 AL B0 - -
15970 3,175,169 302,810 - - =
1 (M) 52,9660 24,000 - F -
4,000 1,238 445 A6, B0 - =
£,000 589,321 2R30 - - e
(KIE]] B0, 000 506,900 -
17,0040 549,900 549, |00 - -
500 859,959 475,380 -
10.000 98,000 6,800 -
16,000 136,500 22,900 - -
SA0H) 485,600 492,750 - -
S0 357,113 4475950 - - -
2,500 74375 [T ] - =
il 573,666 548,870 - -
5,000 597,500 008,750 - = .
S 01 75 108075 - -
= . - S0 - b.560
Total 99,575 9,978,642 5,152,057 S0 - 6,560

Equity Shares - As at March 31, 2021

Debentures - As at March 31, 2021

Quantity Book Value Market Value Quantity Book Value Murket Value
2,500 T06834 i75.625 - - -
.00 70,064 70,064 - - -
300 90828 $3.225 - -
[{El] 100 10,645 -
3000 128,741 24,000 -
25970 3175171 270,088 - -
1,000 52,967 45,400 - -
2.500 H6423 26,125 - . .
5 622 555 " . ,
2,000 31,143 3,143 : = .
2,500 093,624 526,500 E = <
B.000 589,321 589,321 = = %
" = " )
Total L0758 6,753,937 2,465 S0 - -
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Nates forming part of Stamd; nancial § for the year ended 31t March, 2022
{Currency: Amount in Rupees)

Notedd:

Note 44 :

Note 45 :

Mol 46 :

.

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment™

The company operates mamly i the business segment of investment activity. As such there are no reportable seoments as per IND AS |08 on operating segment.

Drisclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 “Employee Benefits™:

Shost-term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at e undiscounted amount m the statement of profit and loss of the year m wineh the related service 15 rendered. The

pany is providing th salary of leave h in the last month of the respective fimancial year

Disclosure of related parties/relaied party transactions pursuant (o Ind AS 24 * Related Party Disclosures™
MNoumae of the related parties and description of relatinnship:

Namse

Mrs. [Lizn Kothari

Mr. Nitesh Kothar

Mr. Manotar Mhatre

s, Manisha M Mhatre

Ms. Ekta Rathod (Resigned from CFO woed 05/12:2020)

Mg Madhu Kadam (Resignod from CS woef 05/12/2020)

International Flealth Cere Products Limited (IHCP)

Goldeoin Engineers Private Limited (GEPL)

D Dahyahtai & Co, Privata Limited (DDPL)

Fuamous Commercial & Leasing Private Limited (FCPL)

Wishal Construction Company Private Linuted

Paras Silk Mills Private Limited

Spectrum Capitial Private Limined

Steady Mercantile Company Private Limited

Kankhusroo Munckgi Mehia Stone And Engimecring Works Private Limited

. Related Party Transactions :

As at March 31,
Nature of Transaction's/Purty Name 2
Director Remuneration paid during the vear
Mrs, Liza Kothan

Salary, Bonws, Incentive & Leave Salary

Ms. Ekta Rathed i
Ms. Madhu Kadam -
Ms. Manisha M Mhatre B30, 00

Director Sitting Fees
Mr. Vivek Mhaire -
Mr. Athevs Mavekar -

Loan Given
Intermational Healily Care Products Limited (THCP) 30,000,000

Interest Received on Loan Given
Intermanonal Health Care Products Limited (IHCP) 126,849

¢ Dutstanding at the emd of the Year

International Health Care Products Limidted (THCP) 30,000,000

Conil Tabilitics snd i
Particular's

Contingent Liablitles
Income Tax Matter's

As at March 31,
w2

Relationship
Munaging Director
Director

Director

Relative of Director
CFO

Company Secretary
Associate

Associne of THCPL
Associare of GEPL
Associate of GEPL
Common Directorship
Common Directorship
Common [Hrectorship
Common Dircctorship
Common Directorship

As it March 31,
021

200,040
271,365

204,167
270,040

L]
(1]

As ot March 31,
021

The Company has reccived demands for various years from Income Tax Authoritics. In the opinion of the management the Company has discharged all Babilitics, The Company is in
process of rectifying the cemands with the income tx aothorties and not expecting any cash outflow on sccount of snch demand.

Bank Gurantes
{dctoids of bank gurantes)

Act, 1961

51323

. There were no transactions relating 1o previously wirecorded mcome that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax

No procesdings or netice recaved agamst the company for holdang amy benami property under the Benam Transactions (Probibion) Act, 1988 and the rules made thercunder
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KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial for the year ended 315t March, 2022
(Curreney: Amount in Rupees)

b, Maovement in Contingent Provision against Standard Assets during the vear is a8 undor;

As at March 31, As ut March 31,

Particular's 022 021
Opemng Balance 2,306 289
Addition’s(Deduction) during the Year 74,407 (533)
Closing Balance 76,773 2366

¢, Movement in Contingent Provision against Sub-Stundard Assets during the year is as under:

Asat March 31, As at March 3,

Particular's w022 2021
DOpening Balance - 13,925,900
Addivion’ s Deduction) during the Year - (F3,925 900)
Closing Balunce - -

Note 47 : Contribution 1o political parties doring the vear 2021-22 s Ry, Nil { previous vear R, Nil).
Note 48 : There are no amounts due and outstandmyg to be credited to bvestor Education & Protection Fund as ot March 31, 2022,
Note 49 ;. Disclosure pertaining to Immovable propertics

a)  The title deeds. of all the immowvable properties (other thun immaovible properties where the Company is the lessee and the lense agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company )
disclosed in the financial statements included m Property, Plant and Equipment are held m the name of the Company as al the balanee sheet date,

b

The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equiy tincluding right-of-use asseis) or imangible assels during the current or previous year

Note S0 Thee Company has not been deelared as Wilful defiier by Banks/Financial TnstivanionOther Lendor,

Note 51 :  The company had didn’t entered into any Scheme's of armngements with the competent authority m terms of See. 230 10 237 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Note 52 ;. Details of pending charge don / satisfaction registration with ROC.
The company his no such charges which are pending for ereation or vet 1o be satisfy

Note 53 : Loans or Advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, dircetors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013,) either
severally ar jointly with any other person, that are:

Asat Asat
31-03-2021 3j-03-2021
o) repayohle on demand 300,000, (0000 -
b without specifving any terms of period of repayment - -
Loans or Advances in the nature of loans are granted (o promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties
As at 31-03-2022 As al 31-03-2022
Amount  in  the[% to the total| Amount in  the|% (o the total
Type of Borrower Termis of repayment Loans and Laoans and|
nature  of loan nature  of loan 7
Advances in the Advances in the
outstanding muture of loans  |ouistanding nature of loans
Promoters - 3 = =
Dircctors - - = -
EMPs = = = =
Related Parties Repayable on Demiand 30,000,000 97 .69% - -

Since the Company is an NBFC enterprises covered ws 451A, the mamn business of the company i to granting [oans,

Note 54+ The company has not tuken ey facilities from banks/ financial instinuions aginst current assets hence diselosure regarding review and reporting of filings and submission of Quarferly
returns or statements with banks/financial mstitutions are inagreement with books of accounts are not available,

Note 55 Utilization of borrowed funds and share preminm:
Al The ' his not @ I/med imvested funds in any entities or to any other person including foreign entities during the year with the understanding that the
@) Intermodiary shall directly or indircetly lend or ivest in any manner whatsoever by or an behalf of the company (Ultimate beneficraries).
b Provide any guarantee, security or the like 1o or on hehalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

lt}

The company has not received any funds during the year from any person’s/entities including foreign entitics with the understanding that the company shall
) Directly or indirectly lend or mvest in uny manner whatsoever by or on behal{ of the funding entity (Ultimute beneficiaries ),
b) Prowide any gurantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficianies.

Note 56 1 Relationship with Struck of ! Companics
There are no companmes which ore strueh oflin MUAL

Note 57 1 Details of erypio corrency or virtual corrency
The Company has not traded or invested in orypio currency or virtual currency during the current o previoas year,

Note 58 ;. In the opinion of the Board ;
1) The current assets, loans and advances will realise i the ordimary course of business, at least the amount al which these are stated in the Bakance Sheet.
ii) Provision for all known linbilities have been made.
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KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Stundalone Financial 5 for the vear ended 31st March, 2022
{Currency: Amourit 1 Rupess)

Note 59 ¢ Other Mutters :

1, Loan arrangements -
The RET has rebessed 5 Master Circular: RBI2019-207186 DOR No, BP BC 47/21.04,48/2019-20 Dated © March 27, 2020, COVID -19 Regulatory package, where the RBI are
permitted (o grant a moratarium of three months on peyment of all instalments falling due between March |, 20260 and My 31, 2020 and rescheduling the payment of Term Loans &
Woarking Copnal facilities.
A unsecured loan arrangement facility provided by the company (o ane of its borrower e, Renalssance Urban Infra Private Limited has been classified as Sub-standard as an March
31, 20200 During the year the company has an fresh negotiation with the said party and the Losn arragments has been classified ss Capital Advonees ggmst Commercianl Property
which are due for completion and allot in conng year,
The mamag of the comy has recl 1 the Toun inter copital advances against the property m the favour of the company converting the losn facility into contract alloting the
property unit under development. Accoordingly, the inferest aceraed for the August 2020 to March 2020, as per settlement are accounied as acenied interest in FY 2021-22 as prior
period interest and taxes thereon are changad divectly 1o Reserve & Surplus

il Voluntary delisnng of equity shares from the BSE:
Pursinnt 1o the approval of the Board of Directors of the Company al its mesting held on 14th Jamuary, 2020, the Company had filed sn application for voluntary debsting of its equity
shares from the BSE on | 7th February, 2020 under Chapter VI (Special Provisions for Small Companies) of regulation 27 of the Delisting Regulation which was approved by BSE
vide its Notice No. 20200605-38 duted Sth June, 2020, pursuant to which the trading in (he equity shares of Kothan Wiorld Finance Limited (Serip Code; 51113%) is discontinued
wee f Friday June 12, 2020, Funther the Scrip Code: $11138 is delisted from the BSE records w.e . Friday June 19, 2020,

In this regard, the Company has made necessary disclosures roguired under SEB| Delisting Regulations and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Dhsclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 to the stock exchangss,

. There have been no other events afier the reporting date that require disclosure m the Gnancal statements,

Note 60 2 The Company hias obtained the Centificate of Registration from the RBI as @ Non-Banking Financial [nati = Investment Compiny on March 09, 1998 under Section 45-LA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
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KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED

CIN : U65993MH1985PLCDIS005

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
(Currency: Amount in Rupees)

Note 62 ¢ Particular's as per RBI direction's for NBFC
Schedule to the Balance sheet of a non-deposit taking non-banking financial company as required in terms of paragraph 18 of Master Direction Non Banking
Finance Compeny- Non Systematically Important Non Deposit taking Company vide Master Direction DNBR.PD.OOT/03. 10.119/2016-17 dated September 1,

2016
Particular's /AioNag Amount Overdue
Outstanding
Liahilities Side
1 |Loans and advances availed by the non-banking financial company inclusive of interest acerued thereon but not paid :
a. [Debentures Secured .
Unsecured = =
{Other than falling within the meaning of public deposits)
h. [Deferred Credits - -
¢. [Term Loans - -
d, |Inter-Corporate Loans & Borrowing - -
e, [Commercial Paper - -
. |Public deposits - .
g, |Other Loans (Specify Nature} = =
2 |Break-up of { | i) above (Ootstanding public deposits inclusive of interest acerued thereon but not paid :
a, |In the form of Un-secured debentures : X
b. {In the form of partly secured debentures Le. debentures where there is a shortfall in the value of the security - -
¢ [Other public deposit's = 2
Amaount
Particular's Ostabeniing
Assets Side
3 |Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables (other than those Included in (4) below)
A, |Secured 709,027
b. |Unsecured 41,878,231

4 |Break-up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards AFC activities
4. |Leased asscts including lease rentals undar sundry debtors :

i. |Financial Lease 5
il. |Operating Lease -
b. |Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors :
i, |Assets on hire §
. [Repossessed Assets -
¢. |Other loans counting towards AFC activities
i. |Loans where the assets have been repossessed -
1i. |Lonns other than (a) above -

5 |Break-up of Investments :

Investments
A, |Quoted :
1. |Shares : L. Equity* 2,700,000

ii. Preference -
Il |Debenture & Bonds -
111 |Units of mutual funds 500,000
IV, [Government Securities -
V. |Others (please specify) -

* (disclosed at Cost without considering Provision for diminution in value of investments of Rs.27,00,000)
B. |Unguoted :

I. [Shares : i. Equity* 3,513,537
1. Preference -
IT. |Debenture & Bonds -
L [Units of mutual funds -
IV, |Government Securities -
V. |Others (please specify) i. Immovable Property®* 130,143,819
* (disclosed at Cost without considering Provision for diminution in value of investments of Rs.98,437/-)
** (disclosed at Gross Value without considering amortization on investments of Rs. 3.57,17407/~ )

6 | Borrower group-wise classificalion of assets financed as in (3) and (4) aboye :
Plelse - Note 2 below

Amount net of Provisions
Secured Unsecured Total

Category

Related Parties
Subsidiaries = = <
Companies in the same group - - -
Orher related parties = = “
Other than Related Parties 709,027 41 878,231 42587258
Total 709,027 41,878,231 42,587.258

0 op o=
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7 |Investor group-wise caleulations of all investment (eurent and longterm) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted) :
Market
A [oategory Value/Breakup | Book Value (Net
- or fair value or | of Provisions)
NAY
1. |Related Parties **
4. |Subsidiaries - -
b. |Companies in the same group 3415100 3415100
¢. |Cther related parties - -
1. |Crther than Related Parties 3,298,437 650,465
Total 6,713,537 4,065,565
= e ]
** As per Accounting Standard of ICAI
B. Other Informations
Particulars Amuount
i.  Gross Non-Performeing Assets
a. Rclated Partics -
b. Other than related parties -
il Non-Performing Assets
4. Related Partics -
b. Other than related parties
iil. Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt -

Notes :
I As defined in point xix of paragraph 3 of Chapter-2 of these directions.
2 Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed in these directions,

Note 63 : Previous year previous GAAP figures have been regrouped / reclassified 1o make them comparable with IND AS presentation.

Note 64 : The Code on Social Security, 2020
The Code on Social Security 2020 ('Code’) has been notified in the Official Gazette on 29" September, 2020.The Code is not yet effective and related rules
are yel to be notified. Impact if any of the change will be assessed and recognized in the period in which said Code becomes effective and the rules

framed thereunder are notified.
For V K Beswal & Associates For and on Behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
TCAI Firm Registration No.: 101083W

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
CA Nishit § Agrawal Liza Kothari Nitesh Kothari
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No : 159882 DIN No.: 01273272 DIN No.: 00024195

Place : Mumbai
Dare. :01/09/2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of
Kothari World Finance Limited,

Report on the Consolidated IND AS Financial Statements

1. Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Kothari
World Finance Limited (herein referred to as “the Holding Company™) and share of profits
in its associatesas mentioned in Annexure I (the holding company and share of profits in its
associates together referred to as * the Group™), comprising of the consolidated Balance Sheet
as at March 31,2022, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the consolidated
statement of changes in equityfor the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information( herein referred to as the consolidated
Ind AS financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated
state of affairs of the Group as at 31% March 2022, of its consolidated profit and other
comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended.

2. Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Act. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

3. Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. There are no key audit matters to be communicated in our report
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4. Information Other than the Consolidated IND AS Financial Statements and Auditor's
Report Thereon
The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the Directors' Report, Report on Corporate governance and
Management Discussion and Analysis, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

The Directors' Report, Report on Corporate governance and Management Discussion and
Analysis is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report. Our
opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thercon. In connection with our audit of the
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above when
it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Board's Report, Report on Corporate governance and Management
Discussion and Analysis, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and describe actions
applicable in the applicable laws and regulations.

5. Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated IND AS Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these Ind AS
financial statements in terms of the requirements of the companies Act, 2013(herein referred
to as “the act”) that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position,
consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income and consolidated
cash flows and changes in equityof the group in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards specified under section 133 of
the Act, read with the rule 7 of the companies (accounts) rules, 2014. The respective board of
directors of the companies included in the group are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the act for safeguarding the assets of
the group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for insuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of thefinancial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatements, whether
due to fraud or error, which has been used for the purpose of preparation of the Ind AS
consolidated financial statements by the Board of directors of the holding company, as
aforesaid.

The Respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its associate companies are
also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Holding Company and
its associate.
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6. Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Consolidated IND AS Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order of
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)
of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e (Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the
Holding Company and its associate companies to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Holding Company and its associate companies to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e [Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and event in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Holding Company and its associate companies to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such
entities included in the consolidated financial statements.
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Materially is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements is the
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.

We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Other Matters

The consolidated financial results also include the Holding Company's share of profit after tax
of Rs.59,66,313/- for the year ended March 31, 2022, as considered in the consolidated
financial statement, in respect of an associate company, whose financial information have
been audited by us.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below is not modified in respect of the above matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order™) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section
143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s report, according to the information and
explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by the auditors of the
associates incorporated in India included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Company, to which reporting under CARO is applicable, provided to us by the Management
of the Company and based on the identification of matters of qualifications or adverse
remarks in their CARO reports by the respective component auditors and provided to us, we
report that the auditors of such companies have not reported any qualifications or adverse
remarks in their CARO report.

A. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best

ofour knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the
aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

Annual Report 2021-2022

Page - 70



KOTHART WORLD
KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED Codmnsing duss, Iitdin o

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of
the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as it
appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors;

¢) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss(including other comprehensive income).and the Consolidated Cash
Flow Statement and the consolidated statement of changes in equitydealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with
the Accounting Standards specified undersection 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) rules,2014 as amended;

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on March 31, 2022, and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated in
India is disqualified as on March 31, 2022, from being appointed as a director in
terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our report dated 01-09-2022
yin “Annexure II”, which is based on the auditor’s report of the associates companies
incorporated in India.

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Amendment Rules,2014 as amended, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us;

i) There were no pending litigations which would impact the consolidated financial
position of the Group.

ii) The Group did not have any material, foreseeable losses on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts.

ii1) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India.

iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no

funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign
entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by
the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties™),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;
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(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11 (e), as provided under (a) and
(h) above, contain any material misstatement.

v) The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section 197(16) of
the Act: In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not paid any remuneration to its directors during the current year in
accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. Hence, in the absent of payment
of the remuneration to any director the compliance of the limit laid down under Section
197 of the Act are not applicable. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed
other details under Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

For V K Beswal& Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No 101083W

Sd/-

CA Nishit S. Agrawal

Partner

M No-159882

UDIN No. : 22159882AQRFLV4027

Place: Mumbai
Date: 01/09/2022
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Annexure I to the Consolidated IND AS Independent Auditor’s Report

Sr. Name of the Company Nature of the
No. Relationship

I International Health Care Products Limited | Associate

(IHCPL)
2. Goldcoin Engineer Private Limited (GEPL) Associate of [IHCPL
A D Dahyabhai& Co Private Limited Associate of GEPL
4, Famous Commercial & Leasing Private Limited | Associate of GEPL
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Annexure 11 to the Consolidated IND AS Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent Auditor’s report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Kothari
World Finance Limited (“the Holding Company™) and its associates companies (the holding
company and its associates together referred to as “the Group™), as of and for the year ended
31 March 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting
(IFCoFR) of the holding company and its associates companies incorporated in India as of
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its associates companies,
which are the companies incorporated in India are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the criteria being specified by management.
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of the company’s business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group's IFCoFR based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of IFCoFR, and the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the
ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate IFCoFR were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
IFCoFR and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR included obtaining an
understanding of IFCoFR, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Group’s IFCoFR.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

6. A company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone Ind AS financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles including
the Ind AS. A company's IFCoFR includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone Ind AS
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles including
Ind AS, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone Ind AS
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future periods
are subject to the risk that [FCoFR may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Holding Company and its associate companies, which are companies incorporated in
India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the respective companies considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For V K Beswal& Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No 101083W

Sd/-

CA Nishit S. Agrawal

Partner

M No-159882

UDIN No. : 22159882 AQRFLV4027

Place: Mumbai
Date: 01/09/2022
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CIN : UsS993MH 1985PLCO3S005

Consolidated Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2022
(Currency: Amount in Rupees)

Paitliudies Note As at As al
Nos. 31-03-2022 31-03-2021
ASSETS
1 Financial Assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 2 37338 26,874,007
(h) Bank halances other than cash and cash equivalents 3 ®5,381,752 64 602 530
(c) Receivables 4
Trade receivables 664,134 4,833,968
Other recejvables 11,214,096 T7,752411
(d) Inventery 5 5,152,057 2465690
(e) Loans 6 30,708,027 946,559
() Investments 7 24,770,841 18,304,528
(g) Other financial asscts 8 7425643 6,412,710
Total financial assets 165,354,888 132,192,404
2 Non-Financial Assets
{u) Current tax assets (Net) 9 1,962,224 2286, T8
(b) Deferred tax assets (Net) 10 - -
(¢) Investment Property I 94,422 549 96,754,309
(d) Property, plant and equipment 12{1) 4 685420 4,040,707
() Other intangible assets 12(i1) 16,634 31.602
(N Other non-financial assets 13 57.487.599 57.304.473
Total non-financial assets 158,574,436 160,417,879
TOTAL ASSETS 323919324 292.610.283

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

3 Financial Liabilities
(1) Payables 14
i} Trade Payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and  small < =

enterprises

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises

and small enterprises

Other payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and  small

enterprises

ii

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 891,051 228,955
and small emerprises
(b) Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 15 3,223 002 3,724 109
{c) Other financial liabiliies 16 6,671,563 6472876
Total financial liablities 10,785,616 10,425,939
4 Non-Financial Liabilities
{a) Current tax liabilities (net) 17 - .
(b) Deferred tax liabilities ] 33,730 14,766
(c) Provisions 1% I.870.312 1.831.831
{dy Other non-financial liabilites 19 - ~
Total non-financial liablities 1,904,042 1.846.597
5 Equity
(@) Equity share capital 20 74,375 000 74375000
b} Other equity 21 236,864,660 205,962,747
Total equity 311,239,666 280,337,747
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 323,929,324 292,610,283

Significant accounting policies i
See accompanying notes forming part of the linancial statements ‘267

As per our attached report of even date
For V K Beswal & Associates Far and on Behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No.; 101083W

Sd/- Sd/- Sdl-
CA Nishit § Agrawal Liza Kothari Nitesh Kothari
Partner Managing Director Direcior
Membershup No : 159882 DIN No.: 01273272 DIN No.: 00024195

Place : Mumbai
Date. : 01-09-2022
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CIN : U65993IMH 1985PLCOAS005

Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss for vear ended March 31, 2022
(Currency: Amount in Rupees)

Particulars N,“e 2021-22 2020-21
Nos.
Revenue from operations
Interest income 22 5.476.990 5.056.125
Rental income 23 37,400,799 35,883,908
Net gain on fair value changes 24 249,265 13.858.423
Sale of shares 25 3,538,610 6,234,842
Trading in Future & Options (net Gain/Loss) 26 - -
Dividend Income 27 35,067 21,038
Total revenue from operations 46,709,732 61,054,336
Other income 28 68,205 920,727
Total income 46.777.937 61,975.062
Expenses
Purchase of stock in trade 29 6,219,633 BRT.005
Changes in inventories of stock in trade 30 (2,686,367) 226,623
Trading in Future & Options (net) 26 2.302.419 6,942.427
Employee benefits expenses i1 2,572,062 24R7.030
Depreciation and amortization expenses 32 3,193,629 3,013,677
Finance Costs 33 818,540 553,002
Other expenses 34 3,200,445 3.812.892
Total expenses 15,620,360 17,923,645
Profit before tax 31,157,576 44051417
Tax expense:
Current tax 5,808, 100 5,614.400
Deferred tax (credit)/charge 18.963 3,523.047
Income tax for carlier year 394,908 -
Total tax expense 6,221.971 9,137,447
Profit for the year 24,935,606 34.913.970
Share in Profit of associates 5,966,313 2,278,173
30,901.919 37,192,143
Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Remeasurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans - -
Tax impact on above
lterns that will be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Changes in fair value of fair value through OCI (FVOCT) debt securities H -
Tax impact on above
Other comprehensive income for the vear (net of tax) - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 30,901,919 37,192,143
Earnings Per Share (Basic and Diluted) (in Rs.) 35 4.15 5.00
Significant accounting policies 1)
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 2-67'
As per our attached report of even date
For V K Beswal & Associates For and on Behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101083W
Sd/- Sd/- Sd-
CA Nishit S Agrawal Liza Kothari Nitesh Kothari
Partner Managing Director [Director

Membership No @ 159882 DIN No.: 01273272

Place : Mumbai
Date. : 01-09-2022

DIN No.: 00024195
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KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED

CIN @ U6STIMHI98SPLCIAS005

< lidated Cash Flow For The Year Ended March 31, 2022
(Currency: Amount in Rupees)

Particuturs 2021-22 2020-21

A Cash Mow from operating activithes:
Net Profit belore Tax 31157576 44051417
Adjustments for:
Diepreciation 3,193,629 303677
Provision for dirminution in valse of investment - -
Provision for ECL & Far Value Changes (249.265) (13858423
Imterest on Inoome Tax Refund (HF 205) .
Profiton sale of Investment - (920.727)
Finance Coosts R8540 553 092
Cantingent Provisions againse Standard Assets (74.407) -
Contimgent Provisions sgainst sub-Standand Assets - -
Provision for Expected eredit loss - 2251
Prior Period Incomse - 4,122,801
Dividend Income on Investments {35.067) (21,038)]
Operating profit before working capital changes 374280 37.261,050
Adfjustments far
Increase/(Decrease) in payables 62,056 {274.120)
Incrense| Decresse) in long-term provisions - =
Increase{ Decrease) i other fnancial hsbifities 198,687 GlE414
Increase{Decrease) in ather non-financial liabiltties - (511 000)
(Inercuse )l Decrease in mventones (2.686.367) 226,623
{Increase)/Decrease in ather financlal ssets [1,002.537) (3,523.402)
{Increase) Decrease in other non-financial assels (183,126) (55835203
(Inerease)/ Decrease in loans 29,762 468) 55916288
{Inerease) Decrease in other bank bulances {20,719.223) (26.921.271)
{Inerease)/ Decrease in recenables TOK, 149 (h,4496,730)
Cosh generated from operations (18,112,383) 460,553
Dhirect taxes refund | (paid) (Met) (6,022 835) (6,589, 154)
Net cush Generated from aperating activities A (24,135.318) (6.428,601)

B. Cash Aow from investing sctivities:
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipments (1,183,172) (4,270,329
Purchise of Invesment (3% A52) (83,182)
Progeeds from sale of fixed assets - -
Proceeds{Purchuses) from sile of Investment {5000, #,360,000
Inferest an Income Tax Refund 68205 -
Non current mvestments - -
Dividend income from investneem 35,067 21,038
Net cash penerated from (wsed in) investing activities B (1,588.352) 4,027,527

. Cash Aow from Financing activities:
Proceeds (Repaymient) of unsecured loans from borrowings (Net) (501, 1) 3724100

Finance Cost (311 594) 1144.084)
Equity Shares issued & =
Share Premium 5 =

Shure money recetved - -

Dividend ncluding dividend distribution tax i 2

Neteush inflow [ foutflow) from financing activities o (813 .00H1) 3,580,025
1, Net Inerease | (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {20,830,6649) 178951
E. Cush and eash equivalents at the beginning of the year 26,874.007 25,605,055
F. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year J'ﬂ 26,874,007

Coamponents of eosh and cash equivalonts

Particulars Asat Asat
31-03-2022 31-03-2021
Hulince with Banks
- in Current Accounts 28 95K 364,725
= in Fixed Deposits (with onigmal maturity period not more than 3 months) . 2507438
Cash on hand &350 | B4
Total cash and cash equivalents al the end of the year 37334 26,474,007
e
Notes:

i Statement of cash Mows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out w the Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows™ as
specafied in the Companies (Indian Accounting Sundords) Rules, 2015

b.  Previous years figures are regrouped | recasted whensver necessary,

Mumbai: Ded. :

Sigrificant accounting policies &

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 26T

As per our anached report of even da
For V K Beswal & Associates For and on Beholf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
1CAL Firm Registraton No,: 101083W

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
CA Nishit § Agrawal Liza Kothari Nitesh Kothari
Parmer Managing Direcyor Direcsor
Membership No : 159852 TN No,; 01273272 DI Wi (W24 195
Plage - Munbai

Date: : 01-08-2022
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Consolidaied Statement of Changes in Equiry as on March 31, 2022
{Currency; Amount in Rupees)
Statement of changes in equity
A [Equity share capital | 1 Number Amount
Balance as ar April 1, 2020 T.437,500 74,375,004
Changes in Egquity Share Capital during the yeur -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 74,375,000
Chonges in Equity Share Capital during the vear -
Bal. as at 31 March 2022 74,375,000 |
B (hher cquity
For the year ended March 31, 2022
Other
Reserves and surplus Comprehensive
Income
Retained
4 earnings-
Emplayes T other than Other Total other equity
stock Sratutory
Securities P Iy BT e remensurement Capital comprehensive
premium account ' : of post Reserve income on
outstanding fund
employment dehi securities
acenunt benehit
obligations
Balance as a1 April 1. 2020 37,345,000 - 24,100,063 100,000 92,595,067 11185000 - 163685, 13
Profit for the year - - - 16445316 16,445,316
Other Comprehensive Income - - - - - - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year AT 345,000 - 24,160,063 1040, ik 109340383 11185000 - 182,130 446
Transfer to reserve fund U/S 45-1C (1) OF Reserve
Bank OF Indi Act, 1934 - T.5949 889 (7,599 889y - =
Premium on issue of shares - - - - - - - -
Share based payinent - . - - . - . -
Dividends - - - - - - - -
Dividend Distribution Tax - - - - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 37345000 - 100,000 101740494 11,185,000 - 182,130,446
Balance as at April 1, 2021 37.345.000 100000 101,740 454 11 IR5,000 182,130,446
Profit for the year - - - - 30801919 - 305019149
Oiher Comprehensive Income = = = - =
Total Comprehensive Income for the vear 37345000 - 31,759,952 100,000 132642413 11,185,000 - 213,032,365
Transfer 1o reserve fund LS 4510 (1) OF Reserve
Bank Of India Act, 1934 - - 4,987,121 - (4.9587.121) = = =
Prior Period Rentals & Interest Income - . = - - -
Tax Expenses related 1o Prior Penod Rentals &
Trterest Income - - -
Premium on issuc of shares - - - - - - - -
Share based payment - - - - -
Dividends - - = - -
Dividend Distribation Tax - - = - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 37,345,000 = 36,747,073 100,000 127,655,292 11,185,000 = 213,032,365

The sccompanying notes are an integeal part of the financiol sttements

As per our attached repont of even date

For V K Beswal & Associates
Chartered Accountanis
ICAT Firm Registration No.: 101 083W

Sdy/-
CA Nishit 8 Agrawal
Partnar
Membership No : 139882

Plage : Mumbuai
Daate. £ 01-09-2022

Annual Report 2021-2022

For and an Behalf of Board of Divectors

Sd/-

Liza Kothari

MManaging Director
DIN Mo, 01273272

Sd/-

Nitesh Kaothari
Darcotor
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KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED

CIN : U65993MH1985PLC035005

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended 31st March, 2022
(Currency: Amount in Rupees)

Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements

Brief Profile
Kothari Werld Finance Limited (‘the Company) is a Public Company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 on January 3,

1985 and registered as a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, The Company is

engaged in the business of Lending & Investment Activities.
1 Significant Accounting Policies :

1.1 Statement of compliance:
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Indian Accounting

Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015 (as amended from time to time) issued by
Ministry of Corporate Affairs in exercise of the powers conferred by section 133 read with sub-section (1) of section 210A of the
Companies Act, 2013. In addition, the guidance notes/announcements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)

are also applied along with compliance with other statutory promulgations require a different treatment.

1.2 Basis of preparation:
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

i.  Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company can access at reporting
date

i, Level 2 inputs are inputs. other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for the asset or hability, either directly or
indirectly; and

iii.  Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets or liabilities

1.3 Presentation of financial statements:
The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Division [1I to

Schedule 1T to the Companies Aet, 2013 (“the Act”) applicable for Non-Banking Finance Companies (“NBFC"). The Statement of Cash
Flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows™. The disclosure requirements with
respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule 111 to the Act, are presented by way
of notes forming part of the financial statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notitied accounting

Standards and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Use of Estimates:
The preparation of the financial stalements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make estimates, judgments and

assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the period. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the Management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding
the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material,
their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19:

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the amounts of revenue,
investment in subsidiaries & Investment in Financial Assets. In developing the assumptions relating to the impact of possible future
uncertainties in global economic conditions because of this pandemie, the Company, as at the date of approval of these financial results
has used internal and external sources of information including economic forecasts. The Company has also assessed the impact of this
whole situation on its capital and financial resources, profitability, liquidity position. internal financial controls etc. and is of the view
that based on its present assessment this situation does not materially impact this financial result, However, the impact assessment of
COVID-19 is a continuing process, given the uncertainties associated with its nature & duration. The company will continue to monitar

any material changes to future economic condition.
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1.4 Basis of consolidation:
The consolidated financial statements incorporate financial statement of Kothari World Finance Limited and the entities controlled by the

Holding Company. Associates are entities over which the Holding Company has significant influence but no control or joint control. This
is generally the case where the Holding Company holds between 20% to 50% of the voting rights. Financial information of the following

Associates are included in consolidation:

- Country of Proportion of Ownership Interest
RORESREI Incorporation As on 31-03-2022 As on 31-03-2021
| |International Health Care Products Limited (IHCPL) India 26.11% 26,1 1%
2 |Goldcoin Engineers Private Limited (GEPL) India IHCPL holding in GEPL is 39.60%
3 |D Dahyabhai & Company Private Limited (DDPL) India GEPL holdings in DDPL is 45.24%
4 |Famous Commercial & Leasing Private Limited India GEPL holdings in FCLPL is 25.74%

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:
The financial statements of the associate used in consolidation are drawn upto the same reporting date as that of the Holding Company.

1.5 Investments in associates:
An Associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee. but is not control or joint control over those policies,
The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using equity method of

accounting. Under the equity method, an investment in associate is initially recognised in the consolidated balance sheet at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate. Distributions
received from an associate reduce the carrying amount of the investment, When the Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the
Group's interest in that associate, the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate,

The carrying amount of investment in associates is reduced to recognize impairment, if any, when there is objective evidence of

impairment.

1.6 Revenue recognition:
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be
reliably measured and there exists reasonable certainty of its recovery. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable as reduced for estimated customer credits and other similar allowances.

i. Interest and dividend income:
Interest income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and for all financial instruments except for those classified as held for
trading or those measured or designated as at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) is measured using the effective interest method
(EIR).
The caleulation of the EIR includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are incremental and directly
attributable to the specific lending arrangement, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. For financial assets at FVTPL
transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss at imtial recognition.
The interest income is calculated by applying the EIR 1o the gross carrying amount of non-credit impaired financial assets (i.e. at the

amortised cost of the financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance). For credit-impaired financial assets the
interest income is caleulated by applving the EIR to the amortised cost of the credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less the allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs)), For financial assets originaled or purchased credit-impaired (POCI) the

EIR reflects the ECLs in determining the future cash flows expected to be received from the financial asset,
Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive dividend s established by the reporting date and no significant
uncertainty as to collectability exists.

ii. Fee and commission income:
Fee and commission income and expense include fees other than those that are an integral part of EIR. The fees included in the Company
statement of profit and loss include among other things fees charged for servicing a loan, non-utilisation fees relating to loan
commitments when it is unlikely that these will result in a specific lending arrangement and loan advisory fees.
Fee and commission expenses with regards to services are accounted for as the services are received.

iii. Rental Income :
Income from operating leases is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss as per contractual rentals unless another systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which benefit derived from the leased asset is diminished.

iv. Net gain or fair value change:
Any differences between the fair values of the financial assets classified as fair value through the profit or loss, held by the Company on
the balance sheet date is recognised as an unrealised gain/loss in the statement of profit and loss. In cases there is a net gain in aggregate,
the same is recognised in “Net gains or fair value changes™ under revenue from operations and 1f there 18 a net loss the same 1s disclosed
“Expenses”, in the statement of profit and loss.
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v. Income from financial instruments at FVTPL:
Income from financial instruments at FVTPL includes all gains and losses from changes in the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities at FVTPL except those that are held for trading.

vi. Other operational revenue:
Other operational revenue represents income sarned from the activities incidental to the business and is recognised when the right to
receive the imcome is established as per the terms of the contract,

1.7 Property, plant and equipment (PPE):

i.  PPE is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. PPE is stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated depreciation and
cumulative impairment, if any. Cost includes all direct cost related to the acquisition of PPE and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Company’s accounting policy.

ii.  For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to adopt as deemed cost, the carrying value of PPE measured as per Previous GAAP

less accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment on the transition date of April 1, 2017. In respect of revalued assets, the value

as determined by valuers as reduced by accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment is taken as cost on transition date.

iii.  Land and buildings held for use are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Freehold land is not depreciated.

iv. PPE not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed as “capital workin-progress”.

v. Depreciation is recognised using straight line method so as Lo write off the cost of the assets (other than frechold land)) less their residual
values over their useful lives specified in Schedule 1 to the Companies Act, 2013, or in case of assets where the useful life was
determined by technical evaluation, over the useful life so determined. Depreciation method is reviewed at each financial year end to
reflect expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The estimated useful life and residual
values are also reviewed at each financial year end with the effect of any change in the estimates of useful life/ residual value is
accounted on prospective basis.

vi. Depreciation for additions to/deductions from, owned assets is calculated pro rata to the period of use. Depreciation charge for impaired
assets is adjusted in future periods in such a manner that the revised carrying amount of the asset is allocated over its remaining useful
life.

vii. Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of lease term and their useful life on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that the Company shall obtain ownership of the assets at the end of the lease term, such
assets are depreciated based on the usetul life prescribed under Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 or based on the useful life
adopted by the Company for similar assets.

viii. An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
recognised in profit or loss.

Mum .8 Intangible assets:

i.  Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic henefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the
enterprise and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits availed, if
any, less accumulated amortisation and cumulative impairment. Direct expenses and administrative and other general overhead expenses
that are specifically attributable to acquisition of intangible assets are allocated and capitalised as a part of the cost of the intangible
assets,

il.  Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Intangible assets under development™.

iil. Intangible assets are amortised on straight line basis over the estimated useful life. The method of amortisation and useful life are

reviewed al the end of each accounting year with the effect of any changes in the estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
iv.  An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future econaomic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

1.9 Investment property:

i.  Investment properties are properties (including those under construction) held to earn rentals and/ or capital appreciation are classified as
investment property and are measured and reported at cost, including transaction costs.

il For transition to Ind AS. the group has elected to adopt as deemed cost, the carrying value of investment property as per Previous GAAP

less accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment on the transition date of April 01, 2018. In respect of revalued assets, the value

as determined by valuers as reduced by accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment is taken as cost on transition date.

iil.  Depreciation is recognised using straight line method so as to write off the cost of the investment property less their residual values over
their useful lives specified in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, or in the case of assets where the useful life was determined by
technical evaluation. over the useful life so determined.
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iv. Depreciation method is reviewed at each financial year end to reflect the expected pattern of consumption of the future benefits
embodied in the investment property, The estimated useful life and residual values are also reviewed at each financial year end and the
effect of any change in the estimates ol useful life/ residual value is accounted on prospective basis. Freehold land and properties under
construction are not depreciated.

v. Am investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gam or loss arising on de-recognition of property 1s recognised n the Statement
of Profit and Loss in the same period.

1.10 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

i.  As at the end of each accounting year, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its PPE and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If such indication exists, the PPE. investment property and
intangible assets are tested for impairment so as to determine the impairment loss, if any. Goodwill and the intangible assets with
indefinite life are tested for impairment each year.

1. Impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, Recoverable amount is determined:

4. 1n the case of an individual asset, at the higher of the net selling price and the value in use: and

b. in the case of a cash generating unit (the smallest identifiable Company of assets that generates independent cash flows), at the higher of
the cash generating unit’s net selling price and the value in use.

. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pretax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted

iv. If recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, such deficit is recognised
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as impairment loss and the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For this purpose. the impairment loss recognised in respect of a cash generating unit is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to such cash generating unit and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets of the cash generating unil on @ pro-rata basis.

v.  When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit), except for allocated goodwill,
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss is recognised for the asset (or cash generating unit) in prior years, A
reversal of an impairment loss (other than impairment loss allocated to goodwill) is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit
and Loss,

1.11 Emplovee benefits:
i.  Short term employee benefits:
a) Employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term employee benefits and are

expensed in the period in which the employee renders the related service. Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee

benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service,

ii. Post-cmployment benefits:

a) Defined contribution plans: The Company’s superannuation scheme, state governed provident fund scheme, employee state insurance
scheme and employee pension scheme are defined contribution plans. The contribution paid/ payable under the schemes is recognised
during the period in which the employee renders the related service

b)  Defined benefit plans: The employees’ gratuity fund schemes and employee provident fund schemes managed by board of trustees
established by the Company, the post-retirement medical care plan and the Parent Company pension plan represent defined benefit plans.
The present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit
Method.

¢) The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate based on the market yield on
government securities of a maturity period equivalent to the weighted average maturity profile of the defined benefit obligations at the
Balance Sheet date.

d) Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability or asset) and any change in the effect of asset ceiling (il applicable) is recognised in other comprehensive income
and is reflected in retained earnings and the same is not eligible to be reclassified to profit or loss.

e) Defined benefit costs comprising current service cost, past service cost and gains or losses on settlements are recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss as employee benefit expenses. Interest cost implicit in defined benefit employee cost is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss under finance cost. Gains or losses on settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognised when the settlement occurs.,
Past service cosi is recognised as expense at the earlier of the plan amendment or curtailment and when the Company recognises related
restructuring costs or termination benefits.

f)  In case of funded plans. the fair value of the plan assets is reduced from the gross obligation under the defined benefit plans to recognise
the obligation on a net basis.

iii. Long term employee benefits:

a) The obligation recognised in respect of long term benefits such as long term compensated absences is measured at present value of
estimated future cash flows expected to be made by the Company and is recognised in a similar manner as in the case of defined benefit
plans vide (11} (b) above.
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iv. Termination benefits:
a) Termination benefits such as compensation under employee separation schemes are recognised as expense when the Company’s offer of

the termination benefit is accepted or when the Company recognises the related restructuring costs whichever is earlier,

1.12 Leases:
The Company determines whether an arrangement contains a lease by assessing whether the fulfilment of a transaction is dependent on
the use of a specific asset and whether the transaction conveys the right to control the use of that asset to the Company in return for
payment.

i.  The Company as lessee
The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from nonlease components of the contract and
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components, The Company recognises right-of-use assel representing its right to use
the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date, The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception
comprises of the amount of initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date,
Certain lease arrangements include options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. The right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities include these options when it is reasonably certain that such options would be exercised.
The right-of-use assets 1s subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, 1f any and

adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability, The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from
the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use assetAssets given under a finance lease are recognised
as a receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. Lease income is recognised over the period of the lease so as to

yield a constant rate of return on the net investment in the lease.

Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their earrying amounts may not be recoverable.
Impairment loss, if any. is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Lease lability is measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate imphicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company uses ineremental borrowing rate. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications, The Company recognises the amount of the resmeasurement of lease
liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a
further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in
statement of profit and loss.

Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of the lease liabilities are expensed to the statement of profit and loss in the
period in which the events or conditions which trigger those payments occur.

In a sale and lease back transaction, the Company measures right-of-use asset arising from the leaseback as the proportion of the previous

carrying amount of the asset that relates to the right-of-use refained. The gain or loss that the company recognises in the statement of

profit and loss is limited to the proportion of the total gain or loss that relates to the rights transferred to the buyer.

ii. The Company as lessor

a.  Operating lease — Rental income from operating leases 1s recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a straighi- line basis over the
term of the relevant lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset is diminished. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying value of
the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

b. Finance lease -When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value of minimum lease payments is recognised as a
receivable. The difference between the gross receivable and the present value of receivable is recognised as uneamned [inance income.
Lease income 1s recognised over the term of the lease using the net investment method before tax, which reflects a constant periodic rate
of return.

1.13 Financial instruments:
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Company’s balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument,
Recognised financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
A financial asset and a financial Tiability is offset and presented on net basis in the balance sheet when there is a current legally
enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and it is intended to either settle on net basis or to realise the asset and settle the
lability simultancously.
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Financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) if these financial assets are held
within a business model whose objective 1§ to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows that give rise on specified dates to sole payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding and by selling financial assets.

Debt instruments at amortised cost or at FVTOCI

The Company assesses the classification and measurement of a financial asset based on the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
asset and the Company’s business model for managing the asset.

For an asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost, its contractual terms should give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding (SPP1).

For an asset to be classified and measured at FVTOCI, the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and scl]ing financial assets: and the contractual terms of instrument give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The Company has more than one business model for managing its financial instruments which reflect how the Company manages its
financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The Company’s business models determine whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling finaneial assets or both.

The Company considers all relevant information available when making the business model assessment. However this assessment is not
performed on the basis of scenarios that the Company does not reasonably expect to oceur, such as so-called *worst case” or “stress case”
scenarios. The Company takes into account all relevant evidence available such as:

how the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated and reported to the
entity’s key management personnel;

the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and, in particular,
the way in which those risks are managed: and

how managers of the business are compensated (e.g. whether the compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or on the
contractual cash flows collected).

The Company reassess its business models each reporting period to determine whether the business models have changed since the
preceding period. For the current and prior reporting period the Company has not identified a change in its business models.

‘When a debt instrument measured at FVTOCI is derecognised, the cumulative gain/loss previously recognised in OCT is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss. In contrast, for an equity investment designated as measured at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain/loss previously
recognised in OCT is not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss but transferred within equity.

Debt instruments that are subsequently measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCT are subject to impairment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in profit or loss.

De-recognition

A financial assct (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily de-
recognised when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Company has transferred its rights 1o receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash Nows
in full without matenal delay to a third party under a *pass-through” arrangement; and

either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has
retained.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, including derivatives, which are designated for measurement at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value,
Financial guaranice contracts are subsequently measured at the amount of impairment loss allowance or the amount recognised at
inception net of cumulative amortisation, whichever is higher.

All other financial liabilities including loans and borrowings are measured at amortised cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method.

A financial liability is derecognised when the related obligation expires or is discharged or cancelled.

‘Write ofl:

Loans and debt securities are written oft when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering the financial asset (either in its
entirety or a portion of it), This is the case when the Company determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. The
Company may apply enforcement activities to financial assets written off. Recoveries resulting from the Company’s enforcement
activities will result in impairment gains,
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1.15 Impairment:
The Company recognises loss allowances for ECLs on the following financial instruments that are not measured at FVTPL:

i.  Loans and advances to customers,

ii.  Debt investment securities;

iii, Trade and other receivable;

1v. Lease receivables;

v, Irrevocable loan commitments issued: and

vi. Financial guarantee contracts issued.
Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred. Credit-impaired financial assets are referred to as Stage 3 assets. Evidence of creditimpairment includes
observable data about the following events:

i.  significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

ii. abreach of contract such as a default or past due event;

iii. the lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the barrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

iv. the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties; or

v. the purchase of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.
It may not be possible to identify a single discrete event—instead, the combined effect of several events may have caused financial assets
to become credit-impaired. The Company assesses whether debt instruments that are financial assets measured at amortised cost or
FVTOCI are credit-impaired at each reporting date. To assess if corporate debt instruments are credit impaired, the Company considers
Tactors such as bond yields, credit ratings and the ability of the borrower to raise funding.
A loan is considered credit-impaired when a concession is granted to the borrower due to a deterioration in the borrower’s financial
condition, unless there is evidence that as a result of granting the concession the risk of not receiving the contractual cash flows has
reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment, For financial assets where concessions are contemplated but not
granted the asset is deemed credit impaired when there is observable evidence of credit-impairment including meeting the definition of
default. The definition of default (sce below) includes unlikeliness to pay indicators and a back-stop if amounts are overdue for 90 days
or more.
Significant increase in credit risk
The Company monitors all financial assets and financial guarantee contracts that are subject to the impairment requirements to assess
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If there has been a significant increase in credit risk
the Company will measure the loss allowance based on lifetime rather than [2-month ECL.
In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting date based on the remaining maturity of the instrument with the
risk of a default occurring that was anticipated for the remaining marturity at the eurrent reporting date when the financial instrument was
first recognised. In making this assessment, the Company considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable. including historical experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort, based on the
Company’s historical experience and expert credit assessment.
Given that a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition is a relative measure, a given change, in absolute terms, in the
Probability of Default will be more significant for a financial instrument with a lower initial PD than compared to a financial instrument
with a higher PD.
As a back-stop when loan asset not being a corporate loans becomes 30 days past due, the Company considers that a significant increase
in credit risk has occurred and the asset 1s in stage 2 of the impairment model, i.e. the loss allowance is measured as the lifetime ECL in
respect of all retail assets. In respect of the corporate loan assets, shifting to Stage 2 has been rebutted using historical evidence from own
portfolio to a threshold of 60 days past due, which is reviewed annually.
Purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets
POCI financial assets are treated differently because the asset is credit-impaired at initial recognition. For these assets, the Company
recognises all changes in lifetime ECL since initial recognition as a loss allowance with any changes recognised in profit or loss. A
favourable change tor such assets creates an impairment gain.
Definition of default
Critical to the determination of ECL is the definition of default. The definition of default is used in measuring the amount of ECL and in

the determination of whether the loss allowance is based on 12-month or lifetime ECL, as default is a component of the probability of

default (PD) which affects both the measurement of ECLs and the identification of a significant increase in credit risk.
The Company considers the following as constituting an event of default:

1. the borrower is past due more than 90 days on any material credit obligation to the Company; or

il.  the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full.
The definition of default is appropriately tailored to reflect different charactenistics of different types of assets.
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When assessing if the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligation, the Company takes into account both qualitative and quantitative
indicators. The information assessed depends on the type of the asset, for example in corporate lending a qualitative indicator used is the
admittance of bankruptey petition by National Company Law Tribunal, which is not relevant for retail lending. Quantitative indicators,
such as overdue status and non-payment on another obligation of the same counterparty are key inputs in this analysis. The Company
uses a variety of sources of information to assess default which are either developed internally or obtained from external sources. The
definition of default is applied consistently to all financial instruments unless information becomes available that demonstrates that

another default definition is more appropriate for a particular financial instrument.
With the exception of POCI financial assets (which are considered separately below), ECLs are required to be measured through a loss
allowance at an amount equal to:

i, 12-month ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that result from those default events on the financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date. (referred 1o as Stage 1): or

i, full lifetime ECL, e lifetime ECL that result from all possible default events over the life of the financial instrument, (referred to as
Stage 2 and Stage 3).
A loss allowance for full lifetime ECL is required for a financial instrument if the credit nsk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition (and consequently to credit impaired financial assets). For all other financial imstruments, ECLs are
measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL.
ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of the present value of credit losses, These are measured as the present value of the difference
between the cash flows due to the Company under the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive arising from the
weighting of multiple future economic scenarios, discounted at the asset’s EIR.

i.  for financial guarantee contracts, the ECL is the difference between the expected payments to reimburse the holder of the guaranteed debt
instrument less any amounts that the Company expects to receive from the holder, the debtor or any other party.
The Company measures ECL on an individual basis, or on a collective basis for portfolios of loans that share similar economic risk
characteristics.

1.16 Modification and derecognition of financial assets
A modification of a financial asset occurs when the contractual terms governing the cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or

otherwise modified between initial recognition and maturity of the financial asset. A modification affects the amount and/or timing of the
contractual cash flows either immediately or at a future date. In addition, the introduction or adjustment of existing covenants of an
existing loan may constitute a modification even if these new or adjusted covenants do not yet affect the cash flows immediately but may
affect the cash flows depending on whether the covenant is or is not met (e.g. a change to the increase in the interest rate that arises when
covenants are breached).

The Company renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulty to maximise collection and minimise the risk of default. A loan
forbearance is granted in cases where although the borrower made all reasonable efforts (o pay under the original contractual terms, there
is @ high risk of default or default has already happened and the borrower is expected to be able 1o meet the revised terms. The revised
terms in most of the cases include an extension of the maturity of the loan, changes to the timing of the cash flows of the loan (principal
and interest repayment), reduction in the amount of cash flows due (principal and interest forgiveness) and amendments to covenants.
When a financial asset 1s modified the Company assesses whether this modification results in derecognition. In accordance with the
Company’s policy a modification results in derecognition when it gives rise to substantially different terms. To determine if the modified
terms are substantially different from the original contractual terms the Company considers the following:

1. Qualitative factors, such as contractual cash flows after modification are no longer SPPL

. Change in currency or change of counterparty,

iii.  The extent of change in interest rates, maturity, covenanis.

If these do not elearly indicate a substantial modification, then:

a. In the case where the financial asset is derecognised the loss allowance for ECL is remeasured at the date of derecognition to determine
the net carrying amount of the asset at that date. The difference between this revised carrying amount and the fair value of the new
financial asset with the new terms will lead 0 a gain or loss on derccognition. The new financial asset will have a loss allowance
measured based on 12-month ECL except in the rare occasions where the new loan is considered to be originated-credit impaired. This
applies only in the case where the fair value of the new loan is recognised at a significant discount to its revised par amount because there
remains a high risk of default which has not been reduced by the modification. The Company monitors eredit risk of modified financial
assets by evaluating qualitative and quantitative information, such as if the borrower is in past due status under the new terms,

b.  When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified and the modification does not result in derecognition, the Company
determines if the financial asset’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition by comparing:

i, the remaining lifetime PD estimated based on data at initial recognition and the original contractual terms: with

ii.  the remaining lifetime PD at the reporting date based on the modified terms.
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For financial assets modified, where modification did not result in derecognition, the estimate of PD reflects the Company’s ability to
collect the modified cash flows taking into account the Company’s previous experience of similar forbearance action, as well as various
behavioural indicators, including the borrower™s payment performance against the modified contractual terms. If the credit risk remains
significantly higher than what was expected at initial recognition the loss allowance will continue to be measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL. The loss allowance on forborne loans will generally only be measured based on 12-month ECL when there is evidence of
the borrower’s improved repayment behaviour following modification leading to a reversal of the previous significant increase in credit
risk.

Where a modification does not lead to derecognition the Company calculates the modification gain/loss comparing the gross carrying
amount before and after the modification (excluding the ECL allowance). Then the Company measures ECL for the modified asset,
where the expected cash flows arising from the modified financial assel are included in calculating the expected cash shortfalls from the
original asset.

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the asset’s cash flows expire (including expiry arising
from a modification with substantially different terms). or when the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset are transferred to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain/loss that had been recognised in OCT and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit
or loss, with the exception of equity investment designated as measured at FVTOCI where the cumulative gain/loss previously
recognised in OCL is not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an option to repurchase part of a
transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise
under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the
transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain/loss allocated to it that had been recognised in OCI is recognised in
profit or loss. A cumulative gain/loss that had been recognised in OCI is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and
the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts. This does not apply for equity investments
designated as measured at FVTOCT, as the cumulative gain/loss previously recognised in OCT is not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss.

1.17 Presentation of allowance for ECL in the Balance Sheet
Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

i. for financial assets measured at amortised cost: the financial assets are shown at full value in the respective notes and provision are
separatly shown under Note : |7 Provisions;

for debt instruments measured at FVTOCT: no loss allowance is recognised in Balance Sheet as the carrying amount is at fair value.

1.18 Cash and bank balances:
Cash and bank balances also include fixed deposits, margin money deposits, earmarked balances with banks and other bank balances
which have restrictions on repatriation. Short term and liquid investments being subject to more than insignificant risk of change in
value, are not included as pant of cash and cash equivalents.

1.19 Securities premium account:

i.  Securities premium includes:

a.  The difference between the face value of the equity shares and the consideration received in respect of shares issued pursuant to Stock
Option Scheme,

b.  The fair value of the stock options which are treated as expense, if any, in respect of shares allotted pursuant to Stock Options Scheme.,

ii. The issue expenses of securities which qualify as equity instrumenis are written off against securities premium account.

1.20 Borrowing costs:

Borrowing costs include interest expense calculated using the effective interest method, finance charges in respect of assets acquired on
finance lease and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings, to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs.

Borrowing costs net of any investment income from the temporary investment of related borrowings, that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of cost of such asset till such time the asset is ready for
its intended use or sale. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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1.21 Share-based payment arrangements:
The stock options granted to employees pursuant to the Company’s Stock Options Schemes. are measured at the fair value of the options
at the grant date. The fair value of the options is treated as discount and accounted as employee compensation cost over the vesting
period on a straight-line basis. The amount recognised as expense in cach year is arrived at based on the number of grants expected to
vesl. [fa grant lapses afiter the vesting period, the cumulative discount recognised as expense in respect of such grant is transferred (o the
general reserve within equity.

1.22 Accounting and reporting of information for Operating Segments:
Operating segments are those components of the business whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision
making body in the Company to make decisions for performance assessment and resource allocation. The reporting of segment
information is the same as provided to the management for the purpose of the performance assessment and resource allocation to the
segments. Segment accounting policies are in line with the accounting policies of the Company.

1.23 Foreign currencies:

1. The functional currency and presentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupee. Functional currency of the Company and foreign
operations has been determined based on the primary economic environment in which the Company and its foreign operations operate
considering the currency in which funds are generated, spent and retained,

ii.  Transactions in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency are recorded on initial recognition using the exchange rate at
the transaction date. At each Balance Sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are reported at the prevailing closing spot rate. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting of monetary items at each Balance Sheet date at the
closing spot rate are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise,

iii.  Financial statements of foreign operations whose functional currency is different than Indian Rupees are translated into Indian Rupees as
follows:

a. assets and lLiabilities for cach Balance Sheet presented are translated at the ¢losing rate at the date of that Balance Sheet;
income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates; and
all resulting exchange differences are recogmised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as foreign currency
translation reserve for subsequent reclassification to profit or loss on disposal of such foreign operations.

1.24 Taxation:
Current Tax:
Tax on income for the current period is determined on the basis of taxable income (or on the basis of book profits wherever minimum
alternate tax is applicable) and tax credits computed in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and based on the
expected outcome of assessments/appeals.
Deferred Tax:
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Company’s linancial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in computation of taxable profit and quantified using the tax rates and laws enacted or
substantively enacted as on the Balance Sheet dale.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences (o the extent that is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised, The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets relating to unabsorbed depreciation/business losses/losses under the head “capital gains™ are recognised and carried

forward to the extent of available taxable temporary differences or where there is convincing other evidence that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. Deferred tax assets in respect of unutilised tax credits

which mainly relate to minimum alternate tax are recognised to the extent it is probable of such unutilised tax credits will get realised.
The measurement of deferred tax labilitics and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the end of reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Transaction or event which is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or in equity, is recorded along with
the tax as applicable.

1.25 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets:
Provisions are recognised only when:

1. an Company entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event; and

it. it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and

1i.  a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation
Provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation and when the effect of time value of money is
material, the carrying amount of the provision is the present value of those cash flows. Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure
required to settle a provision is recognised only when it is virtually certain that the reimbursement will be received.
Contingent liability is disclosed in case of:

1. a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and

ii.  apresent abligation ansing from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible.
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Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable, Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

Where the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under
such contract, the present obligation under the coniract is recognised and measured as a provision.

1.26 Commitment:

Commitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure, classified and disclosed as follows:

estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for;

uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid:

funding related commitment to associate companies; and

other non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the extent they are considered material and relevant in the opinion of management.
Other commitments related to sales/procurements made in the normal course of business are not disclosed to avoid excessive details.

Bn e

1.27 Statement of cash flows:
Statement of cash flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing and financing activities.cash flow from operating
activities is reported using indirect method adjusting the net profit for the effects of:

i. changes during the period in operating receivables and payables transactions of a non-cash nature;

ii.  non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, deferred taxes, unrealised gains and losses; and

iii, all other items for which the cash effects are investing and financing cash tlows.
Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Statement of Cash Flows exclude items which are not available for
general use as on the date of Balance Sheet.

1.28 Earnings per share:
The Company presents basic and diluted eamings per share data for its ordinary shares. Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit or loss attributable to ordinary sharcholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the vear. Diluted earnings per share is determined by adjusting the profit or loss atiributable to ordinary shareholders and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.

1.29 Key source of estimation:
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires that the management of the Company makes estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of income and expenses of the period, the reported balances of assets and liabilities and the
disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial statements, The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates include useful lives of property, plant and eguipment & intangible
assets, expected credit loss on loan books, future obligations in respect of retirement benefit plans, fair value measurement etc.

Difference, if any, between the actual results and estimates is recognised in the period in which the results are known.

1.30 Operating cycle for current and non-current classification:
Based on the nature of produets / activities of the Company entities and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their
realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of
its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

1.31 Statutory Reserve
In accordance with Section 45 - IC of the Reserve Bank of India (Amendment) Act 1997, Twenty percent of the profit after taxation has
been transferred to Statutory Reserve,

1.32 Security of Loans Given
Housing Loans/ Loans against property are granted are secured by equitable registered mortgage of property and | or undertaking to
create a security. Other Secured Loans are secured against hypothecation of respective assets.
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KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED

CIN : U6S903NMIT 1985 LCO35005

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2022
(Currency: Amount in Rupees]

Note 2 : Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars Asal Asat
3-03-2022 31-03-2021
Cash an hand 8380 1844
Balances with banks in current accounts 28958 364,725
Term deposits with original meturity upto 3 months - 26,507 438
Tatal 37338 26,874,007
Note 3 : Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
PFarticulars Asal Asat
31-03-2022 31-03-2021
Balunces with Banks :
Deposits with Banks maturity over more than 3 Months and less than |2 months 994,332 10,856,113
Deposits with Banks matunity over more than 12 Months B4.387.420 53746417
Total RS_3K1,752 64,602,530
e
# Details of term deposils - under lien
Notes: 1) Balonoe includes Rs. Nil (previous year Rs.5,13,234/-) which was kept as deposit with bunk (or issuing of bank guarantee for The DNH Power Carporation Lud.
Note 4 : Reeeivables
Particulars Asatl Asat
3-03-2022 31-03-2021

I Trade receivables
a) Trade receivables considered pood - Secured
b} Trade receivibles eonsidered pood - Un-Secured 664,134 4833968
¢]  Trade receivables doubtful - -
Liess : Provision for doubtfull debis
d)  Trade Receivables which have Low credit risk - -
¢)  Trode Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk; and = =
) Trude Receivables which have eredit impared - -
A Gifid, 134 4833 905

11 Oher Receivables
Unsecured, Considered Good

Cash Segment 11.214.096 7752411
B 11.214.0%0 7.752.411
Tatal 1 l.l!'.fll_.J,H IEN‘J‘N

No trade or other receivable are due from director or other officers of the Company cither severally or jointly with any other person, or from firms or private Companies réspectively in which any direcior is a partner, a

director or a member.

Note 4.1 ; For trade recelvables outstanding, Tollowing ageing schedule shall be given:
Trade Receivables ageing schedule due for payment
a) For the Year coded March 31, 2022

Outstanding for following periods from due dateof payment
Particulars
Less than & months | & monihs-1 vear 1-2 years 2.3 years More than 3 years Toral
i Undisputed Tradersceivables — considered good 11,878,231 - - - - 11,878,231
il Undisputed TradeReceivables — considered doubiful - - . - - -
i | Disputed TradeReceivables considered good = ~ F = = -
iv Disputed TradeReceivables considereddoubtful - - - - - -
b For the Year ended March 31, 2021
Outstanding for following periods from due dateof payment
Farticulars
Liess than b months | 6 months-1 vear 1-2 vears 2-3 years More than 3 vears Total
i Undisputed Traderecenables — considered good 12,386,380 - - - - 12,586,380
i Undisputed TradeReceivables — considerad doubtiul C - ; = - =
i Disputed TradeReccivables considered good - - - - ’ E
iv Disputed TradeReceivables considereddoubtful - - - - - -
MNote 5 : Loventory
Particulars Axat Asat
31-03-2022 31-03-2021
Shares and debentures (held #s stock in trade) 51520157 2.465.690
Tatal 5152057 lﬁ B0
Mote ; | The Cost of the stock hving in the inventory is 9978642 6,753,937
Note 6 : Loans
Particulars Asal Asat
31-03-2022 31-03-2021
Loans & Advances in India-ar amortised cost
- puhblic sector - -
- other Loans
secured (secured by ngible nssets) T09.027 Q46,559
unsecured 30,000,000 -
Tatal 310,709,027 NSESWI
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KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED
CIN : U6S993MHI985PLC0O3S005

Notes forming part of Consoelidated Financial Statements for the vear ended 31st March, 2022

(Currency: Amount in Rupees)

Credit quality of assets

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on year--end stage

ted are gross impairment loss allowance.

Asat Asat
Dete 31-03-2022 11-03-2021
Term loans in India-at amortised cost
- public secior Stage-1 = -
- others
seeured (secured by tangible asscis) Stage-2 T09.027 046,559
unsecured Stee-3 30,000,008 -
MLT09.027 946,559
= e
Note 8 : Other financial nssets
Particulars As at Asal
31-03-2022 31-03-2021
Unyecured, Conxidered Cood unless otherwise stated
Interest accrued on bank deposits 4,664,640 3658891
Imterest accrucd on Capital Advances 2,749,753 2,749,753
Interest accrued others - 4066
Loan 1o Staff - -
Dividend Receivable 11,250
Total 7,425,643 6,412,710
Note 9 : Current tax assets {Net)
Particulars As at As at
31-03-2022 3-03-2021
Current tax assets
- Advamee tax and 1ax deducted at source (net of provision for 1ax) 1,962,224 2,286,788
Total 1,962,224 2,286,788
Note 10 : Deferred tax assets {Net)
Particulars As at Asat
31-03-2022 31-03-2021
Deferred tax liabilities
Diepreciation and amortization 53,052 15,362
Dieferred tay asset
Depreciation and amortization - -
Contingent Provision for standard & Sub-standard assets 19322 595
Movement in net deferred tax during the vear Total 33,730 (14,766
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KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED
CIN : UsSPISNHIMEFLOUESHS
Naotes forming part of Comsalideted Fimancial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2022
(Curremey: Amount i Rupees)
Note 13 : Other son-fmuncial assets
Partculurs As ar Asat
A1-03-ra22 3132021
Unsecarred, Coosidered Gomd unless alverwise statéd
Capital advirme 55,700,219 350219
Halprices with Statntory Crovernment Authorities
- KI8T Ralimess 40w 16,712
Propand Exponses. 1406811 66,753
Kecuriny Depisita
Unsecurad 130467 317780
Cemaideres) Proubitful | 20 e (BT
Advanes to Crodisors 08419
Tutal ST ART.509 5794 471
Node 14 ¢ Payaliles
Pariicalurs A it Asat
1032022 M-83-2021
Tradi pavabiles
Vo] otstuneding dues of micro emerprises amd small enterpeises - -
Ton] cursunating dues of croditom other than micm cvterprises and small enterpeisss - -
Whher payallis
Tita) Lings dues of mi inis i wimall .
Totn] eutstanding dues of eradnors other than micro etterprses sed small enterprises Ralns|
BO1051
Total K151

Note 14,0 = Trade Paables imnchudes Ra. §il {Proviows Yeus: Ri. Nil) pasuble i “Suppliers™ regiviered ender the Micro, Snmll and Medium Enerprices Development Act, 2006, No imerest s been paidis payabbe by the
Compasiy diring the yeor @0 “Supplicrs” registerod under this sct. The above is-based on the information:ovailible with the Company which has boen relied upon by the auditors

Note 142 - The following ageing schedule shall be given For Trade payables due for payments-
al For the Year ended March 31, 2022

0 for ng periads from due date of payment
SN, | Particulars - i 3
LLexs than 1 year 1-1 years 23 MYore thi Total
years VEAFS
i MSME - - - -
i Others
i Disputed dues -~ MEME - - -
iv Disputeddues - Dthers =
b} For the Year ended Mareh 31, 2021
Outstanding for following periods from due date of peyment
SN, | Particulars .3 Muore than §
Lass than 1 year -2 years mj' . Tutal
Nears yeurs
i MEME -
il Oithers - = - -
fii Disputed dues - MSME - -
iv Disputeddues — (hhers
Ml 15 : Burrowbngs (Other tham Debt Securitbe)
Particulars As it As ai
31032022 M-83:2021
Ai Amartizedd Cest
Secured, Tevn Loan
Fromi Froanciid nstitutn | Vehocle Loan) 3215002 2724, 109
Total 3213002 2724160
Mirde 15,0 - Torn Loar is seciassd agams! the vefucle
Note 16 Ovher Bnancial labilities
Particalars As Asat
31032022 31-03-2021
Diepsosity toof o8 defined insection 2 (31) of Companies Aet, 2017) SART,TLG 4974411
Stntisiry Payuhles 408,337
Tavables To Employecs 318782 ,
Other Lishiliries 475,758 i
Total 6,671,361 6ATLETG
lnichios samounty pertaining 1 iclaiod partios R Nil's (previous veur Re Nill-)
Nate 17 ¢ Corrent tax lahibies (net)
Particulurs At Asal
A1-63-2022 M-03-2021
Prowision for s inet of advunee tax) .
Total . =
Nate 18 : Provisions
Pariiculurs As at Asal
31-13-2021 3032071
Provision for impairment loss allewaice
Contagent Provisions wgaingt Standard Assets (loan) 16773 1360
Contingent Provigions amingt Sub-Smndand Assets (loan) - 3
Expevisd erpdil bss allowunce {receivablod 593,519 619,463
Diemibtfial Ioss slbvaanee {depesid) 1,204,000 1,200,000
Total 1ATIIIZ [EXENN
Note 19 : Other son-financial lahilivies
Parficalors Asaf
34032621
Advance recopts from austumers, .
Wthers
Toral
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Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended 30st Murch, 2022
{Currency: Amourl m Ripeées)

Wote 20 ¢ Equity share capitul

As al Asat
Particulars 31-03-2022 31-03-2021
Autherized Shares

230,040,006 12, 50,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs, 10V- each 2E0,001, 108 2500

Tssued, Subscribed and fully Paid Up

74,37,500 (74,37,500) Exuity Shares of Bs, 10¢- ¢ach 74,375,000 74,375,000
Total 74,375,000 74.175.000

21 Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year,

As at 31-03-2022 As at 31-03-2021
rticulr
T fars Numiber Amouni Sumber Amount

Equity shares of Ks.10 fally puid up
Shares ousscanding ax the beginning of

the yeir TA37.500 T4.375,000 TAXTS00 74,375,000

Tssued during the yenr - - - -

Shares sutstanding at the end af the

Year 7,437,500 74375000 TAIT.500 74,375,008
== =

.2 Detuils of shareholders bolding more than 5% of shares in the Company,

Name of Sharcholder As @t 31-03-2022 Asat 31-03-2021

No. of shares % of Hokding Mo of Shares %% af Haolding
Liza Nitesh Kothari 60275 S HEY btk 275 LA
Nitesh Prataprai Kothar 1,195,253 1007 T6H 450 10.34%,
D Dalabhat Asd Co Private Liniited 67,500 13.01% Q67,500 13.00%
Gokdeom Engmicers Private Limited T 120 9.74%, 724,120 T4%
Ramesh U Ramchandan 1,347,597 15.12% 1.347.597 18 12%

W3 Dewsils of Prometers bolding in the Company.

Namie of Sharcholder As il Asal % Change during
No. of shares %o of Holding Mo of Shares % af Halding the year
Pranpeal Nondlal Kothars Hul 132,301 1. 78% 132,500 1 T8%| 0%
Mitesh Prataprai Kothard Hul I 500 4.20M 32500 4.20%|0%
Nitesh Prataprui Rothuri 1,195,253 16.07% TEG 56 10.57% | 6%
Liza Nitcsh Kothan 6H0.275 1 HR% GH0,275 BB 0%
D Dabyabba & Company Pyt Lid 967,500 13.01% 267,500 13.01% | 0%
Pairais Silk Mills Privae Limied 23T A5 310 237,450 3194 0%
Gobdeoin Engineers Private Linied 724,120 4.74% 714,120 9. T4% | 0%
Katkhusroo Manekil Mehita Stone And Engie T0.500 0.95% iS00 0,05%,| 0%
Kawsmudi Pratprai Kothir 369,504 4 47% 369,500 4.97%| 0%
Spectrum Capstal Private Lansted 2500, 0001 330% 250,000 3360 0%
Sweady Mercantile Company Pvi Lad (BT 1.H8%, (BTG | 8% | 0%
International Health Care Produets Lid 281,280 3.78% 241 250 3. 78%| 0%

3 This disclosure i on the basis of kepal ownership except where information regsiding beneficial ownership 15 svaulable from the records of the
“ompany or from the deposilonies.

WA The company have one class of equity shares hving par vahie of Rs, 100 each. Each shareholder 15 ehgable for one vote per share held. In the
event of liguidation of the company, holder of equity shares will be entitled 10 receive remaining gssets of the company. The distribution will be in
the proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

Nate 21 : Reserve & Surplus

As ut As at
Pirticulary 31-03-2022 31-03-2021
@) Securities Premium Account
Halunce as ot the beginning of the year 37,345,000 37,345,000
Add: Premium on shares issued during the year - -
Balance as at the and of the year 3T 345000 37,345,000
b Statutory Reserve Fund (Hefer note 20.2)
Balance as o1 the begmming of the vear 31,759,952 24,160,063
Add: Transfer from Susplus i the Statement of Profit & Loss | Refer note 3.1) 4987121 7,500,880
Halunce an it the end of the year 36,747,073 31,759,952
) Genernl Reserve
Balance as a1 the beginning of the year LG 106,000
Add: Trensfer from Surplus in the Siatement of Profit & Loss - -
Ralance as at the end of the vear 100,008 10,008
) Capital Reserve
Balunce as at the begmanimg of the year 1L 185000 11185000
Add; Transfer from Surplus i the Statement of Profit & Loss - =
Balunce as ot the eod of the year 11,183,000 11,185,000
) Surplus in the Statement of Profit & Loss -
Balance us ot the begmming of the year 125870795 Q2A95.067
Add: Profit for the year 30901019 37.192,143
Less: Transfer o Reaerve Fund (Refer foomaore 1) 4987121 7,500 889
Add: Fair Value measurement through FYVTPL - -
Less: Expected. Credit Loss on Loans, Ad , Depasits & R bl - -
A Preor Period Rentals & Interest Income - 4022500
Less © Tax Expenses related o Prior Peniod Rentals & Interest Income - 1,037.328
Halnnce as at the end of the year 151,487,593 125,572,795
Total Reserve & Surplus (a+breed) 236,804, 66 205,962,747
Nofesi-

The amounts appropriated out of the sumlus in the Sutement of Profit and Loss are as under;

I, Reserve Fund in tenms of section 45-1001) of the Reserve Bunk of India Act, 1934

2. Transfer fo Special Reserve Re 4987121 (Previows Year: Ra.75.99.88%) as prescribed by section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of Indin Act, 1934,
being 20% of the profit afler wn for the year

Annual Report 2021-2022 Page - 97



KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED

KOTHART WORLD

Cihanntng Uadues. IBuilaing Trust.

KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED
CIN : U6S993MHI1985PLCO35005

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

(Currency: Amount in Rupees)

Note 22 : Interest income

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Interest Income on financial assets measured at amortised costs:
- Loans 331,893 129,507
- Fixed Deposits 5,144,508 4,922,221
- Other 590 4,396
On financial assets measured at FYVTPL:
"~ Interest income from investments - -
Total 5,476,990 5,056,125
Note 23 : Rental income
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
License Fees (Net of GST) 37,409,799 35,883,908
Total 37,409,799 35,883,908
Note 24 : Net gain on fair value changes
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
a) Net gain/loss on financial instruments at FVTPL
1) On trading portfolio
- Investmenis - -
ii) On financial instruments designated at FVTPL - -
b) Others - -
- mutual fund units
- On financial instruments designated at FVTPL (deposits from customer’s) 213,340 (6R.010)
¢) Changes in Fair value on Loans, advances & receivables
- Provision for Fair value, measurement 35925
- Contingency Provisions on Sub-Standard Assets - 13.925,900
- Contingency Provisions on Standard Assets 533
249,265 13,858,423
Total net gain/(lpss) on financial instruments at FVTPL
Fair value chanes:
- realized - -
- unrealized 249265 13,858 423
Total 249,265 13,858,423
Note 25 : Sale of shares
Particulars 3021-22 2020-21
Sale of shares 3,538,610 6.234.842
Total 3,538,610 6,234,842
=
Note 26 : Trading in Future & Options (net Gain/Loss)
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Net Gain/(Loss) in Future & Options (2302419 (6,942,427
Total (2,302.419) (6,942.427)
Note 27 : Dividend Income
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Dividend - Equity Shares held in Stock-in-Trade 35,067 21,038
Total 35,067 21,038
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Notes forming part of Consolidaied Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

{Currency: Amount in Rupees)

Note 28 : Other income

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Contingency Provisions on Standard Assets -
Interest on income tax refund 68,205 -
Miscellaneous income - -
Profit on sale of Fixed Asset - 920,727
Total 68,205 920,727
Note 29 : Purchase of stock in trade
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Equity Shares of Stock-in-Trade 6.219.633 887,905
Total 6,219,633 887,905
Note 30 : Changes in inventories of stock in trade
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Opening Inventory 2,465,690 2,692,314
Less : Closing Inventory 5,152,057 2,465,690
Changes in Inventory (2.686,367) 226,623
Note 31 : Employee benefits expenses
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 2,451,923 2,246,908
Directors Remuneration - 200,000
StafT welfare Expenses 120,139 40,122
Total 2,572,062 2,487,030
Nate 32 : Depreciation and amortization expenses
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Depreciation on Tangible assets (Also, refer note 12) 531,669 243,695
Depreciation on Intangible assets (Also, refer note 12) 21,748 37,025
Amortization on Investment properties (Alsa, refer note 11) 2,640,212 2,732.957
Total 3,193,629 3.013.677
Note 33 : Finance Costs
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
On financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
On Security Deposits - INDAS 506,645 409,008
Interest Expenses
- Term Loan 311,894 144,084
- Others
Total 818,539 553,002
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Note 34 : Other expenses

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Advertisement Charges - 34,851
Electricity Charges 45,350 530,708
Repairs others 51,573 70,431
Insurance - -
Directors Sitting Fees - 1,200
Listing Fee = 300,000
Changes in Fair value on Loans, advances & receivables
Provision for Fair value, measurement - 320,251
Contingency Provisions on Sub-Standard Assets - -
Contingency Provisions on Standard Assets 74407 -
Legpal and Professional Fees 1.215.314 994,641
Auditors Remuneration (Refer Note No. 34.1) 90,000 110,000
Travelling and Conveyance 591,971 207,024
Office Rent 110,940 110,940
Printing and Stationery 26,631 18,555
Property Tax and Maintenance Charges 660,585 605,748
Rates & Taxes 197,336 412,533
Miscellancous Expenses 136,338 96,009
3.200 445 3.812,892
— 1
Note 34.1: Auditors Remuneration
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
As Auditor:
Audil Fee 90,000 90,000
Tax Audit Fee - -
Others - 20,000
90,000 110,000

Note 35 : Basic and Diluted Earnings per share [EPS] computed in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)

33 “Earnings per Share™:

Feationiine 2021-22 202021
Net Profit After Tax available for Equity Shareholders - (Rs.) 30,901,919 37,361,767
Weighted average number of Equity Shares for Basic EPS 7.437,500 7,437,500
Weighted average number of Equil}r Shares for Diluted EPS 7.437.500 7.437.500
Nominal Value of Ordinary Shares 10 10
Basic & Diluted Earnings per Equity Share 4.15 5.02
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Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31si March, 2022
(Currency: Amount in Rupees)

Note 36 : MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according 10 when they are expected 1o be recovered or seitled, With regard 1o loans and advances o

customers, the Company uses the same basis of expected repayment behaviour as used for estimating the EIR
As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Particulars Notes Nos,  Within 12 After 12 Total Within 12 After 12 Total
Months Months Maonths Months
ASSETS
1 Financial Assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 2 37338 = 37338 26,874,007 = 26,874,007
(h) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 3 994,352 84,387,420 B5,381,7582 10,856,113 53,746,417 64,602,530
() Receivables 4
Trade receivables 664,134 hibd, 134 2.578.211 - 2578211
Other receivables 11,214,096 - 11,214,096 10,008, 168 - 10,008,168
(d) Tnventory 5 5,152,057 - 5,152,057 2465,690 - 2,465,690
{e)  Loans 3] 30,093,205 615,422 30,709,027 237.528 709,031 946,559
(f)  Investments 7 - 24,770,841 24,770,841 - 18,304,528 18,304,528
(g} Other financial assets & 7,425,643 - 7,425,643 6,412,710 - 6,412,710
2 Non-Financial Assets
(@) Current tax assets (Net) 9 - 1,962,224 1,962,224 - 2,286,788 2,286,788
(h) Deeferred tax assets (Net) 1] - - - 14,767 (14.767) -
(€} Investment Property 11 - 94,422 549 94,422,549 - 96,754,309 96,754,309
(d) Property, plant and equipment 12(1) B 4.6835.429 4,685,420 - 4,040,707 4,040,707
(e} Onher intangible assets 12031} - 16,634 16,634 - 31,602 31,602
(N Onher non-financial assets I3 453,913 §7.033,686 57,487,599 35, TH6,684 1,517.789 57,314,473
TOTAL ASSETS 56,034,719 267.894.605 323929324  115.233.879 177.376.404 292,610,283
LIABILITIES
Liahilities
3 Financial Liabilities
(&) Payables 14
i} Trade Pavables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
CRIHCIPTiscs 5 . - = s "
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - =
ity Other payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
CHLCIPriscs 2 = = 5 % =
Total owstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 891,051 - R91.051 228,955 - 228,955
(b) Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 15 2,674,889 548,113 3,223,002 3.223.002 301,106 3,724,109
(c) Other financial liabilities 16 1,203,847 5467716 6,671,563 2,624,411 348465 6,472,876
4  Non-Financial Liabilities
(a) Current tax liahilities (net) 17 . - . = = .
(h) Deferred tax liabilitics 10 - 33,730 33,730 14,767 - 14,767
(€) Provisions 18 1870312 — 1.870,312 1,831,831 - | 831,831
{d) Onher non-financial liabilities 19 - - = - % =
TOTAL LIABILITIES 6Iﬁ40|ll‘9‘l ﬁ.ﬂ-l‘)iﬁw 12,689,658 T.'}H"]&ﬁ 4&4'};5“ IZ&?I.SST

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Equity share capital and other equity are considered for the purpose of Company’s capital management. The Company manages its capital in a manner which enables it 1o

safeguard s ability o continue as a going coneern and to optimise returns to the Sharcholders. The capital structure of the Ci

18 hased on 1

s judgement of

its strategic and day-to-day needs with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence. The funding requirements are met through operating
cash flows and other equity. The management monitors the retum on capital and the board of directors monitors the level of dividends paid to sharcholders of the Company,

The Company may take appropriate steps in order to mamtam, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure.
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Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
(Currency: Amount in Rupees)

Note 37 : Disclosure pertaining to corporate social responsibility expenses
The company has not applicable provision of Sec. 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 viz. Corporate Social Responsibility,

MNote 38 : Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 116 “Leases"
Operating leases:
i, The Company has paid rent for the prennses originally taken on lease basis with a Tenancy Right. The Company has filed swit in the Session Court for claiming the tenancy nght. In light
ol claim for tenancy right, in the opinion of managment Ind-AS 116 is not applicable to the Company. Gross rental expenses of Rs.1,10,940/ (Previous Year Rs, 1. 10,940/-) recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
i The company has acquired property under lease rights from DIC which are subsequent given for sub-lease, the company has not recognized leased assets in the halancesheet as the sub-

lease charges are paid in form of tax as per agreement, hence in view of lease hold nights in the opinion of managment Ind-AS 116 is not applicable to the Company,
i, Contimgent rent recognised m the Statement of Profit and Loss: B Nl (previous vear: R Nil)
iv. Liase rentals received for the assets let outl on operating lease arrangement for which are cancellable by cither party by providing notice as mentioned in the agrecment. Lease rental

meome / License fees of Rs.3.74.09.799/- (P.Y. Rs. 3,58, 83908/~ ) are recogmised as income m the statement of Profit and Loss under the head "Revenue from operations!
v, The future minimum lease rental income recetvable under non-cancellable operating feases n the aggregate and for each of the following periods:

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21

Wathin 1 year of the balance sheet date 23237192 2215834

Due in & period between | vear and 5 year 1.541.663 3.604.809

Due afier 5 vears . -
Note 39 ; Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 107 “Fi fal Instr Disel ¢5": Financhal risk management

The Company being o Core Investment Company as per the Core Investment Companies (RBI) Directions, 2016 is required to invest or lend majority of it's fund to subsidiares, The
Company’s prineipal financial liabilitics comprise borrowings and trade and other payables, The main purpose of these financial liabilities is 1o finance and support Company’s
operations. The Company's principal financial assets include inter corporate deposites, loans, cash and cash cquivalents and other receivables

The Company Is exposed to market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk snd operational and business risk. The Company’s management oversees the manngement of these risks, The
Company’s senior management 15 supporied by o Risk Management Committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company,
The Risk Committee provides assurance to the Company’s senior management the Company’s financial nisk activities are g ed by iate policies and procedures and that

o PPy

Lot fiesd |

fimancial risks are il el e i with Company s policies and nisk objectives, The magor nsks are summarnised below:
Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. [n the case of the Company, marke! risk

primanly impacts financial nstruments me 1t fuir vinlue through profit or loss,

Interest rate risk is the nsk that the fair value or future cash flows of o financial instrument will luctuate because of changes. in markel interest rates. The Company does not have
exposure to the risk of changes in narket interest rate as it has debt obligations with fixed interest rates which are measured at amortised cost.

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or a customer contract, leading to a financial loss, The Cempany is exposed to eredit
risk from its financing activitics towards inter corporate deposits to subsidiarics, where no significant impact on eedit rsk has been identified.

Equity price risk
The Company's investment in non-listed equity securities are nccounted at cost in the financial statement net of impairment. The expected eash flow from these entities are regularly
monitored to dentify imparment indicators.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a reasonable price. The Company's corporate treasury department is
responsible for liquidity, funding as well as sentlement management. [n addition, processes and policies selated 10 such risks are by senior gement. The Company manages

its liquidity requirement by analysing the maturity pattern of the Company's cash flow of financial assets and financial liabilitics . The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance
between comtinuity of funding and flexibility through issuance of equity shares, commercial paper cte, The Company invests its surplus funds in debt schemes of mutual funds, which
carry low mark o market risks.”
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“Notes forming part of C lidated Financial 5
[Currency: Amaunt in Rupees)

for the vear ended 315t March, 2022

Note 40 : Other disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 107 “Financial Instruments; Disclosures™:

. Category-wise classification for applicable financial assets and financial liabilitics:

; Asoat 31-03-2022 Asal 31-03-2021
Particular's FVTPL Amortized Cost FVTPL Amortized Cost
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 37,338 - 26,874,007
Bunk balances other than above - 85,381,752 - 64,602,530
Reveivables - 11,878,231 - 12,586,379
Inventory 5,152,057 - 2465690 =
Laans - 30,709,027 - 046,559
Investmens = 24,770,841 = 18,304,528
Other finuncial assets - 7425643 - 6412710
Total linancial assets SIEE IHS"} WI wﬂ 119;}! E’?l«l
Financial Liabilities
Payables - B91,051 - 228955
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 3,223,002 - 3,724, 19
Other financial Rablites 5467716 1,203,847 3848465 2624411
Total financial liablitics 5.4_67.” i 531 Lm m &‘T‘F.-t?l

Maoter

1. No financial asscts and liabilitics has been measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.
i, Carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade reeeivables, other payables as ot Mirch 31, 2022 and Murch 31, 2021 spproximate the fair vilue because of their short term nature.
The carrying amounds of loans given and bornowings taken for short term are considerad (0 be close 1o the Tair value.

i,
risk indicators (including delinguencies and interest rate).

b, Expected credit loss - lnans

Lass allowanoe measured at 12 month expected credit losses:

Financial assets for which erecht sk has not incressed significantly since initial recognition

I thie absence of inobservable market for these hean asses, the fair valoe have heen determined From the perspective of the Company’s asset consadering the chianges in performance and

Purticulars As at 31-03-2012 As at 31-03-2021

Estimated gross carrying amount ai defauli 30,709,027 046,559

Expected Credit Loss 76,773 2,366

Carrying amount net of impairment provision 30,632,254 944,193
c. Expected credit loss - receivables

Loss allowsnoe d at 12 month exp d credin losses

Financial assels for which cradit rigk has not increased significantly since nitial recognition

Purticulars As at 31-03-2022 Asat 31-03-2021

Estimued gross carrying amount an defaul 11,878,231 12,586,379

Expected Credit Loss 593,539 (29,465

Carrying ameunt nel of impairment provision 11.284.691 11.956.915

d.  Accounting for open positions

Position left apen on the balance sheet date must be accounted for, Debit‘eredit balunce m the “mark-to-market muargin -Equity index futures account”, maintined on global basis,

represents the net amount paid received on the basis of movement in the prices of index futures till the balance sheet date, Keeping in view ‘prudence’ as & consideration for preparation

of fnancial statements, provision for anticipated loss, which may be equivalent to the net payment made 10 the broker (represented by the debit balance in the “mark-to-market margin -

Equity index futures account’) should be ereated by debiting the profit and loss account. Net amount received (represented by credit bakance in the “mark-tomarket margin -Equity index

futures account”) being anticipated profit should be ignored and no credit for the same should be taken in the profit and loss account. The debit balance in the said “mark-to-market

margin -Equity index futures account™, |e., nel payment made 1o the broker, discluse under the head © Other Reccivables™ in the balance sheel and the provision ereated there against

should be shown as o deduction therefrom. Cn the gther hand, the eredit balanee in the siid aceount, de.. the net amonunt received from the broker, should be shown as o current liability

under the head * Other Current Liohiliies” and provisions in the balance sheet™,

Particulars Qty. Net Profit/{Loss)
As at March 31, 2022
Nifty Future & Oprions 2,500 N3N0
=600 157,943
MCDX Commuodity - Gold Sepment 4 175842
-2 54420
As at March 31, 2021
Nifty Future & Options 1800 B47.777
5 -SR,0A8
e M in Mark-t ket
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
i. At the Beginning of the Year 847,777 -
il Loss Recogmized during the Year 2302419 6,506,048
i, Maork-to-Market Profit eliminated 479,758 494,407
Mark-to-Market Loss accounted and
v, Classified into Profit & Loss -312,368 -5B.088
v. Atthe end of the Year 3,317,585 6,942,427

Line [tem in Balance sheet/Statement of Profit & Loss

[tem that will be classified as lisbility in Bulance sheet
Item Charged o Profit & Loss
Item that will be clussified as lbility in Balance sheet
Irem Charged 10 Profit & Loss

Item that wall be classificd as lnbiliv in Balance sheet
Itern Charged 1o Profit & Loss

Annual Report 2021-2022

Page - 103



KOTHART WORLD
KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED Cokanaing Caluss, uilding Crs.

KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED

CIN 3 USY93NHIYBSPLOCIASMIE

Nodes farming part of C d Financlal S for the year ended 3151 March, 2022
(Currency: Amount in Rupers)

Mefe 41 : Group-wise Classification of afl Inventorics held as Stock-in-Trade in shares and secaritics (boil quobed and onguoted):

Seript Traded Eqquity Shares - As at March 31, 2022 ebrentures - As at March 31, 2022

Quantity Book Value Market Valoe Qrommtiny Book Value Market Value
The Indian Hotels Company Lid 5 622 192 - - -
King Fisher Airlines Lad 4,000 064 5440 - - -
Mipe Lid B0 99827 80,970 - - -
Prime Property Development Corporation 3000 128,741 40,590 - . -
Sical Logstics Lid 25970 1175169 2300 - - -
Kolid Stone Comparny Lid 1,00 52,966 24,000 -
Ujjivan Financinl Services Ltd XU | 238,445 A h, K0} -
Varun Indusirees Lid £,000 586321 12 880 -
Symene Intemational Lid (KL 628,004 596,900 - - -
Jsw Ispat Spe Pro Lid 17,000 5449 904 544,10 - - -
One 97 Commumications Lid 200 59,959 475360 = = &
Vousfone Ides Limited 10,000 ECRUCH S0, 500 -
Yew Bank Limited 10,000 136,500 122,900 -
Sneel Authority OF Indin 5,000 4835 B0 492,750 -
Gajurit Alkalies & Chemical Lid 5000 357013 447 950 - - -
Nihpe Lid 2500 T4375 &9.500 - - -
Sasken Technobogies Lud i 571 6bd 548,970 - - -
Natonal Alummun Co Lid F000 597,500 B, TS0 -
Amars Haja Batteries Lid S0 261 K75 268,075 - -
NTPCL 849 25032025 - - - 300 - 6560

Toal 99,575 9,978,642 152,057 Siiy - 6,560

Serigt Traded Equity Shares - As at March 31, 2021 Debentures = Ax at March 31, 2021

Quantity Bouk Value Market Value Quantity Book Value Muarket Value
Gihel Linmted 2,500 06934 $75.625 - - -
Kingfisher Airlines Limited 44000 Ti.0h4 =
Nipe Limited 500 332325 = - =
Nipe Limitad oo 10,645 - - -
Prime Property Deyveloprent Corporation 3000 24,000 - - -
Sl Logrstios Lamited 254970 2TO0RS - - -
Solid Stene Company Limited 1,000 4400 - - -
Tejas Networks Linited 500 2oty 125 - B
Inddian Hotels Company Limited 5 355 - -
Triwom India Limied 2000 3143 - - -
Ujivan Financial Services Limited 2,500 A26.500 - - -
Varun Industries Limited o0 58932 589320 - - -
Nepel 8,49 25032025 - - = 00 = -

Total SWE 6{."531937 ziwsm 50.2_ = =

MNote 42 ¢ Disclosure pursount to Ind AS 108 “Operating Scgment™
The company operates maialy in the business scgment of investment activity. As such there are no reportable scgments as per NI AS 108 on operating segment.

Node 43 : Disclosure pursuant to lnd AS 19 “Employec Benefiis™:
Short-term emplovee benofits sre roeognized 15 un expense a1 the undiscounted amoumt in the statement of profit end loss of the year in which the related service s rendered. The
enmpany is providing one-manth salury of leave enenshment in the last manth of the respective financinl yoar.

Note 44 : Disclosure of related parties/relaled party transactions pursuant (o Ind AS 24 = Related Party Disclosures™

n. Name of the related partics and description of relationship:

Name Relatlonship

Mrs. Lizn Kothari Managing Direcior
Mr. Nitesh Kothari Directar

Mr. Manchar Mhaire Director

Ms. Mamisha M Mhaire Relative of Director

Ms. Blan Rathed (Resagred from CFO we £ 0501
Ms, Madhu Kadom (Resigned from £5 w0512

CFO
Company Seeretary

Imermational Health Care Products Limited (IHCP) Associabe

Goldeoin Engincers Private Limited (GEPL) Associate of IHCPL

T Dabyvablemi & Co Priva Linvited ( DDPL ) Associate of GEPL
Famous Cammercinl & Leiising Private Limited (FCPLY Associate of GEPL
Vishal Construction Company Private Limited Common Direciorship
Paras Silk Mills Private Limited Common Directorship
Spectrum Capatal Privase Limited Common Duectorship
Steady Mercantile Company Private Limited Commmon Divectorship
Kaiktusroo Munekii Mehis Stone And Enginesning Works Private Limited Common Directorship

b, Reluted Party Transactions ;

As at As
Natiire of Transaction's/ Parry Name 31-03-2022 31-03-2021
L Direcior Remuneration paid during the vear
Mrs. Lizs Kothari - 200,006

i, Satary, Bonos, Incentive & Leave Salary
Ms. Ekia Rathod - 271,365
Ms, Machn Kadam . 204,167
Ms. Manisha M Mhaire 630,000 270006

Director Sitting Fees
Mr. Vivek Mhiitie - (i)
Mr. Adbieva Muyekar - L

v Loan Given
International Healih Care Products Limied (THCT) 301,000,000 -

v. Tnterest Received on Loan Given
Intermational Health Care Products Lamited {IHCP) 236,844 -

v Ourstanding at the vod of the Year
Intermationil Health Care Products Liandied (THCP) 30,000,060
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Notes forming part of € i i Fii inl 5 nis for the year ended 31st March, 2022
(Curreney: Amount in Rupees)

Note 45 : Contingent linbilities and commitments

. Asat As ar
5 bartatres 31-03-2022 31-03-2021
Contingent Liablities
1. Income Tax Matter's = -

The Company has received demands for various years from lncome Tax Authorities. In the opinion of the management the Company has discharged all liabilities. The Company is in

process of rectifying the demands with the imcome tax authoritics and not expecting any cash outflow on acecount of such demand.

il Bank Gurantee
{details of bank gurantes) - 513,234

Wi, There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded meome that have been surrendered or disclosed as mcome during the year m the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,

1961,
iv. No procecdings or notice received agninst the compuny for holding any besiumi property under the Bennmi Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988 and the rules made thereunder
b.  Movement in Contingent Provision against Standavd Assets during the vear is as under;
As at As at
Particular's 31-03-2022 31-03-2021
Opening Balance 2,366 21899
Addition's/{ Deduetion) during the Year 74,407 [333)
Closing Balance 76,773 1366
¢.  Movement in C T against Sub-! Assets during the year is as under:
As at As at
Particular's 31-03-2022 31-03-2021
Opening Balance - 13925900
Addition's/{ Deduction) during the Year - (139255003
Closing Balance - -

Note 46 : Contribution to political parties during the year 2021-22 is Rs. Nil [previous year Rs. Nil),
Note 47 : There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to [nvestor Education & Protection Fund as a1 March 31, 2022,

Wote 48 :  Disclosure pertaining to Immovable properties
i

) The title deeds, of all the i ble properiies (ather than bl perties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company)

disclosed in the linancaal statements included i Property, Plant and Lqmpm:m are held in the nare of the Company as of the balance sheet date,

by The Company has not revalued its propeny. plant and equipment {ineluding righi-of-use assets) or intangible assets during the current or previous year

Nate 49 The Company has not been declared as Wikful defaulter by Banks/Financial Instinution/Other Lender.
Note 50 ;. The company had didn’t entered into any Scheme's of arrangements with the competent suthority in terms of See. 230 10 237 of the Compames Act, 2013,

Note 51 @ Details of pending charge creation / satisfaction registration with ROC.
The company has no such charges which are pending for creation or yet 10 be satisfy,
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Motes forming part of C lidated Financial St for the year ended 315t March, 2022
(Currency: Amount in Rupees)

MNote 52: Loans or Advances in the nature of lpans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013,) either
severally or jointly with any other person, that are:

As at As at
31-03-2022 31-03-2021
a) repayable on demand 30,000,000 S
by without specifying any wrms or period of repayment - -
Loans or Advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties
As at 31-03-2022 As at 31-03-2021

Amount  in the|% o the totall Amount  in thel% o the  fotal
Type of Borrower Terms of repayment Loans and Loans and

nature  of  loan i Ta WA mature  of  loan Lvanies o the

oulstanding nature of luans oulstanding | mature of loans
Promoters = = 5 =
Dhirectors - - - -
KMP's - - - -
Related Parties Repavable on Demand 30,000,000 97.69% - -

Since the Company is an NBFC enterprises covered w's 451A, the main business of the company is 1o granting loans

Note 53 @ The company has not taken any facilities from banks/financial institutions against current assels hence disclosure regurding review and reporting of filings and submission of Quarerly
returns or statements with banks/ financial institutions are in agreement with books of sccounts are not svailable.

Note 54 :  Utilization of borrowed funds and share preminm:
M) The company has not granted/sdvance/imvested funds in any entities or to any other person including foreign entities durmg the vear with the understanding that the
i) Intermediary shall divectly or indirectly lend or invest in any manner whatsoever by or on behalfof the company {Ulnmate beneficiaries).
b) Provide any guararites; security or the like 1o or on belalf of the ultimate beneficiaries,

By The company has not received any funds during the year from any person’s/entities including foreign entities with the understanding that the company shall
n) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in any manner whatsoever by or on bebalf of the finding entity ( Ultimate beneficiarics ),
b Provide any gurantes, security or the like to or on behalf of the ullimate beneficinries.

Note 57:  Relationship with Struck off Companies
There are no companies which are struek offin MCA,

Note 58 1 Derails of erypto currency or vivtual currency
The Company has not raded or mvested i eryplo cusrency or virtual currency during the current of previous vear.

Note 59 In the opinion of the Board :
i) The current asscts, loans and advances will realise in the ordinary course of business, at least the amount at which these are stated in the Balance Sheet.
i1) Provision for all known liabilitics have been made.

Mote 60 :  Other Matters :
i. Loan arrangements |
The RBI has refeased a Master Circular: RBL2019-20/186 DOR.No.BP.BC.47/21.04.048/2019-20 Dated : March 27, 2020, COVID -19 Regulatory package, where the RBI arc

permitted to grant a moratorium of three months on p. of all inseal falling dug b March 1, 2020 and May 31, 2020 and rescheduling the payment of Term Loans &

Warking Capital facilities.
A unsecured loan arrangement facility provided by the company 10 one of its borrower ¢, Renaissance Urban Infra Private Limited has been classified as Sub-standard as on March 31,
2020. During the year the company has an fresh negotiation with the said party and the Loan nrragments has been elassified as Capital Advances againsi Commercial Property which are
dut for completion snd allot in coming year.
The management of the company has reclassified the loan ino capital advances against the property in the fBvour of the company converting the loan facility imo contract alloting the
property unit under development. Accoordingly, the interest accrued for the August 2020 to March 2020, as per settlement are accounted as accrued Interest in FY 2021-22 as prior
period mterest and taxes thercon are charged directly to Reserve & Surplus,

il Voluntary delisting of ¢quity shares from the BSE:
Pursuant fo the approval of (he Board of Directors of the Company at its mecting held on 14th January, 2020, the Company had filed an application for voluntary delisting of its equity
shares from the BSE on | 7th February, 2020 under Chapter VI (Special Provisions for Small Companies) of regulation 27 of the Delisting Regulation which was approved by BSE vide
its Notice Mo, 20200605-38 dated 5th June, 2020, pursuant 1w which the trading in the equity shares of Kothari World Finance Limited (Senip Code: 511138) is discomtinued w.ef.
Frida}' June 12, 2020. Further the Scrip Code: 511138 is delisted from the BSE records w.e.[. Fnday June 1%, 2020,
In this regard, the Company has made necessary disclosures required under SEBT Delisting Regulations and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements ) Regulations, 2015 to the stock exchanges,

1, There have been no other events after the reporting date that require disclosure in the financial statements

Note 61 1 The Company has obtained the Certificate of Registration from the RE] as a Non-Banking Financial Institution - Investment Company on March (8, 1998 under Section 43-1A of the
Reserve Bank of Indin Act, 1934,
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Notes i

ing part of C lidated Fi fal 8§ for the year ended 315t March, 2022

(Currency: Amount in Rupees)

Note 6d ¢ Particular's as per RBI direction’s for NBFC

Schedule to the Balance sheet of a non-deposit taking non-banking financial company as required in terms of paragraph 1% of Master Direction Non Banking Finance Compeny- Non

Systemancally lmporant Non Deposit iaking Company vide Master Direction DNBR PDOOT/O3. 10 1192016-17 dared Seprember 1, 2016

Particular's Adnoust Amount Overdue
Outstanding
Liahilities Side
1 |Loans and advances availed by the non-banking financial company inclusive of imterest acerued thercon but not paid :
& |Debentures ; Secured - -
Linsecured - -
(Other than fulling within the meaning of public deposits)
b, |Deferred Credits - -
¢. |Term Loans - -
d. [Inter-Corporate Loons & Bormowing - -
e, [Commercial Paper = =
. |Public deposits - -
g |Other Loans (Specify Nature) = >
2 | Break-up of {1 fy abowve (Outstanding public deposits inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid :
a, |In the form of Un-secured debentures - -
b [In the form of partly secured debentures Le. debenures where there is a shortfall in the value of the security - -~
. |Other public deposit's = -
Particular's & "mn"f:
Assets Side
3 |Break-up of Lons and Advances including bills receivables (other than those Included in (4) below)
a | Secured TO9.027
b. |Unsecared 41.878.231
4 |Break-up of Leased Assets and stoek on hire and other assets counting towards AFC activities
. |Leased assets including lease rentals undar sundry debtors
i, |Financial Lease
ii. |Operating Lease >
b, {Swck on hire including hire charges under sundry debuors
i. |Assetson hire =
il. |Repossessed Assets -
¢, |Other loans counting towards AFC activities
1. |Loans where the asseis hove been repossessed -
ii. [Louns ather than (ah above -
5 |Break-up of Investments :
| Investments
Al [ Quoted
1. |Shares : 1. Equit® 2,700,000
ii. Preference
I {Debenture & Bonds
. |Units of mutual funds 500,000
IV, |Government Securitics
V. | Ouhers (please specify)
* (disclosed at Cost without considering Provision for diminution i value of investments of Rs. 27,00 000
B |Unguoted -
1. |Shores: I, Equiny* 3.513.537
it Preference
Il |Debenture & Bonds
1. |Units of mutval funds
IV, [Government Securities
V. |Others (please specify) L Immovable Property** 130.143.819
* (disclosed m Cost withowt considering Provision for diminution in value of investments of Re. 98437/)
7 (disclosed m Gross Vilue withou considenng amortization on investments of Rs 3,571 7407/~ )
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6 |Bomower group-wise classificalion of assets financed us in (3} and (4) above |
Plelse - Note 2 below

Category

Amount net of Provisions

Secured U ed Total
I, |Related Partics
4. |Subsidinries = . -
b, |Companies in the same group ¥ B .
¢. |Other refated parties - - -
I |Other thun: Related Partics TO8,027 41,878,231 42 587,258
Total TU9.027 41,878,231 42,587,158
7 [lnvestor group-wise caleulations of all investmem {eurent and longterm) in shares and securities (both quoted and unguoted)
Market
’ Value/Breaknp | Book Value (Net
A. [Categary or fair valoe or of Provisions)
NAV
L. |Relaed Parties **
#. | Subsidiancs - -
b, [Companies in the same groop 24,270,841 24,270,841
¢ (Other related panties - -
Il |Other than Related Parties 3,298,437 G0, 463
Total 17,569,278 24,921 gh
** As per Accounting Standard of 1CAl
B, Other Informations
Particulars Amount
iy Giross Non-Performeing Assets
4. Related Parties -
b. Other thim refated parties B
i Non-Performing Assets
a. Related Parties -
b. Other than related partics -
iii. Assets aequired in sansfiction of debt
Notes :
1 Asdefined in peint xix of paragraph 3 of Chapter-2 of these directions.
2 Provisioning norms shall be applicable as preseribed in these directions.
MNote:65 Additional information as requoired under 111 of the Companies Act, 2013 OF 1 g Company and A
As % ol As % of
Name of the Entity Consolidated T A Consolidated Frafitior (Liess)
Net Assets At Profit or Loss Aher iazatlin
I Holding Company
Kaothari World Finance Limited 93.56% 303,073,583 #0.69% 24,935,606
2 Associates - Indian Compani
International Health Care Products Limited ("[HCPL") 463% 1432081
Goldeoin Engineer Private Limited ("GEPL" - Associate of IHCPL) 12.36% 319454
D Dahyabhai & Company Private Limited ("DDPL" - Associate of GEPL) 2.31% 713,015
Famous Commercial & Leasing Private Limited (Associate of DDPL) 0.01% 1,733

Note 66 : Previous vear previous GAAP figurcs have been regrouped / reclassified to make them comparable with IND AS presentation,

Mote 67 ; The Code on Sacial Security, 2020

The Code an Social Security 2020 {Code’) has been notified in the Oficial Gazetie on 28" September, 2020 The Code is not yet effective and related rules are vt to be notified. Impact

if any of the change will be assessed and recognized in the period in which said Code becomes effective and the rules framed thereunder are notified.

For V K Beswal & Associates For and on Behall of Board of Directors

Chamered Accountants
ICAL Firm Regsimation Noo 101083W

Sd/- Sd/-
CA Nishit § Agrawal Lizu Kothari
Partner Managing Director
Membership No : 159882 DIN No.: 01273272

Place : Mumbai
Thate, ¢ (1092022

Sd/-

Nitesh Kothari
Director

DIN No.: 00024195
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KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED

Registered Office: C-121, Mittal Tower, 12% Floor, Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400021, Telephone: +91-22-
22851620.
Website:www.kothariworld.com, Email:info@kothariworld.com,
CIN No. U65993MH1985PLC035005.

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Venue of the meeting: C-121, Mittal Tower, 12 Floor, Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400021
Date & Time: Friday, 30th September 2022 at 11.00 a.m.

PLEASE FILLATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING VENUE

DP ID - Client ID/ Folio No.

Name & Address of Sole
Member

Name of Joint Holder(s),
If any (In Block Letters)
No. of shares held

I certify that I am the registered shareholders/proxy for the registered shareholder of the
Company.

I hereby record my presence at the 37" Annual General Meeting of the Company held Friday, 30t
September 2022 at 11.00 a.m. at C-121, Mittal Tower, 12th Floor, Nariman Point, Mumbai -
400021.

Signature of Member / Proxy
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KOTHARI WORLD FINANCE LIMITED

Registered Office: C-121, Mittal Tower, 12% Floor, Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400021, Telephone: +91-22-
22851620.
Website:www.kothariworld.com, Email:info@kothariworld.com,
CIN No. U65993MH1985PLC035005.

FORM MGT-11
(FORM OF PROXY)

Venue of the meeting: C-121, Mittal Tower, al2"Floor, Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400021
Date & Time: Friday, 30t September 2022 at 11.00 a.m.

Name

Address

DP Id*

Client 1d*

Folio No.

No. of shares held

1/ We of being member/members of Kothari World Finance Limited
hereby appoint the following as my/our Proxy to attend vote (for me/our behalf at the 37" Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 30th September, 2022 at 11.00 a.m and at any adjournment

thereof).
1. Mr./ Mrs. (Name & Signature of the Proxy) or failing him /her
2. Mr. / Mrs. (Name & Signature of the Proxy) or failing him/her
3. Mr./ Mrs. (Name & Signature of the Proxy) or failing him/her

#*]/We direct my/our Proxy to vote on the Resolutions in the manner as indicated below:

SI. Resolution For Against
No.

1. To receive, consider, approve and adopt
a. The Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the

Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022
together with the reports of the Board of Directors and
Auditors thereon; and

b. The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022
together with the report of the Auditors thereon.

2 Re-appointment of Mrs. Liza Kothari, who retires by rotation and
being eligible offers herself for re-appointment
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**This is optional. Please put a tick mark (V) in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the
box. If a member leaves the “For” or “Against” column blank against any or all the Resolutions, the proxy will be
entitled to vote in the manner he/she thinks appropriate. Ifa member wishes to abstain from voting on a particular
resolution, he /she should write “Abstain” across the boxes against the Resolution.

Signature(s) of the Member(s) QE;{:cm
1. ;Z‘::‘w
i
3.
Signed this day of 2022.
Notes:

1. The Proxy to be effective should be deposited at the Registered office of the company
notless than FORTY-EIGHT HOURS before the commencement of the Meeting.

2. A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.

3. In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in
person or by proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of the vote of the other joint
holders. Seniority shall be determined by the order in which the names stand in the
Register of Members.

4. The form of Proxy confers authority to demand or join in demanding a poll.

5. The submission by a member of this form of proxy will not preclude such member
from attending in person and voting at the meeting.

6. Incasea member wishes his/her votes to be used differently, he/she should indicate
the number of shares under the columns “For” or “Against” as appropriate.
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ROUTE MAP TO THE VENUE OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE COMPANY
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